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Fuller Smith & Turner

Operating from the historic Griffin Brewery site
in Chiswick, Fuller's is an independent family
brewer and pub company whose brands include
the worldfamous ESB and London Pride, the UK's
best selling premium cask ale

Fuller's has an estate of 391 pubs and hotels - split
between Managed and Tenanted houses - located
primarily in London and the South of England.
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Revenue Adjusted proft EBITDA

£321.5m+2%

£36.4m-74

£58.7m-+s8%

' Adjusted profit betore ti excluding exceptionals The Directors beheve that this me isure provides useful informution fer shareholders us to the internal measures of the performance of the Group




Financial Highlights

This year we brewed 215000 barrels of award-
winning ale at the Griffin Brewery, beside the
Thames in Chiswick. From here we supply our
estate, which comprises 188 Managed Pubs
and Hotels and 203 Tenanted Inns, as well as
pubs, clubs and supermarkets across the UK
and overseas.
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Managed Pubs and Hotels like for like sales
up 6.3% and profits up 11%.

Tenanted Inns like for like profits up 5%
and average EBITDA per pub up 5%.
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The Fuller's Beer Company revenue up 6%
and total beer and cider volumes up 4%.
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Adjusted earnings per share Total dvidend per share Pro forma net debrt to EBITDA?

5L.5Ip+ox  16.60p+0% 2.7 times

" Pro forma net debt to EBITDA 15 adjusted as appropriate for the pubs acquired or disposed in the perad
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Chairman’s Statement

‘Quality in atbwoludely evergihing.’

Michael Tumer
Chairman
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This year sees the [70th anniversary of the Fuller, Smith &
Turner partnership — and I'm delighted to announce that

we are celebrating with another set of excellent results and

a business that i1s in great shape to embark on the next chapter
1n our story. The team has yet again delivered in all areas and

| congratulate them all for their dedication, creativity and

hard work.

Our Made of London campaign has
helped Lo dnve sales of our flagship
brand and we were delighied when

it received two awards in the inaugural
Beer Marketung Awards this year

* Operting profit before exceptional items

By continuing 1o focus an our clear vision

to create and operate the most stylish pubs
arnd hotel w hifst brew ing Britain s most coveted
premum brands for discerning customers

both at home and ahroad we have seen wotat
revenue increasce by 12% o £321 5 million {2014
£288 O mullion) and a resulung increase in
adjusted profit before 1ax of 7% 1o £36 4 mullion
(2014 £341 mulhon) One of the key figures for our
shareholders 1s adjusted earnings per share which
I am pleased o sdy has nsen by 0% 1o 51 5lp
(2014 4694p}

Once agan, we have outperformed the market
with our Managed Pubs and | lotels which have
seen toldl sales grow 15% like for like sales increase
by 6 3% and profits® nse by 1% We have invested
significantly n our estate and added eight new
pubs In a variety of Interesung locations Including
our first airside pub at Heathrow Terminal 2
and Lwo new sites on the River Thames A new
recruikment website has improved the way we
attract and hire team members and having invested
i our training and development programmes for
some years | am delighted to see scme tugh profile
internal promotions duning the year

Qur Tenanted Inns have been star performers
with exceptional resulis and like lor like profits
rising by 5% Total profits have nsen by 2% and
this has come during a difficult penod for the
tenanted model Tenanted Director Mike Clist
has played a lead role in representing both Fullers
and the wider industry in recent negotatons
with Government and | was dehghted to see his
commutment honoured when he was recogmsed
for his Cutstanding Contribution to the Industry
atthe Publican Awards

Ithas also been a good year for the Fullers Beer
Company with total beer and cider volumes
nismg by 4% and profits nsing by 2% The Made of
London campaign for our flagship ale London
Pride has driven sales we launched a delictous
new golden ale Olivers Island grew Fronuer
Craft Lager sales to make 1t our second biggest
brand sn the UK and expanded distribution of
the premier American craft beer Sierra Nevada
| would also like 1o thank The Chancellor for his
third consecuuve cut m beer duty which has
done much to reverse the damage done by the
dreaded duty escalator

Dmvidend

The Board s pleased to announce a final dvidend
of 10 20p (204 930p} per40p A and C ordinary
share and102p {2014 O 93p}per4p B ordinary
share Thiswill be paid on 27 juty 2005 to shareholders
on the share register as at 26 June 2015 The total
dvidend per share of 16 60p per40p A and C
ordmary share and | 66p per 4p ordinary share
represents a l0% increase on last year and will

be covered more than three umes by adjusted
earnings per share

/
dhatl Tomal
% /

Michael Turner
Chairman

4 June 2015
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At a Glance

Managed Pubs and Hotels

Tenanted Inns

The Fuller's Beer Company

Managed Pubs and Hotels are operated
by Fullers employecs and include

188 pubs and hotels Our acquisiions
are carefully rargeted towards prime
locations in market towns with our target
demographics high footfall locatnons in
transport hubs and wconic pubs in our
horne aty of London

Our estate 1s pnmarily in the South and
South East of the UK and includes 113 pubs
within the M25 We focus on lreshly
prepared seasonal food and an aspirational
premium drinks range, delivered with
excepuional service and 1n a stylish and
comfortable environment This year we
acquired The Stable, a craft cider and
gourmet pizza business, which operates
seven sites in the South West of the UK

The Tenanted Inns division has 203 pubs,
where the individual pubs are run by
self-employed entrepreneurs, who work
in partnership with us, selling our beer
and operating under the Fulers brand

We offer our tenants a high level of support,
including a variety of tools and services
10 help them grow their businesses

This includes a bespoke webstite

a property complance package

free WiF1 and subsichsed trairung for

ther staff

As Londons longest standing brewer,
we continually bring new products to
market whilst proudly brewing the UKs
Nol premium ale London Pride

We proacuvely develop our portfolic

of beers providing variety and interest
for consumers producing a different
seasonal ale every month

Cornish Orchards produces a range
of prermium award-winning ciders and
a range of distinctive soft drinks

We directly deliver our own beer and
ader as well as other drinks products to
our pubs and our free trade customers in
the South East Our customers value the
high quality service we provide

188

Managed Pubs and Hotels

203

Tenanted Inns

No.1

Premuum ale in the UK

4 Fuller Smirh & Turner PL C Annual Report 2015

Nikki Cooper Founder, The Stable

Nikki Cooper with husband Richard and brother

n law Andy founded The Stable in 2009 when they
decided to put to use a dilapidated outbuilding ac
their Bndport Hotel Focusing on an extensive range
of craft ciders and gourmet pizzas made wath local
ingredients the trio had six restaurants in 20M4 when
Fuilers took a 51% stake This investment will take
The Stable to a wider audience with two more
restaurants already open and exaiung groweh plans
for the future
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Nikki Cooper
Founder The Stable
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Reverend Andrew Downes
Curate St Nicholas Church
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Strategy and Progress

Distinctive Pub
and Hotel Experience

Targeted Acquisitions
and Developments

Premium
Brand Portfolio

Investing in
— Owr people

— Qur retall offer
— Behind the scenes
— Customer expenience

— Customer feedback

Targeted acquisitions and
developments in
— High footfall transport hubs

— lconic London pubs

— Affluent market towns

Focusingon
— Well invested equipment and processes

— Skilled brewers
— Constant innovaiion

— Putting flavour first

Progress in FY 2015

Progress in FY 2015

Progress in FY 2015

— Excellent ke for ke ("LFE) Managed sales up
6 3% dnven by a superior food oflering

— Tenanted LFL prafits up 5% - best performance
in a decade dnven by increased investment
In repars

— Newrecrutment website now live and attracung
best in class applicants

— Launched the Chef Schotarship Programme o
further disunguish our food offermg

— wo new rnverside pub developments
The Blue Boat Fulham Reach opened
March 2015 and One Over the Ait
Kew Bridge opened November 2014

— Acquired the icome pub The | larp Covent
Carden and five addional pubs {or 4 wotal
of £21 5 mullion

— Acyurred a majority investment in The Stable
to complement cur existing offenng

— Over t18 O mullion invested to sustain the
quality of our existing estate

— Successful launch of Olivers Island a new
golden cask ale

— Completed the mtegration of Sierra Nevada
with distnbunon more than doubled

— Westside Drnks making inroads to new
high end markets with Sierra Nevada Fronuer
and Cormish Orchards

— Secured new hisungs in on and off trades for
Fullers Cormsh Orchards and agency brands

Priorites for FY 2016

Prioninies for FY 2016

Prionues for FY 2016

— Continue 1o Invest through the business
cycle helping to dnive LFL sales growth
and gross margins

— bocus on developing our people 10 become:
managers and chefs of the future

— Integrate new sites and support The Stable
with systems and evolving its offer

— Development of The Sail Loft Creenwich

— Expanding The Stable operations 10 at least
12 ses m total

— Further refurbishments (o sustain qualty
or repos:r.lon properues

— Drive sales of Cornish Orchards and Fronuer
through all channels

— Conunue to build on successful London
Pride adverusing

— Capitalise on the Rugby World Cup

Market influence

Market influence

Market influence

Current consumer trends include a focus on
the provenance of food authentcity of brands
healthier options and good value

London and the South East continue 1o
outperform the rest of the UK market

Consumers increasingly want more interesting
choices and are prepared to pay a prermum
for authenuc quality craft products

Reverend Andrew Downes Curate,
StNicholas Church

The Reverend Andrew Downes 1s the curate of St
Nicholas church in Chiswick Its next door o the
Gnffin Brewery and was buile by Henry Smith one
of our founding fathers The church has launched an
appeal to raise £11 miTlion for a new organ and stone
work renovations and were doing our bit to help

It does help that Father Andrew s such a big fan

of London Pnde and a great supporter of Fullers

The Strategic Report encompassing pages 7w 31 was approved by the Board and signed on its behall

on 4 June 2015
&/ﬂ (ay 48
Stmon Emeny
Chtef Execunive

Saea Doy

James Douglas
Finance Drector
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Chief Executive'’s Review

It has been another year of excellent progress for the Company
and | am delighted to be reporting growth 1n all three areas of
the business. Our Managed Pubs and Hotels business continues
to outperform the industry, the Fuller's Beer Company

has seen growth in all channels and our Tenanted business

has had an outstanding year

We have a robust business model that has
continuously evolved over tme heeping us at the
forefront of our ndustry and praviding a base for
us 10 always look for new opportunities w keep
the business resh relevant and in a strong position
10 grow for the future These opportunitics have
10 camplement our overall vision to provide o first
class expenence for discerning customers

To that end we have bwilt on our acquisition

of Cornish Orchards Cider in 2013 with the
acquisition of a 5i% stake in The Stable a craft
cidur and gourmet pizza business This umgue
operation which compnsed six sies when we
inually invested 1s a perfect fit with our Company
Run by the mspirational founders, Richard and
Nikki Cooper we have already opened more siles
and The Stable has an exciung future ahead

Fallowing our acquisiion of the UK distnbution
rights v 2014 we have more than doubled
distnbution of Sierra Nevada Tounded by

Ken Grossman in Chico Celifornia in 1979 Sierra
Nevada 1s another like minded farmly business
and 1s revered by the beer fraternny worldwide

It complements our own and agency ranges
offering yet another onginal and authentic brand
for customers both 10 our own pubs and the wider
free trade

All of this activity 1s supported by Lhe besi people
in the industry This year has seen a big advance
i the way we recruit Leam members for our pubys
and we have increased the investment we make
n traiming and developing our people across all
parts of the business This combination of a clear
strategy the flexibilbty and financial firepower

to take advantage of new opportuniues and

the recruitment development and retention

of excellent people will ensure Fullers continues
10 lead the market

Fuller's Inns

Fullers Inns has again led the Companys growth
wiih like for hike sales in our Managed Pubs and
Hatels nsing by & 3% and operating profic! growing
by 1% to £25 0 mullion (2014 £22 5 muthion) Our
Tenanted [nns have also had a fantastic year with
like for ike profits rising by 5% and average EBITDA
per pub rising by 5% We have long extolled the
virtues of having a balanced business and it

very pleasing to see both parts of the retail business
performing al a bigh level Atthe year end we had
188 Managed Pubs and Hotels and 203 Tenanted
Inns making a tolal estale of 391 sies

During the year we have added eight new sites to
our estate Two of these The Blue Boat on Fulham
Reach and One Over the Aiton Kew Bridge have
fantastic views across the River Thames while
The Windrmill in Porushead overlooks the Severn
Estuary We also took on the The Cromwell Arms
in Romsey and The Bull Hotel in Bridport which
added a further 29 bedrooms 1o our business and
we opened two more sies at Lransport hubs - The
Three Guineas an acquisition at Reading Station
and Londons Prde a new development at The
Queens Terminal (Termunal 2) Heathrow The eighth
site 18 d true icon — The Harp in Covent Garden

a former CAMRA Pub of the Year where we are
commutted (0 maintaning the wide and interesung
range of breweries represented on the bar

In addition we have invested a record amount in
our largest ever number of projects across our
exisung estate Over E18 millon has been invested
1n projects in both our managed and tenanted
businesses Of particular note 1s The Admizalty
the only pub on Trafalgar Square which we
opened on Trafalgar Day in October last year
The pub beauufully evokes the history and
hentage of its location and wath 1ts Ale & Pie
format 1s already proving very popular with
[.ondoners and tounsts alike

Tenanted like for hike profits

Managed hike for like sales

+5%

+6.3%

* Operating profil betore exceptional nems

8 Fuller Sruth & Turner PLC Annual Report 2015




‘Leowimﬂ' The best Team
i The wwéa/rﬁfz?.)

Simon Emeny
Chief Executive
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Chief Executive’s Review continued

My

T ller’s...
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Kate Ross

Manager One Over the Ait Kew Bridge
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Every pint of our Seafarers Ale bought
helps rase money for Seafarers UK.

a chanty viral to supporting the UK
manume commurity Last years sales
rased over £32 000 for the chanty

Managed Pubs and Hotels

Our Managed Pubs and | owels continue o
outperform the industry with another year of
strony like for hke growth of 6 3% generating total
revenues of £213 8 mullion (2014 £186 O niflion) -
an increase of 15% Our operating profits increased
by I1% 10 £25 O mullion (2014 £22 5 nmllion}
reflectung the Increased caputal investment in our
estate and 108 weeks of closure while these
redevelopments took place Next year, we intend
to continue this programme with an even greater
number of projects scheduled

Acquisitions and investment m our current pubs
have helped 1o realise our vision of creating and
operating stylish pubs with a focus on delicious
fresh cooked food and an excellent portfolio

of premium drinks Qur sales have increased

in all areas of the business - ke for like food sales
are up by 78% drinks sales are up 5 6% and
acommedation has nisen by 73%

The performance of cur Managed Pubs was
recognised by the industry at this years Publiican
Awards where we 1ook the title of Managed Pub
Company of the Year We also picked up a second
award in recognition of the high standard ol our food
and the way in which we train our chefs and work
with our suppliers In addiien we were recognised
for the quality of our capital Investment programme
at the Restaurant and Bar Design Awards where
both The Vintry at Cannon Street and the Tap on
the Line at Kew Gardens stauon picked up trophies
Finaily Londons Pride at Heathrows Ternunal 2 was
awarded the utle Best Desunation Opening at the
CGA, Peach Hero & lcon Awards

Dhgital markeung of both food and occasions

has increased durmg the year and we have had a
parucular focus on respanding to online feedback
We offer new customers who sign up to our
database a welcome email with a free pint on
offer and we are seeing opening rates of 70% way
above the norm Fullers was one of the very early
adopters of online table bookings in the pub
sector and combined with our dedicated events
sales team our managers have the tools they
need to attract diners and functions and the
customer has a simple and quick route to finding
and booking a suitable venue

Our food sales continue 1o be a key driver inour
Managed Pubs and Hotels Over the last four
years we have been improving the way we recruit
and train chefs and kitchen teams and this has
included the chef scholarship programme which
offers three levels aimed at developing the head
chefs of the future The programme has been very
well recened with 70 team members taking part
In at least one level in the last year - bringing the
total since the programme started in 2012 to over
200 We are one of the only companies where
everyone from the kitchen porter upwards
benefits from a training programme and this
year two of our head chefs were promaoted o
management roles as executive chets

This investment tn traiming extends right through
service food cellar and beer quality and even
coffee - where The Fields our one and only coffee
shop located in Faling provides a venue for banista
training We are now selling around | 2 milion cups
ot hot beverages every year and this has grown by
10% 1n the last year Our cotfee s alo available
Only at fullers and the blend was chosen by the
coffee masters at Matthew Algie the gourmet
coffee roaster in conjuncuon with the Fullers
brewing manager Georgina Young

Working with our suppliers has also enabled us o
offer a series of master classes te our chefs on
topics from butchery to strawbernes This continued
commitment to fresh food cooked toa mgh
standard of taste and presentation developing our
people through formal training and informal sessions
with suppliers has resulted in higher customer
advocacy and sales growth We have also mproved
our food marketing with interesting campaigns
revolving around seasonal ingredients and flavours

Finally we also continued with our Oniy ar Fullers
range introducing a dehcious Sipsmiths Gin
Lemon Cake among other products Our
Londen Porter Smoked Salmon was available at
the Cheltenham Festival and during the year we
sold over 70000 Vintage Ale Suicky Toffee
Puddigs We also launched the Fullers Chip Off
to hind the best chips in our Managed Pubs - The
Piletin Chiswick 1s the current holder of this titie
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Kave Ross Manager One Over the Ait, Kew Bridge

Kate Ross joined Fullers three years ago as deputy
manager at the Turk s Head in Twickenham After
just 18 months she was appomnted to her first
management position Today Kate 1s the manager at
One Overthe At - 2 flagship nverside development
on Kew Bridge With two trading floors plenty of
outside seating and 4 team of 30 to support her

the future has never looked brighter

Fuller Smuch & Turner PL C Annual Reporc 2015 11




Chief Executive’s Review continued

The success of our pubs is totally dependem

on our people and this year we launched a new
recrurment website with full mobile optinusation
which we believe 15 a game changer in the hunt
to secure the best talent The online recruitment
process includes a situational jJudgement test that
idenufies people with a talent for exceptional
customer service The sysiem ensures that our
managers only Interview suitable candidares

and by hinng better we are already seeing team
members staying longer which we believe has
been a key driver of the significant increase in our
Net Prometer Score In the first 10 months of the
new recruitment website over 17000 completed
applications were recerved and over | 700 candidates
were hired

{nline with our growth | am particularly delighted
this year to see an increasing number of mternal
promotions both to general manager within our
pubs and also inio head office possions Having
the night people in the nghe places s the key to

a successful business Nowhere 1s this personified
better than in Gerry O Brien who has been the
manager of The Churchill Arms in Kensington
for 30 years We were dehghted this year when
he was nommnated for a Tounsm Superstar Award
by the Dady Mirror

Our acquisition of a 51% stake 1n The Stable in June
2014 was a new direcucn for Fullers although one
that had much in common with our viston and
ethos The Stable is a craft cider and gourmet
pizzabusiness based in the South West of England
Ithad at the time of ur investment six sites and
we opened nne more dunng the year - in Falmouth
inaddition we have opened a site In Plymouth
night on the Barbsean watertront since the year end

Exports

Asa Pacihc 704
Afnica 03%
North America 29%
South America 7340
Europe 5014
Middle East 34%

12 Futler Smuth & Turner PL C Annual Repert 2015

While the concept appeals to a younger more
female demographuc than our rradional estate
the commitment to quality fresh ingredients and
local produce 1s synonymous wath our exising
business We have already helped to grow this
brand by adding depth to the head office support
team and using our property expertise o dentify
new sites We now have agreed or completed
deals on six sites in Winchester Whitechapel
Southampton Cardiff Exeter and Chetienham
as well as moving from our existing location to

4 larger and more promunent site In Bath

We believe The Stable 1s a logrcal step in Fullers
evoluton following on from our acquisition of
Cornish Orchards The brand broadens our appeal
and exposure to growing parts of the marketina
way that 1s totally aligned to our commitment to
authenticity and guality Itis alse a ficung showcase
for the Cormish Orchards brands and for fullers
brands such as Fronuer Craft | ager There has
been some considerable up front investment bur
the potential for The Stable to dehver good returns
1n the future offers a great opportunity

Tenanted Inns

It has been a fantastic year for our Tenanted Inns
business with like for like profits nsing by 5% and
total profits nsing by 2% to £12 6 mullion (2014

£12 3million) Average EBITDA per pub has also
nsenby 5% with total EBITDA increasing by 2%
to £14 2 million (2014 £139 muliion) Three pubs
The Duke of York in Tunbndge Wells The Bear &
Ragged Staffin Romsey and Grand Central in
Brighton have been transferred to the managed
estate and two pubs have been sold

It has been a turbulent time for many tenanted
businesses and although we are well below the
500 pub threshold for Market Only Rent to become
a realiry we will be watching the changes (o the
market place with interest In the meanume

we continue to focus on building a strong and
supporuve partnership with our tenants and thisis
reflected m the fact thatalmost 0% ot our estate
15 ona substantive agreement and over 80% of
tenants are signed up for our service charge
package which provides a4 number of services
including health and salety workplace assessments
chimney flue mamtenance and fire nsk assessments

Cookie Severn & Wye Smokery

We teamed up with Richard Cook, or Cookie as hes
better known 1n 2012 He took a range of our beers
and decided to see what flavours they could create
when smoked with his excellent salmon Our
London Porter came out tops and now London
Porter smoked salmon is the beseselling starger in
our managed pubs and 1ts avatlable in Forinum &
Mason too




M
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Severn & Wye Smokery

Fubler Smich & Turner PL C Annual Reporc 2015 13

MIALIAQ l

P
7
.
E
=
(29

=

ANIBUIANON |

SIUAAIRIG [RIUEUL | |




Chief Executive’'s Review continued

Pippa Penny
Wine Development Manager
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Fullers Organic Honey Dew - the
UK's number one seling Organic Beer
- has been gven a more moderm ook,
with ighter colours 1o corvey natural
ingredients and the golden ale
description more visible 0 appeal

o awder audience

Prppa Penny, Wine Development Manager

Prppa started at Fullers in 2010 when she joined the
team at The Viniry a pub with an extensive hst of 160
wines as deputy manager She has now progressed
her love of grape by taking a head office role

bringing great wines 1o all our Managed Pubs One of
Pippas favountes 15 the Les Cents Verres Grenache

Rose - available Only at Fullers

Aswith any business the key (o success s altracung
and retaning the night tenants To provide betier
support o new tenants we have changed the way
we operate 50 our recruier also manages the
tenant relauonship for the first six months to add
some continuity (o the process New tenants are
given atenant mentor to help answer any questions
and our ever improving extranet provides helpfut
services such as menu templates and wine list
planning We also offer a free Wik service to

our Tenanted Inns and 92% of our tenants take
advantage of this service

We provide full craining and tenants have to
undertake a number of courses within the first six
months Two thirds of the cost of this is returned
to the tenants so long as they complete the
courses in the suggested umescale Well trained
tenants run more successful businesses
completing a virtuous circle

Qther tenant benefits that have recently been
intreduced include an improved website service
for thetr own pub websites and following the duty
cuts on alcohol in the last budget we immediately
passed all these duty savings on in full Our new
beers are proving popular with our tenants and
provide yet another point of difference for their pubs

In addinion by mvesung in our tenanted business
through our capital expenditure programme dunng
the recession our tenants are better placed o build
trade in a stronger economy and it 15 this jomnt
commutment {0 bullding successful sustainable
businesses that has resulted i a good financial
return for both the Company and the tenant

The Fuller's Beer Company

The Fullers Beer Company has also had a good
year with total beer and cicder volumes up 4%
and revenue up by 6% 10 £122 9 million (2014
£115 8 milion} Operating profu grew 2% 10

£87 mullion (204 £8 5 mulkon) after increased
marketing costs of €04 million Sales are up across
all channels and London Pride has seen volume
grow by 1% against a cask ale market decline of 4%
We have also won several awards increased sales
across our product range rebranded two of our
popular beers and launched Olivers Island an exciung
new golden ale

The London Pnide Made of London adverusing
camipaign entered phase four duning the year
which included a very success{ul media promotton
with the Evening Standard The package involved
a serles of Inmate events with celebrities such as
Blur bassist Alex James rugby legend Jason Lecnard
and D Jo Whiley with tickets available only
through the Evernng Standard The events were

a resounding success and 1t was supported with

a sertes of features on ordinary Londoners who
bring style interest and dedication w our Capital

This activity was supported by a poster campaign
across London and on tube platforms with iconic
photography and social media supporcsuch as
#DropOfPnde and #EmptyPmt The first of these
encourages offices and companies to put themselves
forward for a delivery of London Pride on the last
Friday of every month Recipients have compnsed
avarety of businesses including the set of
Deownton Abbey The #EmptyPint promonon was a
short term Twitter promotion where dnnkers who
tweeted a photo of their empty pint glass
immediately received a code o get a free pint It
was our most successful digwal campaign to date
and gained over {ive millan impressions and a
redemption rate of 54%

We were delighted when the Made of London
campalgn was recognised at the inaugural Beer
Marketing Awards [t picked up the prize for Best
Media Campaign - Pnnt as welt as the Grand Pnx
Award for the best overall marketing campaign
garnenng high praise from the judges in the process

Our orher beer brands have also fared well
Organic Honey Dew 15 the number one organic
ale in both on and off trade markets and we have
given 1t a more up to date look and Iivery with new
glassware 1o enhance (s orgaric credennials
Seafarers continues to sell well and over £37000
was raised duning the year for the Seafarers chanty
through sales of this beer Frontier also performed
well with sales and distnbution iIncreasing and the
brand contmues to be a firm favourite at numerous
frnd and music events as well as festvals in general
briaging Fuller s beer to a younger market Fronner
1 now aur second biggest brand in the UK

Cornish Crchards has seen cider sales nse dunng
the year with ncreased distnbution through new
trading channels in the on and off trades The
investments we have made in addiienal capacity
are now on stream and our ciders are picking up
awards including a gold medal tor Cormish Gold
atthe International Cider Awards
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Chief Executive's Review continued

The integrauon of Sierra Nevada has also proved
successful and sales are nsing The creation

of Westside Drinks as a stand-alone business
supported by Fullers 1o sell Fronuer and our
agency brands (o a very vibrant end of the marker
15 proving successful and we are Jooking forward
1o developing this further In addition our wine
business has also benefited from the long term
wend of better quality food in pubs and our free
trade wine sales have grown duning the year

Finally we also launched a new golden ale -
Olwvers Island Named after an island n the
Thames close to our Chiswick Brewery Olivers
Island has had a very good imual reception and 1s
sellng better than our most opurmistic forecast
Olwvers Istand 1s brewed with golden malt orange
peel and floral and citrus hops and 15 supported
with eye-catching branding and bespole glassware

Final Salary Scheme

We ciosed our final salary pension scheme (o new
members in August 2005 Dunng the year the
Company concluded a penod of consultation
with the Trustees and Members of that scheme
As a result the scheme closed 1o future accrual
with effect from | January 2015 The closure
resulted in a one off curtament gain of £l 2 million
in the year which has been recognised as an
exceptional item

Current Trading and Prospects

The new financial year has got off ro a good start
with solid sales for the nine weeks te 30 May 2015
Like for like sales in our Managed Pubs and Hotels
have nisen by 5 5% and like for like profits n our
Tenanted Inns have nsen by 2% Beer and aider
volumes have decreased by 2%

Since the year end we have purchased The Kings
Head in Earls Court Village and opened a new sie
for The Stable on the waterfrontin Plymouth We
are locking forward to opening another riverside
pub The Sail Loft on Greenwich Reach later this
year and we have plans to open at least another
four sites for The Stable

We have launched phase {ive of the Made of
London campaign for Lendon Pnde and used our
passion for quality and the brewers daily tasting of
London Pride at 12 noon to launch # Tweetal2
Thus latest social media promouon offered cur
fans a chance 1o tweet between 1200 and 1212 to
receve a pint of London Pnde with our compliments

We have taken on new companies new brands
and new (deas over the lasi 1wo years andwhile
they have all started well the best s yet 1o come
We are looking forward 1o compleung the
integration of these new businesses and bullding
for our furure We will alse continue ta invest
heavily in our existing pub estate and develop
our range of brands

We have a successful business model interesting
fledgling opponuniues a first class predonunately
freehold estate a team with passion and abiluy
and a very healthy balance sheet This gives me
confidence that we will continue to deliver strong
results for our customers our employees and

our shareholders

Semon
Simon Emeny
Chiet Executive

4 June 2015

Beer Company total beer & cider barrels

Capital expenditure

348,400 +4%

£56 9m-+49%
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Fulters brand new Golden Ale Olvers
Island 15 a harmorwyof curus floral hops
and golden malt Drawing inspiration
from a local landmark less than three
miles from the brewery it was launched
at the opening of the Blue Boaton
Fulham Reach in March 20i5and s
already proving popular

Joe Clarke The Sun, Richmond

Joe and wife Margy have been the tenants at

The Sun for 30 years and over these years the pub
has become synonymous with rughy Notnp ro
Twickenham 15 complete without a pint or two in
The Sun Jason Leonard even donated his first ever
professional pay cheque to adorn the pub s walls
Margys BBQs served in the pubss exceptional beer
garden are Just as legendary and help sausfy the
appeates of the rughy fratermuty




@) Fuller’s...
eer, BBAs and bovﬂ"e/rows m«ﬁb@ éoz?s

Joe Clarke
The Sun Richmond
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Financial Review

(%W@form long Term.”

James Douglas
Finance Director
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Our operating profits before exceptional items grew
by 6% and EBITDA increased by 8%. Year end net debt was
£162 6 million and the pro forma net debt ratio was 2.7 times.

TheVintry picked up the lmbibe 2015 Short Wine
Listof the Year award The list features 30 of the
pubs vast range which totals 160 on the full wine st
This commitment to great wanes for our managed
and tenanted pubs s supported bya speciabistin
house wine team

Our Operatng Results

We have grown revenue by 12% on the prior year
with the majority of the growth dniven by strong
Iike for like trading wathin the Managed and
Tenanted estate Our operaung profits before
exceplional items grew by 6% to £42 3 mullion
{2014 £399 million) with the largest contribution
to growth agatn coming from the Managed Pubs
and Fotels dwvision Total EBITDA increased by 8%
to £58 7 millon {2014 £54 5 mullion)

Finance Costs

Despite our net debt level increasing sigmificantly
to £162 6 million (2014 £139 8 million) our net
finance costs hefore exceptional items increased
only marginally from £5 8 malhon to £59 milkon
This 15 a result of the terms of our new hank loan
lacihues and the impact of conunuing histonedl
low interest rates allowang us to achieve low
mlerest rates on our vanable rale debt, and
includes £0 2 mullkon of arrangement lees on the
previous [acilities that were written off in the year
Further details of the new arrangements are
included befow The netinterest expense on our
defined benefit pension scheme 1s shown as an
exceptional item as the charge 1s dnven by market
condittons and 1s not associated with our underlying
trading Our blended cost of borrowings has
decreased to 2 9% due 1o low rates on the vanable
rate poruon of our debt We expect this blended
rate of Interest to merease marginally in the commg
year as Interest rates begin (o rise and we conlinue
to pay down our cheaper vanable rate borrowing

Exceptional ltems

Net exceptional costs before tax of £0 3 million
compnsed £0 8 million profit on property disposals
£12 mitkon relaung to the pension fund curtaliment
gain offset by £1 2 mullion of acquisition costs
expensed £0 3 nllion of onerous lease charges
and a net interest charge on our pension deficit
of £0 8 million The curtailment gam relates to the
January 2015 closure 1n of the defined benefic
pension plan to future accrual Thisisa one off
reduction in the year end pension deficit After
excepucnal items, profit before tax was therefore
£36 I milion {2014 £33 5 mithon}

Tax

A full andlysis of the tax charge for the year s sctout
In note 7 to the financial statements Tax has been
provided lor at an effecuve rate of 21 74 (2014

23 2%)on adjusted profits The overall effectve tax
rate of 21 6% benefits from non taxdble
exceptional iems The prior year effective tax rate
of 131% was impacted by the deferred tax credit of
£34 million relating to the stepped reduction in
the UK corporation tax rate from 23% down o 21%
from | Apnl 2014 and from 21% 10 20% on | Apnil 2015

Pensions

The deficit on the defined benelit pension
scheme mcreased by £7 2 million to £24 4 million
{2014 £172 mullien) This was principally driven by
the assumed discount rate applied to the long
term habihty decreasing from 445% to 3 25%
resulung in an increase in the calculated present
value of pension obligatiens from £I10 8 mullion to
£1279 milkon This was partly offset by a greater
than expected return on the plans assets resulting
In an increase in the fair value from £93 6 milion
10 £103 5 nullion Deficrt recovery payments of
£0 8 million were made duning the year

Shareholders’ Return

Adjusted earnings per share was 10% higher than
last year at 51 51p (2014 46 94p) The proposed
final dvidend of 10 20p per 40p A ordinary share
togetherwith the intenm dividend of 6 40p per
share already paid makes a total of 16 60p and
compares with a total dividend of 15 10p last year
The total dvidend per share has grown by 10%
and will be covered 3| umes by adjusted earnings
per share (2014 31 umes) Shareholders equityat
the year end was £284 8 million

During the penod 291 500 A ordinary 40p
shares and 3558 009 B ordinary 4p shares were
repurchased into treasury for a total of £6 2 million
(2014 445819 A ordinary shares for £4 2 million}
In addicion 72 500 A ordinary 40p shares and
248 089 B ordinary 4p shares were purchased

for €39 million by oron behalf of the Trustees

of the Share Incentive Plan and the LTiP Trustees
to cover future ssuance {2014 69 000 A shares
414 854 B shares and 5000 C shares for

£11 mulhion} The average pnice paid was 959 5p
per A ardinary 40p share The middle-market
quotation of the Compdny s ordindry shdres
atthe end of the inanctal year was 1020p The
highest pnee dunng the year was 1035 0p while
the lowest was 882 5p The Company s miarkel
capitalisation at 28 March 2015 was £ 569 4 mullien
(2014 £5079 million)
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Financial Review continued

Cash Flow

Cash flow 2('2151 QOS‘L:
EBITDA 587 545

Interest 52 (53
Tax {8 3} 89
Working capital and other 25 49
Cash ovailable for discretionary spend 477 461

Capiiol expenditure on estate (230} {16 4)
Acquisittons* (27 3) {17 6}
Pub development {6 0} 14 1)
Acquistion costs and ather excephional tems pad {17} 2y
Property disposals 33 26
Dividends and share ransachons (14 9} {11 8}
Cash flow 219 13 3}
MNen cash movement {09 09
Net debt movement (22 8) 4 2

Includes acquired debton acquisibon of The Stable and purchase of Trecholds In the priorvear thisinduded acquired debron

the acquisstion uf Corrish Qrchards Lemited

Cash available for discretionary spend was

£477 million {2014 £461 milon) The increase was
largely due to increased EBITDA and posiuive
movements in working capital mainly due to the
uming of payments around the year end Group
net debtincreased from E139 8 mullion at the
start of the year to £162 6 mulion as a result of
acquisitions and the continued investment in our
wxisting estate Our capital spending ncreased Lo
£563 mittion (2014 £38 | million) This included
the acqusition of The Stable {including k0 6
mullon of assumed debis) and adding eight new
pubs 1o our estate {exclusive of acquisition fees
and stamp duty}- Londons Pride at Heathrow
Terming! 2 The Blue Boat Fulham Reach

The Windmill Porushead The Harp Covent
Garden, The Cromwell Arms Romsey The
Three Guineas Reading The Bull Hotel

Bridport and One Over The At Kew Bridge We

have invested sigruficantly in the refurbishment of
ourexiung estate - The George IV Chiswick The
Duke of York and The Admuralcy Trafalgar Square

Asset disposals raised a total of £3 3 milhon and
we recorded an excepuional gain on disposal of
£0 8 million which was largely attributable to the
disposal of a single property EBIIDA increased
by 8% to £58 7 million {2014 £54 5 mullion) The
increased capital spend was financed through the
incremental EBITDA and drawing on our new
bank facihties This has resulted in the pro forma
net debt ranio increasing shghtly to 2 7 times
(2014 2 5 umes) This Jevel of debt allows us
conunucd flexibrlity o investin future oppontunitics
as they anse

Sources of Finance
Sources of finance 205: 20&!:1
Bark debt 1400 1162
Other debi 277 277
Cash (51} {41}
Total net debt 1626 139 8
Avalable committed facilihes 590 335
% total borrowings fixed/hedged 75% 78%
Net debt/EBITDA 27x 2 5x

Durning the year the Group successfully arranged
new 180 O mulhon bank loan facihties and a further
£20 0 mullon one year fixed term loan The new
£180 0 million faciities have a five-year term
expinng in August 2019 have no amortisation
requirements and provide £30 O mulhion of
addiwonal funding over and above the former
arrangements which expired in May 2015
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£105 0 nullion of our berrowings are hedged

af which £650 million 1s swapped ar a blended
interest rate of 18% (excluding bank margin)and
£20 0 million 1s subject to a cap of 4 0% This cap
expires In August 2015 In December 2014 we
entered into a further interest rate cap arrangement
for £200 mulhon a1 21% from 201510 2020 The
Interest rate swap agreement in place will allow us

L0 conunue Lo borrow a potuon of our bank deb
at 4 fined nterest rate unul 2022 The Groups
financing 1s 4 mix of bank debt debentures
cumulauve preference shares overdraft cash and
short term deposits as disclosed in notes 22 24
and 26 Other financial assets and habilines such
as {rade receivables and payables anse through
the Groups operating activities The Group does
not trade in financial instruments The Group 1s
able to operate with negative working capital -
rrade and other payables were £20 9 million
greater than the aggregate of inventories and
trade and other recevables at the year end
(2014 £17 2 rulhion greater)

Financial Risks and Treasury Policies
The Group Treasury Team consssts of the Finance
Direcror and the Group Financial Controller
The objectives of the lredsury keam are to
manage the Groups financial risk to secure cost
effective funding for the Groups operations and
to minimise the adverse effects of fluctuations in
the financial markets on the value of the Groups
financial assets and liabilives on reporied
profitability and on the cash flows of the Group
The Group Treasury Team monitors the overall
level of financial geaning weekly with our short
and medium rerm forecasts showing underlying
levels of gearing which remain within our targets

Going Concern Statement

The financial posttion of the Group including the
various sources of finance available and its cash
flows have been described herein In addition
note 26 1o the financial statements includes
detarled disclosure on the Group s objectives
policies and processes for managing its capital
its financial risk management objectives detalls
of 1ts financial mstruments and hedging actvities
and its exposures to oredic and hquidity nsk

The Group ts vertically integrated 1s diversified
across a wide range of sales channels and ts strongly
cash generative We have performed well throughout
the recent economic cycles Our financial position
15 strong as we have always borrowed prudently
We had approximately £59 O mullion of undrawn
bank facilities in place at the year end which 1~
considered more than sufficient to mect cash
flow requirements over the coming 12 months

On the basis of current financial projections

and having considered the facilities avalahle

the Directors are confident that the Group and
Company have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable tuture
Accordingly the Dircctors consider that ites
appropridic (o conlinue mddnpl the going
concern basis of accounting In prepanng the
financial statements

s W)

James Douglas
Finance Director

4 June 2015




(EMMM That every

Bemard Kulwaz
The Hereford Arms South Kensington

)
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

In the course of its normal business the Group
continually assesses and takes action 10 mitigdte 1o be the pnncipal nsks which affect the Group
the various nsks encountered that could impact at present although 01s not intended ro be a

the achievernent of its objectives As detailed inthe  comprehensive analysis of all the risks that the
Corporate Covernance Report there are systems  business may face Inaddiuon the key financial
and processes in place to enable the Board 1o risks to the Group are detatled in note 26¢ to the
monitor and control the Groups management financial statements

of sk The Audit Commuittee regularly reviews

the effectiveness of this process and seeks to

ensure that managements response 15 adapred

appropnately 1o the changing environment

The followang sets out what the Board considers

Risk Mitigation and Monitoring
Regulatory Risks

Fullers operates in a tughly regulated sector where government legislation We carefully monicor legislative developments and review sales trends and
controfs much of the way we do business and therefare the business model  consumer habits to gauge the impact on our business

Any significant changes in policy could lead to a sudden change or the long
term dechine of the business The Lwo key areas of consderation arc the
regulation of the sale of alcoho! and the Beer Tic

We parucipate in Industry initiatives aimed at the responsible promotion
and retailing of alcohol

We have diversified our offering to include soft drinks coffee focd and
accommodation to reduce our reliance on alcohol based revenue

We continue o monitor ongoing dialogue between the government
and mdustry bodies Qur directors are members of key industry bodies
and commitlees

The industry maintains a voluntary code of practice with tenants which

15 regularly reviewed and updated 1n consultation with numerous pub
companics and industry groups Tullers operaies an internal code of
pracuce that 1s more ngorous than the current mdustry cede Lo ensure
the transparency and openness of our Tied agreements We also provide
marketng traning and promotienal support to help tenants run profitable
and long term businesses

Enforced changes to our ued arrangements by the Government would
necessitdie changes to our business madel with higher property rents
and lower prices for the supply of drinks bung charged

Health and Safery

The health and safety of the Groups employees and customers 1s a key
concern (o us We are required Lo comply with health and safety legislauon,
including fire safety and feod hygiene Operating a large number of houses
and sites increases the complexity of ensuring the highest health and salety
standards are adhered to at all umes

A Health and Safety Commitiee oversees the operauon of the Groups
heallh and safety policies and procedures and regularly updates its policies
and traming programime to ensure all nsks are identified and properly assessed
and that relevant regulauon 1s adhered to We report and invesugate all
acadents and near musses

In aur Managed Pubs and Flotels we have automalic fire suppression systems
in most of our kiiehens ta reduce fire nsk

All staff receve food hyglene traming as standard and regular kitchen
audits/chechs ensure they comply with the standards expected from them
Qualicy assurance checks on our core suppliers ensure hygiene scandards
have been adhered to before produce even reaches our hiichens

Loss of premium posiiion

The Group operdles in 4 premium market for both Fuliers Ians and
The Nullers Beer Company This posiueming is key to the success of the
husiness and the achievemient of the Groups strategic goals The loss of
the position would have a significant impact on the Groups business
madel and {inancial performance

This strategy has been agreed by the Board and communicated o key
senor stalf in the Company In addimon the Executve Committce approves
all significant new product development and acquisition decisions and
therefore controls key changes ta the Group

There 15 a customer complaints system to track and monitor the perception
ot our products and houses in the market place to ensure we are meeting
our prermium positon
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Risk

Mitigation and Monicoring

GCriffin Brewery Sie

The Groups headquarters and sole brewing facility are based at the Griffin
Brewery ute m Chiswick A disaster at this site would seriously disrupt
operations which would impact on the profitability of the Company

We take vanous measures to mitgate the impact of such an event We contunually
maonitor hre safety and investin capital progects to reduce the risk o tailure

We store recipes and yeast off-site and have informal arrangements in place
to use alternative faciliues

Brands and Reputation

Fullers has a wide portfolio of brands and has established an excellent
reputation in the market Principally there 1s a risk thar the Groups beer and
food offerings could become contaminated at source or outlet which could
damage the reputation of the brand and deter customens

he Group reduces product contamination risks to an acceptable level by
ensuring that the busmess 1s operated to the highest standards by maintaining
tong term relationships with supphers and by sigrificant investment in
security quality control and clearing The Group has in place product recall
procedures together with msurance coverage 1 the event of contarminaton
In addition the Croup runs dn active and continuous traming programme
covening dll aspects of the pub operstions and provides its pubs with on site
technical support

Information Technology

The Group 1s increasingly rellant on 1Ls information systems (o operdie on
adanly basis and trading would be affected by any sigmficant or prolonged
faure of these systems

The data held by the Group 15 4 key business asset and personal data
protecuon 1s key Any significant loss of data could lead o o considerable
interrupuion for the business and fines

To munsmise this risk the 1T function hes a range of laciities and cantrols

In place o ensure that in the event of an 1ssue normal operation would be
restored quickly These include a formal Disaster Recovery Flan on-line
rephcation of systems and data to a third party recovery facility and external
support for hardware and software

The IT systers in place follow approprate date protection guidelines to ensure
the nisk of both personal and Comipany dald (05815 4l an acceplable level

Loss of Key Management and Staff

The Group have a number of key staff who are crincal (o 1ts success and
therefore there 1s a nsk that if a number of these individuals were to leave
at the same ume 1t may nsk the delivery of the Groups strategy

The Group performs detaled succession planning to ensure that key
roles are considered to ensure appropniate cover 15 avarlable In addinon
the remuneration policy 1s set up o ensure the key members of staff
are appropriately remunerated so they are not attracted to other
compeiitor businesses

Loss of Company Values or a Falture to Adhere to Them

Fullers is a company based on a strong set of values which are key to s
success and future Should these be undermined or not adhered to the
Companys urigue postiion and fong term future would be jeopardised

The Company has a unique culture due to 1ts share structure and history
which ensures business decistons are taken for the iong term benefit of
the Company

This culture also promotes a long term and collaberative approach that
does not lead to excessive nisk raking

The share structure of the Company and Famly shareholder representation
on the Board and mvolvement i the Companys management ensure the
values are maintained and followed Dissupuve and short-term third parties
cannot eastly gain significant holdings and influence
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Corporate Social Responsibility

@)ﬁw&ws
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Dave Evans
Trainee Brewer
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Doing things the right way 1s a key value at Fuller’s and,
to that end, good corporate social responsibility has always

been a part of our culture.

Fronuer has been gaming new fans on
the summer festival aircurt and 15 now
our second biggest brand nthe UK.

Dave Evans Tramee Brewer

fust over four years ago Dave was in a job wath lirmined
opportunines for promouon - and he was a dedicated
lager drinker Luckily he regularly played football
with one of the managers at the Gnffin Brewery
who suggested a job in brewing Daves not looked
back since Hes now got a whole new career and his
taste buds are celebrating too

We have a strong commument to our people and
we celebrate the indwiduality of our pubs and the
wady they involve themselves in theirimmediate
neighbourhoods We are very aware of the
erviranmental impadct of pur business and work
both internally and with our suppliers to miugate
this where passible Finally, as a Compeany with a
long tustory we have a duty 1o protect the
heriLage of which we are the custodians

Community

Pubs are the heart ot commumty fundraising - and
Fullers pubs are no exception We have two main
chanties that are benchiuanes of our day 1o day
activitics - Scafarers and Shooting Star Chase
The Seafarers chanity continues to benefit from
sales of Gdles Sealarer a beer we have brewed
since our ecquisiiion of Gales in 2005 We donate
£5 per barrel 10 the chanty which uses 1 10 benedit
altthose with a link 1o the sea and salbng L ast year
we raised over £32 000 from sales of this beer
and 1t has just had a makeover with a new look
pump chip and glassware so we hope to see this
amount nise further in the coming 12 months

Qur other main chanty 1s Shooting Star Chdse
This 15 a childrens hospice chanty that cares for
over 600 fanulies kving in West Lendon Surrey
and West Sussex For every chmldrens meal we sell
In 93 of our managed pubs we donate 30p to the
chanity and this year we have donated just under
£35000 In additen we support the chanty with
events for its fundraisers and wath other events
during the year

Some of our pubs got behind activities o rase
awareness about ways to help customers with
Parkwnsons Everyday actvities can become a real
trial for people affected by the condinon and
around 50 staff members across three pubs took
part In an awareness session to understand the
symptoms and how they could adapt their service
to make these guests more comforiable The
session was well received and 1t1s an area we will
be looking at further

Its not justour pubs that are excellent at supporting
good causes though The Brewery continues to
support arange of local charines in Chiswick and
Horndean as well as other organisations across a
wide range of activities such as medical chanties
histonc buildings and chanties for those affected
by alcohol Fullers 1s also continuing its support for
the Harmmer Cancer Walk - a 10 km walk to raise
money for the cancer care unit at Hammersmith
Hospital Long term support 1s a key element of
our community activities = we have supported
the HHammer Cancer walk for 19 years rasing over
£l mdlion and eur support for the Surrey Cricket
League and the Head of the River Vs rowang
event has been conuinuous in both cases for aver
wo decades

We also supply hundreds of brewery tour vouchers
each year for school fetes and other fundraising
events We have continued to provide a regular
denatton of free beer to the Hospial of St Cross
almshouse and we provide sponsorship to cnsure
the conunudtion of a number of runming races
carnivals and local actmvties linally we ronstated
the popular Pnde and Passion Open Day in 2014
when we throw open our doors e local residents
and visnors |l proved very successful and we will
be repeaung the evenl on 5 beptember 2015
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Corporate Social Responsibility continued

Responsible Retailling

Fullers has always beheved that a well-run pub s
the home of responsible drinking and we are
clearly seeing that the purpose of visiting a Fullers
pub 1s as likely o be for feod or a coffee as s for
an alcohohc drink ‘We are signatories to the
Governments Responsibility Dealand regularly
update on progress (o our comritments

We do take our role as a retaller of alcohol senausly
and we are acuve members of the Briush Beer
and Pub Association and the Briush Inststute of
Innkeeping Fullers s also a supporter of Drinkaware
- the government sponsored trust that aims o
promote responsible drinking and help reduce
alcoho! misuse and alcohol related harm

Across the Company, we have invested heavily in
training - and our bar stalf training snchudes details
of iniatives such as the Challenge 21 scheme

10 prevent underage dnnking and of course how
to polnely refuse those who have had too much te
dnink These measures are audited throughout the
year via unannounced test purchases

This year also saw the arrival of allergen labelling
and we have introduced 4 very tharough setof
procedures processes and Lratming (o ensure

we are providing the correct information for
customers We have worked with our suppliers
and our Star Chefl system which includes a menu
database to give our chefs a safe and simple way
of ensuring thar we know the allergens for any
new dishes and combinations We also have an
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environmental health consultancy on a retained
basis so we can tmmediately and thoroughly
investigate any allegations of food powsoning and
take corsective acton swiftlyif necessary

People

Being part of the family underpins much ol the
way we work at Fullers and stis evident throughout
the business Many employees stay with Fullers
for much of their working life as demonstrated
every year by the numerous recipients of our

long service awards

To meet our strategic ams we require « highly
motivated and talented workforce who are fully
engaged and share our passion for quality and
customer service The Lraining and development
of our people 1s paramount We launched our
Craduate Programimes in 2011 and these have
gone from strength to strength Increasingly
Fullers 1s being viewed as a place for talented
gracuates to develop snto the leaders of the future
and our 2015 programmes attracted over 1000
appheations We are now reaping the benefits of
these programmes The 201l and 2012 graduate
intakes are now working in theur first or second
substantive roles within our marketing sales and
operalions teams

Fullers other development programmes suppors
a career journey from apprenticeship o general
managenment In September we launch our
Learming to Lead programme which aims to turn
the best team members iNto supervisors

Syhvia La Porte Corporate Relationship Manager
Shooting Star Chase

Fullers has been working with Shooung Star Chase
for three years helping to raise money for chikren
with hfeimiong condinons This amazing chanty
provides bespoke support free of charge to families
from diagnosts (o end of hfe and throughout
bereavement Its locally based and last year Fullers
donated st under £35000




(?. Fullers...
H Wow, The LW%
W ~limiting co

Sytvia La Porte

Corporate Relatnionship Manager Shooting Star Chase
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Corporate Social Responsibihity continued
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Gavm Stnden
The Castle Harrow
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Carbon repotting

52 weeks

ended

28 March 2015

Fuel type CO, tonnes

Electney and gos 29,504

Petrol and diesel 1,189

Total 30,693
CO; emnussions per

£100,000 of turnover 986

52 weeks

ended

29 March 2014

Fuel type CO, tonnes

Elecinciy and gas 27,493

Patrcl and diesel 1126

Total 28619
COy emissions per

£100,000 of turnover Q@

The greenhouse gas intensity rato for each year
15 caleulated by dividing our total CO; emissions
(in metric tonnes) by our annual turnover (in

£100 000s) Our totdl CO, emissions are derved
from the clectricity and gas consumpron of both
our Managed pub estate and the Gniffin Brewery
plus ermissions lrom all companyvehides including
company carsVehicle emissions are calculated
from the data gathered by our fuelcard supplier

Gavin Sinden The Casde Harrow

Gavins love of cooking 1s nspired by hus nan After
working in two Michelm-starred establishments

on the South Coast. Gavin jomned Fullers at the
Wykeham Arms in Winchester - a pubwith a very
good food reputation Hes now bought hus passion
and skill to the London suburbs and has taken up
ressdency at the Castle in Harrow With chus talent
itwont be long before the pub 1s more famous than
the school

Qur general manager development programme
conunues o grow the best dssistant mandagers
Into new keaders for our pub estate Around 50%
of the general managers in our managed pub
estate are now home grown Qur three chef
scholarships which will develop talented chefs
from comms chef to head chef positions are also
going from strength to strength with numbers
developed due to double 1n May 2G15 This has
also inspired many of those who join as kitchen
porters to develop their skills further and we will
nurture this desire wherever possible Our Service
Coach network s also building momentum with
over 100 Lead Service and Service Coaches
working throughout our business championing
service at house level

We are committed to developing our home
grown talent and providing structured career
paths for our most talented people The numbers
who have completed or are progressingon a
development programme 1s now 1n the hundreds
and we intend to grow this further Fullers has alse
rased the traning bar with significant Investment
ina programme for the sales team and a full
caining calendar now in place tor managers
throughout the head office and brewery funcoen

We value loyalty very highly and offer a range of
benefits to encourage employees to take a stake
in the Companys leng-term success such as the
Save As You Earnscheme and Share Incenive
Plan We also endeavour to recognise great
efforts with the 100 club a select group of team
members in our pubs and hotels who have
exceeded our customer service expectations
and through the use of Caught i the Actscratch
cards to provide an mstant award to team
members who are exhibiung any one of our

Five Golden Rules of service

Environment

A commitment to reducing energy consumption
15 a key philosophy for Fullers and we conunue to
explore new and improving technologies to achieve
this Through weekly consumpuon reports
guidance on energy saving reward incentives
acompetitive element and operational visibility
we contnue to reduce electricity consumption
with usage down by 3% and gas consumption
down 6% on average In participating pubs

We conunue to roll-oui LED lighung and are
seemng significant energy and carben savings
cembmed with benefits due to managers
spending less tme changing bulbs

We have also contunued to convert houses

w0 walerless uninals whenever tollet areas are
refurbished and food waste recychng has been
implemented in every house where there 1s
space for additional bins

Within the Brewery we have been working

on auto-dimming hghting around the sitc and
we are laoking at a further effluent reduction
project Arecent audit carried out by our trade
assoclauon the Briush Beer and Pub Assoclaucn
reported Lthal we were on wop ol our energy
management - bul there 1s sull more Lo be done
We also conuinue to ensure that the by-products
of brewing are reused wherever possible in
particular for the producuon of Marmite or as
armmal feed

We are fulfiling our Energy Savings Opportunity
Scheme { ESOS Jeommitment reporung
regularly on our nergy consumplion 4cross

the business Through working with our ESOS
consulcants we will continue to idenufy
opportuniues to make furcher energy savings
and further reduce our carbon footpring

Supphers

1t1s no longer enough to examine the soual
impact of our own business = we have to consider
that of our supplicrs o and we Lxeeute our
responsibility by ensuning the products we source
are sustanable and where possible local

We look to build long term relavienships Itis our
belief that this stability allows our suppliers to
sensibly invest (n and protect thetr businesses

For example we have contracts with our hop and
barley farmers bath to securc our own supply and
Lo give the farmiers the confidence to imvest i the
future In addiion we consider the human nghis
health and safety and other ethucal measures of
our supplers when making our buying decisions
All suppliers are required 1o provide us with a
copy of their Corporate and Social Responsibility
policy and we look for these with similar values

[0 our own
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Corporate Social Responsibility continued

Wherever possible our menus will reflect the
seasonality of local produce and we uy o buy
Briush All our chips are from Briush Farmers and
our fresh meat 1s sourced from within the UK
through trusted butchers with a fully raceable
supply chain Our eggs meet Lion Qualty
standards and again all come from British farms
We have also just signed up as member of the
Sustainable Seafood Coalition

We conunue to source only Fair Trade coffee and
we support UK food iniatives such as the New
Forest Marque and Hampshire Fare

Aswe become a igger player on the global stage
we have inied 1o ensure Lhat we have sensible
supplier arrangements in place To this end we
have a keg arrangement with Sierra Nevada in
the US for which we are the UK importer This
arrangement avolds the transportation of empty
kegs by ensuring that we use the same kegs that
rake Cswick brewed Fullers beers to the US

to bring US-brewed Sierra Nevada back across
the Atlantic

Heritage

As we celebrate our 170th year our hentage really
15 top of our munds We are now the oldest brewer
in London and we carry the weight of this history
with pride We conunue to investin the fabric of
our historic building and we sull suppert many
other orgamsauens that form part of that nch
tistory - for instance Chiswick House Hogarths
House and St Nicholas Church which 1s adjacent
to the Brewery and was rebuilt by our founding
father Henry Smmith in the late 1800s

Qurwisteria - the oldest in the country - sull
atrracts many visitors when 1t blossoms in April
and although a much more recent addition to
the Chiswick landscape we have been acavely
involved In supporung a replantng programme
on the Hogarth Roundabout in front of the
Brewery site

During the year we have also been fortunate

enough to take on some fantastc heritage pubs

including The Harp in Covent Carden and the

Admiralty on Trafalgar Square The latter has been

redesigned in tnbute to the trumphant Admiral

Nelson under whose shadow the pub sits We

even purchased an onginal Napoleonic cannon to

sitwithin the pub and it s nowa favourile among  sheepa great year for our Botlie

the Square s visitors Cannons featured again Condiuoned beers - [845, 2014 Viniage
when we sponsored the restoration of one of the Ale and Bengal Lancer ook the Coild
cannons that forms part of the Waterloo Battery Sibver & Bronze sweep at the CAMRA
atthe Tower of London London & South East Beerof Brtan

The Harp located just off Trafalgar Square on the  Awards for bottied condiioned beer
edge of Covent Garden 1s a former CAMRA Pub
of the Year and there was much rumour following
Fullers acquisition that the pub would change
forever We have proved the lengths we will go 1o
protect a pub s hentage by carrying out an
incredible non-refurbishment This involved
removing all the artefacts including hundreds of
heer mats) from the walls repamnuing and repainng
the bullding and paintwork and then putting
everything back just as we had found it
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Dave Hay Manager The Red Lion Whitehall

When we refurbished the Red Lion in Whitehall
Dave Hay took on a pub that really 1s ac the heart of
politics Local resident George Csborne came and
cut the opening nbbon for us and the pub even has
1ts own Dvision Bell When the belirings the MPs
put down their pints and pies and rush back to the
House to vote on matters of state Like all Daves
customers though - they soon come back




My Fuller’s...
(Cow’ﬁfoﬁéwﬂ wurudy, MP<.’

Dave Hay
The Red Lion Whicehall
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Board of Directors

¥ Alastair Kerr 7 lanBray

2 John Dunsmore 8 Lynn Tordham

3 Richard Fuller 9 Jonathon Swaine
4 James Douglas 10 Sir James Fuller Bt
5 Michael Turner 11 Severine Garnham
6 Simon Emeny

32  Fuller Smuth & Turner PL C Annual Repart 2015




Michael Turner
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Committees

Stmon Emeny
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Expenience

James Douglas
FINANCE DIRECTOR

Expenence

Chatrman of the Nomunatuons Commutice

Experience

Aged 63 Joined In1978 A Chantered Accountant
with international expenence ninally ran the Wine
Drmision as Wine Director Appointed Marketung
Director n 1988 Managing Director m 1992
Chief kxecutive in 2002 and Chairman in 2007
Chawrman of the Briush Beer and Pub Association
2008 2010 Master of the Worshipful Company
of Virtners 2011 2012

Aged 49 Joined 1n 1996 from Bass pic where he
held a vanety of senior operdtiondl and strategic
planning roles Appointed Lo the Board as Retal]
Dhrector in May 1998 Managing Director, Fullers
Inns in July 2006 Group Managing Director in
November 2010 and Chief Executive in July 2013
Non-Executive Director of Dunelm Group ple
An Economics graduate and alumni of Harvard
Business School

Aged 49 Appainted n 2007 [rom LS hsted
telecoms operator Fibernet Group plc where

he was Finance Direclor Spent eight years with
Deutsche Bank as an investment banker Quialified
a5 a prize winning Chariered Accountant with
PricewaterhouseCoopers Holds a first degree

in Physics and a Master s degree in Econormics

Richard Fuller
CORPORATE AFFAIRS
DIRECTOR

Expertence

lan Bray
MANAGING DIRECTOR OF
THE FULLER'S BEER COMPANY

Expertence

Jonathon Swaine
MANAGING DIRECTOR
OF FULLER'S INNS

Experience

Aged 55 Jotned the Company in 1984 Appointed
a Divisional Director in 1992 and to the Bodrd in
December 2009 wath responsibility imually for
Salcs then adduonally Personnel Now responsible
for Corporate Affairs and Government Relations
A CMP Graduate of Harvard Business School

Aged 51 Appointed m 2011 Previously European
Marketng Director of Bunge S A o Switzerland-
based global kiuds and agnculiural business Has
held FMCG marketing and senior management
roles a1 both international and demestic level
working with comipanies such as Wngley Muller and
SmuthKline Beecham A Business Studies graduaie

Aged 44 Appainted to the Board in 2012 Joned
the Company in 2005 and appointed as Operations
Director for Pulless Inns ain 2007 1 las previously
held posiions at Carllon Communications amxd
Molson Coors An Ans graduate with o Masters
degree i Marketing and alumni of Columbia
Business School

Séverine Garnham john Dunsmore Lynn Fordham

COMPANY SECRETARY SENIORINDEPENDENT INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Experience Commuttees Commuittees

Aged 45 Appomted in 2014 after nearly ten years
as Group Company Secretary of Eurotunnel
Previously worked as a Sokcitor in private practice
and then as Company Secretary to various UK
and mniernauonal compames

Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Audit Cemmuttee
Member of the Nomsnations Committee

Expenence

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remunerauon Commuttee
Member of the Nominanons Committee

Experience

Aged 56 Appointed m 20009 Senior Non-
Executive Director Deputy Charman of Genus
Foods Ltd Founder and CEO of The Hothouse
Investment Club and Non-Executive Chairman
of Chapel Down Group plc Director of The
Cdinburgh Becr Factory Limited Former Chief
Executive of C&C Group ple and former Chief
Executive of Scotush & Neweastle ple pror to ts
takeover by Heineken and Carlsberg in 2008

Aged 52 Appomited m 200l Chief Executive of
SVG Capiral and Aberdeen SVG 1td Previous
appointments include CFO SVC Capial Deputy
CFO at BAA ple Director of Audit and Risk at
Boats Group ple and Finance. Director of ED & F
Man Sugar [n addiion she spent 10 years at Mobil
Qil tn @ number of financidl and aperauonal roles
predominantly mternationally An accountancy
gradudle and Charlered Accountant

Alastair Kerr
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Committees

Sir Jarmes Fuller Bt
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Experience

Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee
Member of the Audit Committee

Expenence

Aged 65 Appointed in 2011 Non-Executive
Director and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee at Havelock Furopa PLC Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the
Remunerauon Committee at Allance Trust

PLC Non Executive Director of Fenwack Ltd and
Steamer Trading Led and Chatrman of private
holdng company Drilion Led FHe is also @ Public
Member of Network Rail He has proviously held
senior roles at Mothereare and Kwik-Fit and was
Managing Director of Europe Middie East and
Afnica for The Body Shop and Managing Director
Europe for Virgin He was previously Chairman
of Arran Aromatics Lid and a Non Executive
Director of Whte Stuff

Aged 44 Appointed in 2010 Sened in The Life
Guards 1991 1998 Employed by the Company
from 1998 2003 working in the Tied and
Managed Pub estate and has since been running
his own business
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their repon e shareholders
1ogether with the audied financial statements for
the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015

Strategic Report

The statements and reviews on pages 8 1o 31
comprise the Strategic Report which includes
nformation about the Groups strategy and
business model as well as providing an update on
the business and financial performance during the
year and indications of likely future developmentis
KPIs pnncipal nsks and uncertaintes and the Croups
financial management and treasury polcies

Directors

Alst of all Directors who served dunng the financial
yedr together with biographical details 15 gnen
on pages 32and 33

Lynn Fordham and John Dunsmare whose terms
of office expired on 18 January 2015 and

20 January 2015 respecuvely were reappointed
by the Beard of Directors at their meeting on

29 January 2015 In accordance with the Arucles
of Association, their appeintment will be subject
10 the approval of sharcholders ot the Annual
General Meettng

Jonathon Swaine and Richard Fuller retre by
sotation at the Annual General Meeung and offer
themselves for re-election Both are Executive
Directors and have a rolling service contract of

12 months duration

Details of all directors interests as a¢ the end of
the financial year are set outin the Directors
Remuneration Report on page 53

Dividends

The Company paid an interntm dividend of 6 40p
per A and C ordinary share of 40p each and
0640 pence per B ordinary share of 4p each on
2 January 2015 The Directors now recommend

a final dvidend of 10 20p per A and C ordnary
share of 40p each and 102p per B ordinary share
of 4p each Thas makes a total dvidend for the
financial year of 16 60p per A and C ordinary
share of 40p each and 1 66p per B ordinary
shares of 4p each

The total proposed final dividend on ordinary
shares will be £5 6 mullon which together with
the 2015 intenm dividend paid of £3 5 mullien and
the £120 000 of cumulatve preference dvidends
patd will make total dividends of £9 2 million
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Auditors and Disclosure of Information
to Auditors

The directors who held office as at the date of
approval of thus Directors Report confirm that,
so far as they are each aware there 1s no relevant
audiinformauon (as defined in Section 418(2) of
the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's
auditors are unaware and each director has taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken as
director to make themselves aware of any relevanc
audit nformation to establish that the Companys
auditors are aware of that information

The audhiors Grant Thornton UK LLP heve indicated
their willingness 10 conunue in office and a resolution
that they be re-appointed will be proposed ai the
Annual General Meetng

Indemnity Provisions

The Arucles of Assouation prewede the Direciors
withindemniues in relation (o therr dulics as
Directors inchuding quahfyng third party indemniy
provisions (within the meaning of the Compdnies
Acts} All of the Execuuive Directors contracts
contdin d clause which states “the Executne shall
be indemnified out of Lthe assets of the Company
against any kability incurred by lum as a Director
or ather officer of the Cempany in defending any
proceedings (whether civil or crirminal) in which
Judgementis given in fus tavour or in which he 15
acquitted or in connection with any application
under the Companies Acts in which relief from
liability 1s granted to him by the Coutrt from habiliry
for negligence default breach of duty or breach
of trust he may be guilty of In relation to the affairs
of the Company™ The Company purchases
Dhrectors and Officers habiliy nsurance which
gives appropniate cover for any legal action
brought against ws directors This insurance also
covers the Trustees of the Company s detined
benefit pension scheme James Douglas 1s

a Trustee of the Schermne

Pohiical Donations
The Group does not make political donauons

Purchase of Own Shares

At the Annual Ceneral Meetng held on 24 July 2014
the Company was given authonty to purchase
up to 4848 083 A ordinary shares (o be held as
treasury shares to be used in connection with
among other purpeses the Long Term Incentive
Plan{ LTIP ) and/or other share option schemes
This authority will expire at the Annual General
Meeting and shareholders will be ashed to give

a similar authority to purchase shares up to 15%
of the A ordinary capital at that date

The Companys maximum issued ordinary share
capital dunng the year was £22793726 comprising
33518679 40p A erdinary shares 89052 6254p B
ordinary and 14 560 373 C 40p C ordinary shares

During the year, the Company purchased 4 total
of 291500 40p A ordinary shares at a total cost of
£2740 300 {exclusive of stamp duty} These share
purchases represented O 21% of the maximum
1ssued ordinary shares and O 87% of the Companys
1ssued A ordinary share capital

0O 255 40p A ordinary shares held in treasury
with a value of £857983 were transferred to the
Trustee of the Long Term Incentive Plan{"LTIP )
188463 40p A ordinary shares held in treasury
were allocated (o parucipants of the Savings
Related Share Opuion Scheme the Executive
Share Option Scheme and the Senior Executive
Share Opuon Scheme on exeraise of options
generating net cash proceeds of £1000 330
Atotal of | 163 539 40p A ordmary shares at

27 May 2015 are held as treasury shares

At the Annual General Meeting held on 24 July 2014
the Company was also given authonty to purchase
3558 009 4p B ordinary shares at a total cost of
£3406 793 (exclusive of stamp duty) These are
held as treasury shares They represent 2 59% of
the maximum issued ordinary shares and 4% of
the Companys issued B ordinary share capital

The Company employee share ownership trusts
purchased a total of 72 500 40p A erdinary
shares at a total cost of £688 750 [exclusive of
stamp duty) for the Share Incentive Plan [ SIP }
and 248 089 4p B ordinary shares at a total cost
of £251 368 {exclusive of stamp duty) for the LTIP

Employees

The Group gives a high prionty to communication
with dll its employees and pensioners thus
encouraging a common awareness of the financial
and econonic factors alfectung the Croup
Increasingly the Company s intranet and € mas!
systems facilitate this and we will continue Lo
search for ways to exploit these media 1o best
effect Twice a year all Brewery based employees
are invited to a results presentantion led by the
Cheef Execunve Once a year the Company also
runs Connection Week where one person from
each pub s mvited 1o a conference at which a
number of messages are communicaied That
employee returns ro thetr pub and shares the
infermanion with therr colleagues Regular
newsletters are also generated for both The Fullers
Beer Company and Fullers Inns employees and
ad hoc news Is regularly communicated via both
traditional notice boards and e-mal distributions
The communications policy which 1s in operation
throughout the business 1s designed to ensure the
successful cascading of information A structure

of consullation commutices al both Divsional and
Corporate level s 1n place so facilitate a dicloguc
between the Group and representatives of all
employees including umon members Taken
together these communications have dllowed
the Croup 1o engage successfully with all our
employees wherever they are employed




The Groups recruitiment pohicy is designed

1o ensure that 4ll applications for employment
encluching those made by disabled persons are
gven full and fair consideration wn hight of the
applicants parucular aptitudes and abilives Our
online recruitment portal hias been tested for the
potenual for discnmunation and passed The Group
also has an equal opportunuties policy which 1s
designed to ensure that all employees are treated
equally n terms of training career development
and promoucn Where employees developa
disabilty dunng their employment by the Group
every effort 1s made to continue therremployment
and arsange for appropnate traning career
development and promation as far as is reasonably
pracucable Development and training of our
employees at all levels has always been a pnonty
at Fullers

The Company continues 1o offer qualifying staff
aSawings Retated Share Option Scheme aSIP
and avariety of performance related bonus
armangements which serve to encourage staff
mnterest in the Groups performance Staff
throughout the Group are given an Indulgence
card dllowing them to benefit from a staff
discount scheme in the Groups managed pubs

Share Capital

Information on the Company s capitai structure
and related restnicuions 1s given in note 27 to

the financial statements Detalls of significant
shareholdings are given in the tables on this page

Computershare Trustees Linuted holds a total

of 408 8N 40p A ordinary shares on behalf of
employees of the Company who are parucipants
in its SIP Thus represents 122% of the issued A
orcunary share caputal In respect of the shares that
have been allocated Computershare Trustees
Limited exercises voting rights in relation to those
shares having consuled with the parucipants
about therr votng Intentions

Substanual shareholdings

The Company has been advised under the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules that the
following held an nterest in 3% or more of the
voting nghts of its hsted 1ssued share capital

% ‘A’ ordinary shares of 40p each

As at 28 March 2015

and 27 May 2015

BlackRock, Inc 1043
Aberdeen Asset Management

PIC and s subsidiaries 1019

Amenpnse Financial, Inc 578

Kames Capital and
associated enldies 406
Dunarden bimited 304

The Company is also aware of the following interests in 3% or more of the votng rights in the two classes

of its unlisted share capital

% ‘B’ ordinary shares of 4p each % *C" ordinary shares of 40p each

™ e ey 3 ™ e 27 by 01

SirJH F, Messrs AF and E £ Fuller 1693 Sir ] HF, Messts A F and E F Fuller 308

J F Russel-Smuh Chartable Trst 797 M T | M Turner 616

Mr A G F Fuller 594 Mr H D Wilhams 601

A B Earle Chantable Tryst 482 Miss S M Turner 516

Duncrden limited 375 Mrs ] Fuller 427

Mr R D Inverarity 367 Fuller Family Members Trust 399

Mr G F Inveranty 363 Ars D M Turner 307
Mr M| Tyrner 346
Muss § M Tumer 345
Mi H D Willlams 335
M R H F Fuller 332
M T ] M Tumer 312

Articles of Association

The Articles of Assnciatien state that the Board
miay appoint Directors and that at the subsequent
Annual General Meeting shareholders may elect
any such Dircctor Alternatively the Company
may dircctly appoint a Director The Arucles also
contain the power for the Company to remove
any Director by spectal resolution and appoint
someone 1n his place by ordinary resolutnion
There are various other circumstances under

the Articles which would mean that the office
of a Dhrector would be vacated including if he
resigns becomes of unsound mind or bankrupt

At every Annual General Mecting one-third of
the Directors who are subject Lo reurement by
rotauon or i they number is not three or any
muluple of three then the number nearest to
but not exceeding one Lhird shall retire from office
but, ifthere 1s only one Director who is subject to
retrement by rotation he shall retre In addion
if any Director has ar the start of the Annual
General Meeung been in office for more than
three years since his last appointment or
re-appasntment he shall retire at that Annual
Ceneral Meeting

The Articles do not contain any specific provisions
about ameriments to the Arucles which are
therefore governed by the relevant Companies
Act 2006 requirements which state that the
Articles may only be amended by Special Resolution

Subject to the Company s Memorandum and
Arucles of Association and UK legistauon the
business of the Company1s managed by the
Board which may exercise all the powers of the
Company The Arucles of the Company have a
section enttled "Powers and Duties of the Board
which sets out powers such as the nights to establish
local boards to appoint agents (o delegare and o
appoint persons with the designation “director
witheut implying that the person 1s a Director of
the Company There are further sections of the
Arccles entitled Allotment of Shares setting out
the Board s power to 1ssue shares and purchase
the Companys own shares and enutled
Borrowing Powers” setting out the provisions
concermng the Company s power o borrow and
give secunty The Directors have been authonsed
to allot and 1ssue ordinary shares These powers
are exercised under authority of resolutions of the
Company passed at its Annua) Ceneral Meeting
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Directors’ Report continued

The Group has entered inte ¢ number of
agreements with the majer brewers operating in
the UK under which i both buys and sells beers
and these agreements may be terminated by the
other party should the Group undergo a change
of centrol

In the event of a change of control the Compdny
1s obhged to nouly its main bank Lenders of such
The Lenders shall not be obliged to fund any new
borrowing requests and the facilities will lapse
after 30 days from the change of control if terms
on which they can continue have not been
agreed Al borrowings including acerued interest
will become repayable within ten days of such
alapse

Information required under

the Listing Rules

There is no information to disclose 1n this Annual
Report and Accounts pursuant o Lisung Rule 98 4

Corporate Governance

The Group report on Corporate Governance
1 SCLOUL 0N pages 38 w42 The Corporale
Covernance Report forms part of this Directors
Report and 1s incorporated into it by reference

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Groups report on Corporate Soctal
Responsibilicy 1s set out on pages 24 to 31
It contains Information on greenhouse gas
emissions and gender diversity

By order of the Board

PV bsihan_

Sévenine Garnham
Compdny Secretary

4 June 2015

buller, Smuth & Turner PLC
Gniffin Brewery

Chiswick Lane South
London W4 20Q8B

Registered in Engtand under number 241882
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Directors’ Statements

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

in Respect of the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for prepaning

the Strategic Report the Annual Report the
Remunerauion Report and the Group and
Company [inancial statements in accordance
with applicable Unied Kingdom law and those
International Financtal Reporting Standards
({FRSs) as adopted by the buropean Union

Company law requares the Directors Lo prepare
financial statements for each financial year Under
that law the directors have elected 1o prepare the
financial statements in accordance wath IFRSs as
adopred by the European Uion Under company
law the directors must notapprove the financial
statements unless they are sausfied that they

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs

and profitor Yoss of the Group and Company for
the financial pened In prepanng the Group and
Company financial statements the directors are
required 1o

» select suitable accounting policies in accordance
with 1S 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting tsumates and Lerors and then apply
them consistently

* present nformation including accounting policies
In 4 manner that provides refevant reliable
comparable and understandable information

s provide addiional disclosures when comphance
with the spechic requirements in IFRSs 1s
insulficient to enable users w understand the
impact of pariicular transaciions other events
and condiions on the Group and Companys
financiat posiuon and financial performance

» scate that the Group and Company have
complied with IFRSs subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
finanual staterments and

* make judgements and esumates that are
reasonable and prudent

The Crrectors are responsible for keeping adeguate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Groups transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any tume the financial
posion of the Group and Company and enable
them 1o ensure that the financial statements and
the Remunerauon Report comply with the
Comparies Act 2006 and applcable regulations
including the requirements of the Listing Rules
and the Drsclosure and Transparency Rules

{ DTR}and in the case of the Group financial
statements with Artucle 4 of the [AS Regulation
Thay are abso responsible for safeguarding the
assits of the Group and hence for laking
reasonable steps for the prevenuion and detecuon
of lraud and other irzegulanues

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the
Annual Report in accordance with applicable law
and regulations The Directors consider the Annual
Report and the financial statements taken asa
whole provides the Information necessary to dsstss
ithe Companys performance, business model and
strategy and 1s fair balanced and understandable

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial
informauion included on the Company s website
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparauon and disserninanon of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Statement as to Preparation

of Financial Statements
The Directors confirm to the besi of their knowledge

» that these financial statements prepared
inaccordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union give 4 true and fair view of the
assels lrabiliies financial posstion and profit of
the Group and Company taken as a whole and

« that the Annual Report and the Strategic Report
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the busingss and the position
af the Group and Company taken as a whale
together with a descrnipuon of the principal ks
and uncertamties that they face

The Directors of Fuller Smith & Turner PL.C are
listed on pages 32 and 33

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure

of Information to Auditors

The Directors who were members of the Board
atthe ume of approving the Directors Report are
histed on pages 32 and 33 Having made enquines
of fellow Directors and of the Company's auditors
each of these Directors confirms that

®» 10 the best of cach Directors knowledge and
belief there 15 no informatton relevant to the
preparation of this report of which the Companys
auditors are unaware and

® cach Director has taken all the sieps a Director
might reasonably be expected Lo have taken to
be aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the Companys auditors are
aware of that information

On behelfof the Board

Michael Turner
Chairman

4 June 2015

B Uy

James Douglas
Finance Director

4 June 2015

Fuller Smith & Turner PL C Annual Report 2015 37

MAAIAD ‘

|

uoday ndaeng

D
z
ﬁ
z
=

SIUAUMIBIG [RIDUBLIY |




Corporate Governance Report

Michael Turner,
Chairman

| am pleased 1o confirm that{ see it as the
Chairmans responsibility to lead the Board and
miake sure 1t 1s working effectvely This year we
are able to repoet full comphance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code {the Code ) There
are several key 1ssues that | wanted to comment
on One of these 15 the sue of succession planning
This 1s 4 complex topic for o business that has very
low Lurnover amoengst ILs sentor management and
15 sull very much a family controlled concern whilst
dlso being a bisted public company However
succession plans conunue to be discussed both at
Execuuve Commitiee and Board level Throughout
the rest of the business, succession plans are

in place at departmental level and are reviewed
regularly by the relevant Directors in conjunction
with their Executive colleagues and their
personnel advisors Furthermore all department
ptans are compiled inte a Company succession
plan which provides effectve review of cross-
departmental promotion and opportunities

Interms of Board balance | chair the Nominations
Commuttee and am personally nvolved in alt Board
level recruitment so 1 am able o ensure that we
conunue to have a good balance of skills expenence
independence and knowledge on our Board and
our Board Commuttees | am sausfied that our
Board 1s compnised of the nght indwiduals who
have the skills required to run this type of business
and to respond to the challenges presented by
the conunually changing environment in which
we operate The Board recognises the importance
of all types of diversity for Board effectiveness

We continue to believe that appointments should
be made on the basis of ment agamnst the selection
cniceria for any particular role
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We believe that you can only have an effecuve
Board when all members understand what is
required of them and when they all have ume

1o conduct therr dutics All of our Directors have
detailed appoimment letiers or contracts which
set oul theyr duties We confirm that appontment
letters for Non Execuuive Directors sel out the
expected ume commiment required We also
have a policy that the Directors can only take on
addinonal roles with Board approval In line with
the Code the terms of appointment for all our
Non Executives specifically stace that the role of
the Non Executive Directors 1s to challenge and
help develop strategy

Finally [ would like shareholders 1o understand
that | am In charge of our annual Board evaluation
process | am aware that larger PLCs are required
to seek external assistance with this process but
do not believe that such a process would be likely
to add extra value as long as our own process 1s
robust | believe that we have that robusiness and
that the process encourages a healthy debate on
things that could be improved

Widas! Tt

Michael Turner
Chairman

4 June 2015

Introduction and Compliance

The Board of Dircctorsi1s commitied to the
highest standards of corporate governance and
beheves that such standards are cntical to overall
business integrity andl performance This report
explains how the Company applies the principles
of the Code which shareholders can find on

the Financia) Reportng Council s website at
wwwircorguk

The Company has complied with the reguirements
of the Code as applicable to a smaller quoted
company throughout the financial year

The information that s required by Cede
provision C 1 2 on the business model and the
strategy for delivering the Companys objectives
can be found in the Sirategic Report on pages 7
1031 Fhe informaton relaung Lo the share capital
of the Company that is required by DTR72 6R
can be found within the Directors Report on
page 35

The Board

The Board's Role

The Board of Directers 1s collectively responsible
t0 the shareholders for the performance and
long-term success of the Group lts role includes
the establishment review and monitoring of
strategic objectives approval of major acquisitions
disposals and capital expenditure ownership of
the corporate values overseeing the Groups
systems of mternal conitols governance and nsk
management and ensuning that the appropriate
resources are 1n place to deliver these and fulhl
the Company s obligations to its stakeholders

How the Board Works

The Board governs through its executive
management and formally via its other clearly
mandated Committees Fach standing Board
Committee has specific wntten terms of reference
which are reviewed by the Board annually and
theie 1s a formal Iist of Matters Reserved for the
Board {which 1s abo reviewed annually) This
disumguishes between matters reserved for the
Board and Cxecutne Commitiee decisions The
terms of reference of the Audit Renmunerauon
and Nonunauons Commitlees are available on
the Companys website All Commuttee Charmen
repont orally on the proceedings of therr Comniees
al the next meeung of the Board and the muinures
of the meetings of all Board Comnuttecs {with
some exceplions on remunerauoen matlers}are
provided to Board members The Chawrman
ensures that the Executive Directors provide
accurate and umely infermauon for Board
meeungs which is then open to debate and
challenge by all Meetings enjoy open dialogue
and constructive challenge on all 1ssues 15
encouraged With a good information flow
between and prior to Board meetings decisions
are made in a tmely manner after appropriate
questons are dealt with The Board has adopted

a procedure in accordance with the Companys
Artcles to consider and f itsees fit to authornse
situations where a Director has an interest that
confhices or may pussibly conflict with the
interests of the Company




Board Meetings

The Board meets formally al least six umes a year
with papers circulated o week in advance and Lhe
agenda and papers for these meetings are subject
to the scrutiny of the Chairman and the Company
Secretary However the Board regularly considers
matters on an ad hoc basis between scheduled
meetings The Executive Committee meets
formally at least eleven times a year and also
meets informally most weeks There 15 thus a
regular flow of information at Board and Executive
Commuttee level

At Board meetings the agendas cover prajects
analysis of the marker in which the Group operares
and performance Each of the Executive Directors
and the Company Secretary also update the
Board at each meetmg on matters for which they
are responsible The Board is responsible for
approving the annual budget and the annual and
half-vear results The Board also meets away from
the Gniffin Brewery every year for an in depth
review of corporate strategy and other agenda
items mught include an update on the economy

Attendance 2014/2015

and a review of the Croups compentors The
Non-Executive Directors from ume to ume meet
with members of the senior management team at
the Brewery and also spend days out in the trade
with individual members of that team This helps
to keep the Non Executive Directors up to date
with the operations of the Group and alse provides
the Executive Directors with valuable feedback
about the Companys people and its operations

The Executive Commuttee 1s chaired by Stmon
Emeny and its meetings focus on the detail of the
Groups performance The Finance Director leads
areview of the Groups management accounts
and presents updates on treasury and credit contro!
Each Executive Director and the Company
Secretary update therr colleagues on the key
1ssues facing therr part of the business There 15

a good level of consultation and debate at these
meetings The st of Macters Reserved for the
Board sets out which matters need Board approval
and which decisions can be made at Executive
Committee level Mostsigniicant business decsions
are made by the Board but matters such as health

Board

Executive

and safety policy and approving major contracts
are taken at Executive Committee level At the
beginning of most Executve Committee
meenngs a Sentor Manager 1 invited to Join the
meeting and talk to the Committee about the
1ssues in their department Three times a year all
of the divisional directors and financial controllers
Join together with the Executive Committee 10
conduct a detalled review of the half-year and
full-year accounts and to construct the annual
budget before these are debated at Board level

As well as the dialogue within the boardroom

the Non Executive Directors meet privately
under the leadership of the Sentor Independent
Durector without the Executve Directors present
They also meet with the Chairman and the Chief
Executive on a regular basis These meetings allow
for the review of 1ssues faced by the business the
contnuaton of dialogue on strategic 1ssues the
discussion of Board appointments when appropnate
sucLession planning and the provisien of support
to the Chairmian and the Chief Exccutve in

their roles

Audit Remuneration

Number of formal meetings

11 4 4

Director

Michael Tumer

Simon Emeny

James Douglas

Richard Fuller

lan Bray

Jonathon Swaine

Sir james Fuller

John Dunsmere

Lynn Fordham

Alastair Kerr

ool ||| |0 O

These Directors are not members of the Committees but are invited 10 be in altendance at meelings

Attendance at Board and

Committee Meetings

The table above gives details of attendance at
Board and Committee meetngs duning the year

The Board believes that all of its members have
sufficient ume to discharge therr duties effecuvely
All Drrectors are required 1o seek permission before
accepting any external appomtments therefore
Board members are kept fully aware of their
colleagues other commitments

Compeosition and Balance of the Board

There were no changes to the composiion of the
Board in the period Michael Turner 1s responsible
for leading the Board and ensuning s effectiveness
and openness and that communications with
shareholders are valuable The Charrman does
not have any commitments which constrain s
ability to fulfil his role Simen Emeny is responsible
for all operational aspects of the Group

Currently the Company has four Non-Executive
Directars one of whom (Sir James Fuller)is a farmily
member This representation is very important
ina Company with a high proportion of famly
shareholders The other three Non Executhe
Directors all of whom are deemed independent
under the Code are expenenced business ke aders
and all of the Non-Lxecutives bring a wide range
of skills and expenences o the Board The Direciors
consider that the Board 1s well-balanced as it has
the right number of members for the size of the
Croup and Lthe Directors agree that no ene
indmtdual dominates discussions and that

each makes a full and positive contributton

The Drrectors biographes are on pages 32 and

33 John Dunsmore 15 the Senior Inde pendent
Director and an mduscry expert who brings
knowledge support and advice to the Chairman
and all the other Board members he s in regular
dialogue with all Board members outside of Board
meetings and co-ordinates the views of the

Non Executive Directors as and when required

All of the Independent Non Executive Directors
are determined by the Board to be independent

in character and judgement and there are no
relationships or circumstances which could affect
or appedr to affect therr judgement all are appointed
for speaificd terms The detalls of the Non
Execuuive Directors respective arrangements dre
as sel outin the Direclors Remuneration Repornt
on pages 4310 57 and are available for mspection
4t the Companys registered office

Advice for the Board

There s in place a procedure under which
Directors can obtain independent professional
advice The Directors also have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary
who 1s responsible to Lhe Board for ensuning
that Board procedures are comphed with The
Directors are sausfied that any concerns they raise
at Board meetings are recorded tn the minutes
The Company maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action againstits
Directors and Officers
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Professional Development

All Directors attend wraining courses industry
forums and speciahst briefings relevant to their
role throughout the year Occasionally specialists
such as the Company's actuary or corporale
lawyer join a Board meetng to brief the Board

on a parucular topic Both the Board and the
Execuuve Commitiee visit Group pubs and hotels
as part of the Board meetng programme On
these and on other occasions Board meetings
may be held in the Groups pubs with the aim

of keeping the Directors farmihar with the Groups
estate Executive Dhrectors are permutted to hold
one other paid direciorship with the Board s
consent as the Board believes that expenence

of how other boards work enhances the Directors
contobunion to Fullers Simon Emeny currently
holds such a directorshup at Dunelm Group plc

Board Evaluation

The Chairman conducts an annual evaluation of
the Board where all Board members are asked 10
rate the Board s work across a number of different
topics with constructive criucism encouraged via
the medium of a questionnaire The questionnaire
includes questions on the halance of skills
experience Independence and knowledge
diversity (including gender diversity} how the
Board works as a umit and other factors reluvant o
its effecuveness Where necessary the Chairman
secks clarification on the responses given he then
consobidates the responses and reports back o
the Board highlighting significant improvements
and deteriorauons in any particular area by
comparing resuhs with previous years outputs
and agreeing actions o tackle any areas requirnng
improvement Unattributed comments of
sigmificance are shared with all This year the
results were fractionally tugher than last years
scores The results did provide some insight into
areas that could sull be improved further and
these were debated at a Board meeting and were
the Chairmans focus in terms of follow up The
Audit and Remuneration Commuttees conduct
simular assessments and their work s also
commented upon in the evaluation conducted

by the Chairman The Sentor Non Executve
Director annually appraises the Charmans
performance having first consulted with the other
Non-Executive Directors and also the Executve
team The appraisal of the other Lxecutive
Direcrors and the Company Scorctary s conducted
annually by the Chairman or Chief Exceutive and
as parnt of the appraisal process indvidual traming
and development needs are discussed The annual
appratsal of the Non-Executive Directors 1s conducied
by the Charman following consultation with the
Executve team
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Board Re-election

The Aricles of Association of the Company
ensure that all Directors are subject (o elecuon by
shareholders at the first Annual General Meeung
after their appointment and to re election al three
yearly inervals

Board Commuittees

The Nominations Committee

The Nommatiens Committee Charman s
Michael Turner and the other members are John
Dunsmore and Lynn Fordham [tis responsible
for nomnaung candidates for appomntment as
Directors for approval by the Board although

the full Board will also typically informally discuss
Board appomntments The Committee did not
meet during the yedr ds no appainiments were
made The Board has recently reviewed the
Companys equal opporwnitics policy which
requires that all who work for the Company have
appropriate regard for diversity in their decision
making The Board also discussed Lord Davies
recommendations but does not believe that
setting percentage targess for the numberof
women on the Board 1s appropriate given the
key principle of appointing en ment As and when
board vacancies anse and should the support of
an executive search firm be required the Board
and the Nominations Committee will ensure that
i only uses firms that have signed up to therr
industrys Voluntary Code of Conduct {prepared
in response to Lord Davies report) Further
information on gender diversity across the
business can be found in the Corporate and
Social Responsibility Report on page 26

The Remuneration Committee

Infermation about the Remunerauon Committee
and Remunetation Policy s given 1n the Directors
Remuneration Report

The Audit Commuttee

The Audit Comnuittee of the Board chaied by
Lynn Fordham compnises the three Independent
Non Executive Directors and meets at least four
umesa year The members of the Audit Committee
consider that they have the requisite skills and
expenence to fulfil the responsibiiuies of the
Committee In addiion the Charman the Chief
Execuuve the Finance Director and members

of the finance team join the meenngs ona
regular basis as do the external Audit Partrer

and Audi Manager

The Charman of the Audit Commuttee
encourages comprehensive debate and scrutiny
of management s and auditors reports by the
Cemmuttee members She also meets with the
manager responsible for internal audits the
external Audit Partner and the Finance Director
outside of Audit Committee meetings to give
them the opportunity to raise any concerns they
may have abour their work or their roles and to
provide adwvice and support as required

The Audit Committee s responsibilities are
outlined in the Commuttees terms of reference
and cover all those matters required by the Code
The Committee has a meeung planner which
sets out the key nems to be covered at its regular
meeting which nclude reviewing the financal
statements and announcements MonIonng
changes in accounting pracuces and policies and
reviewing deaisions with a significant element of
Judgement I addivon the Audit Comnniee 1s
responsible for ensuning that the Companys nsk
monitonng progremme internal audi processes
and regulatory comphdnce are appropriate

At all meeuings an update on nsk management

s presented The Chairman of the Commiuee
encourages debate and discussion of topical
issues outside of the rounne agenda wems and
ensures that such discussions are held ar least
twice ayear The Audit Commuttee has
responstbility for the oversight of the external
audit funcuon Atthe request of the Board the
Audit Commuttee provides confirmation to the
Board as to how it has discharged its responsibiliies
so that the Board can be sausfied that information
presented in the Annual Report s fair balanced
and understandable

During its review of the Groups financial
statements for the year to 28 March 2015 the
Audit Commuttee considered the following
significant issues including those communicated
by the Auditors during their reporting




Significant Issue

How the 1ssue was addressed

Impairment teshing

The Committee considered the propased im

rment of property ossets for both the Half Year Report and

the Annual Report The Commitlee was satished with the approach presented by management and the
fudgements made for those properties o nsk of impairment

Acquisiion of a majonty nterest in
The Stable Pizza and Cider Limited

The Committea was satishied with the proposed accounting treatment and disclosures in the financial statements

Excephonal tems

The Commiltee considered the nalure of tems classified as 'Exceptional’ 1n the inancial siatements The

Committee wos sanished that the itlems management proposed to show as exceptional are not inked to the
undetlying trading of the Group

Exceptional ilems conhnue to nclude

* Proht or loss en property disposals
* Business acquisiion costs expensed
. Chcnﬁes 10 enerous leases provisions

*Nat ¢

arge on property impairment

 Nel interest expense on the Group's defined beneht pension plan

It was olso decided to show the one off pension curtailment gain recognised in the year as an exceptional
ilem as it 1s not associaled with underlying trading

The Board was made fully aware of any significant
financial reporting 1ssues and judgements made
in connrecuon with the preparation of the
financial statements

Other rems discussed in the yedr included the
acountng for taxgtion discussion of the Companys
risk management pracess consideration of
selected indwidual risks from the nsk register
discussion of the imeraal audit work completed
during the year and progress on acuons drnsing
from both nsk management and internal audis

The Audit Committee has 4 primary responsibility
for making recommendations W the Bodrd on the
re-appointment and remaoval of external audiors
The Company s year ended 28 March 2015 15 the
second of a five-year maximum term thet the
current Audit Partner has been in the role for

the Company

There v 1n place a whistle blowing policy which

Is overseen by the Audit Committee and which
allows stalf w rase any coneerns in confidence
directlywath the Chairman of the Audit Committee
Paslers reminding staff about the exisience of

the policy and how it may be used are reissued
annually In order to mamtain a good awareness

of the whistle blowing arrangements throughout
the Company

The Committee alse reviewed s own cifccuiveness
duning the year

Ihe Directors statement on the Company s
systern of internal controls 1s set out on this page

Accountability

Auditors

The Commuttee 1s happy for the Board o
recommend to shareholders the re-election

of Grant Thornton UK LLP who were appointed
tn September 2013 following a formal tender
process Ther effectiveness will be formally
reviewed by the Committee at the September
2015 meeting although there are no issucs of
concern with their performance to date

The Groups auditors may from time to tme
provide non-audit services to the Company The
fees pad to Grant Thornton UK L P for audit
services were £I00 000 for audit related services
were £16 000 and tor non-audit related services
were £3 600 The Committee imposes an upper
Imitof£5G 000 per annum on the amaount that
the finance t1cam can spend with the auditors

for non-audit items without speailic approval

{rom the Commitiee 1t 1s Group pohcy to seek
quotations from multiple providers for significant
non-audit services and only (o appaint ihe provider
(which could then be the Auditorstihat offers the
best combinatton of price and experuse The
non-audit services were provided in the yearby a
team independent of thase providing audit services

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for the Groups
system of internal control and management of
nsks and reviewing Its effectiveness The system

13 designed to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance of

« the miugation of risks which might cause the
failure of business objecuives

® no material misstatements or losses

» the safeguarding of assets against unauthonsed
use or disposition

¢ the maintenance of proper accounting records
and the reliabilty of finaneial informaton used
within the business or for publication, and

® compliance with applicable laws and regulauons

The Company maintains business continuicy plans
and exercives these plans on an annual basiy

Management within the Finance Department are
responsible for the approprate maintenance of
financial records and processes that ensure that
all financial nformation is relevant reliable

n accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations and distributed both internally and
externallyin a uimely manner A review of the
tinancial statements 1s completed by management
to ensure that the financial position and results of
the Group are appropriatcly rellccted Al linancial
informauon pubhshed by the Group s subject o
the review of the Audii Cormmitiee
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The Board has reviewed the effecuveness of the
Groups system of internal control which has also
been discussed in detail by the Audit Comrmittee
including taking account of matenal developments
since the year end The review covers all matenal
controls including financial and operational controls
compliance and risk management systems Where
weaknesses are idenufied actions to address
them are agreed

The Board has procedures in place necessary o
follow the Turnbull Cuidance { Internal Controt
Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code }
for the full financial year The Group Risk Manager
co ordinates this process by leading regular risk
assessment workshops in which new risks are
identified and added to the nskregister and
exasting risks re evaluated by the nsk owners
Regular meetings charred by the Executive
[Dhrectors are held in addition to the workshops

in order to assess the effectiveness of the controls
tha are (n place dentify new nsks and review
existing risk minigation plans

Key elements of the system of internal control
designed to address sigmificant nsks and
uncertainties as documented on pages 22
and 23 include

# clearly defined levels of responsibility and
delegauon throughout the Group together with
well structured reporiing lines up to the Board

« (he prepdration of comprehensive annual budgets
for each dmsion including commentary on key
business opportumties and nsks approved by
the Executive Directors and further reviewed
by the Board on a consolidated basis

& an [xecutive Committee review ol aciual
monthly results agamst budget, Logether
wilh commentary on significant variances
and updates of both profit and cash low
expectations for the year

* & detatled imvestment approval process requinng
Baard authonsation for all major mvestments

 detalled postimplementation appraisals of major
capial expenditure projects

« regular reportng of legal and accounting
developments to the Board

 regular review of the Groups nsk register
and diseussion of significant nsks by the Board
and Audit Comnuitiee which among other
things takes account of the significance of
environmental social and governance matters
o the business

» monionng of acadent statsucs and the results
of health and safety audits and

» maintenance of an (SO 900 cerufied quahty
control system
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The Group does not have a formal internal audit
function and after a review by the Audit Commitiee
and the Board the Board has confirmed thar

it believes that the exisung arrangements for
nternal audit are appropriate Management may
from ume to ume augment the internal resource
for these audits with specialist external resources
The Croup carnes outinternal audsts on financial
areas according (o a programme agreed between
the Audit Commutiee and the Finance Director
and with input from the ether Exccutive Directors
and the exiernal auditors as appropriate The
audits are co ordinated by an expenenced semor
meniber of the finance tearm and are undertaken
by other members of the finance team in each
case the person undertaking the audit 1s
independent of the area which is the subject

of the audit The internal audit reports, the
management responses and the recommended
acuions are presented in summary form to the
Audi Committee on a regular basis There are
also procedures in place to ensure recommended
actions are implemented Duning the year audits
were performed on the Brewery cash centrols

the company car scheme controls and the duty
payable controls as well as a number of reviews
on other internal processes

In addition the Group employs a team of retail
business auditors who monitor the controls in
place in the Managed Pub estate in particular
those over stock and cash This team reports
directly to the Fullers Inns Financial Conireller
but theirr Manager atrends Audi Commitiee
meetings twice a year to discuss the progress
hus team 1s making and the 1ssues they are
dealing with

Relations with Shareholders

The Company has an ongoing programme of
indvidual meenngs with insututienal shareholders
allowing the Company to update shareholders on
the performance of the business and the strategy
for the future and to give shareholders an
opportunity to discuss corporate governance
matters The Companys brokers contactkey
shareholders to establish 1f they would like 1o see
the Chief Executne and Finance Directorin the
days following ther presentation to the Cayon
the pretiminary and half year results The Charrman
Richard Fuller and Sir james Culler are the key
contdcts with the Companys farmily shareholders
and Sir Jantes Fuller has 4 specific role 1o keep

in touch with those shareholders The Senior
Independent Director and the other Non Executve
Directors are all willing 1o attend meetngs with
shareholders or 1o be contacied by shareholders
should they have any concerns which have not
beenresolved through the usual channels

The Non-Executive Directors have had no such
requests during the last financial year Al Board
members receve copies of feedback reports
from the City presentations and meetings with
shareholders thus keeping thern in teuch with
shareholder opimion

The Board supports the use of the Annual
General Meeung to cormmunicate 1n particular
with private investors and the Chairman and
Chief [xecutive make a detalled preseniation o
shareholders updating them on the Companys
performance and progress The Public Relations
team alse attends the Annual General Meetng
and provides further informanion to shareholders
about the Company through photo boards
featuring pub and product informatien The Board
15 also keen to encourage instututional investors
to attend the meeung In line with the dunes set
out In the Stewardship Code for instrtutional
sharcholders published in July 2010 Should they
have concerns over any ssues bang voted upon
atthe Annual General Meeung they can then
meeel all the Directors and discuss them in person,
particulatly Il they have declined an invitation for
an individual meeung The Chatrman arranges
for the Chairman of each of the Companys
Board Committees to answer relevant questions
at the meeung and encourages all Directors to
be present

By order of the Board

7 ¥ Geshan_

Séverine Garnham
Company Secretary

4 June 2015
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Alastair Kerr
Chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee

Statement of the Remuneration
Commuttee Chairman

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Beard | am pleased to present
the Remuneration Report for the 52 wecks ended
28 March 2015

The report follows last years presentation in two
separate sections The first covers the Company «
Remwuneranon Policy for all of its Main Board
Directors {set out on pages 32 and 33) as approved
by shareholders at last years Annual General
Meecung for a period of three years It designed
Lirexpldin W sharcholders how that policy
supperts the Companys sirategy There are no
changes bemg proposed to the policy and there
have been no payiments made outside of the
approved pohcy in the reporung penod

Ih¢ second part of the report shows you the detail
ot haw the policy wds applied m the last financial
yedr That part of the report will be subject to your
approval in the same way as It was last year

Whilst there has not been any change o
remuneration during the financial year and
therefore we have not engaged with sharcholders
I'would be happy to receve any comments you
may have on this report | hope that you find the
report clear and comprehensive and that it helps
demonstrate how the remuneration of your
Drircctors 1s very much inked 1o the performance
of your Company and that you arc able 10 support
the resolutions on remuncration being presented
1o you 4t this year s Annual Generdl Meeting

s 4. 22—

Alastair Kerr
Charrman of the Remuneranon Commitice

4 June 2015

Report on Directors’ Remuneration Policy
This policy approved by sharcholders at the
Annual General Meeung held on 24 July 2014 was
prepared in comphance with Part 4 of Schedule 8
to the Large and Medium sized Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment)
Regulations 203 The Compadny intends to make
all future payments to 1ts Direcrors consistent with
this policy for the three years following the date

of approval of the policy unless amended by the
shareholders at an intervening general meeting

The Remuneration Policy s designed 1o suppert
the Compeny s business strategy of creaung
shareholder value and increasing earnings per share
{ EPS}in the longer term for its shareholders In
order to do so It must attract retatn and motivate
high-calibre Executive Direcrors The policy is
therefore 1o provide compentiive packages for
the Executives through reflecting the Groups
perfermance against financial objectives and
rewarding above average performance
Accordingly the key elements are

* a significant proportion of performance related
pay that rewards Executives in line wath Company
performance and sirongly aligns therr interests
with those of shareholders

» persondl bonus Largets for operational Directlors
that focus on delivery of the sirategic drivers for
growth inthe Companys business strategy

® have pay that rewards above average performance
and remdins Lompetitive

* a competuve range of benefits and

® patticipation In a range of share schemes including
along-term incenuve plan

When setung the Remuneratuion Policy the
Commuitee considered the Groups performance
on environmental soctal and governance matters
The Committee does not beheve that the existing
Incentive siructure raises any envirenmental
governance or social nisks by inadvertently
motivating irresponsible behaviour

The Comnuttee beheves that the Remuneration
Policy 1s consistent with 1Ls nisk management
policy i that existing remuneration structures do
NOt ENCOUlEE Managemeni 10 Leke Inapproprdie
risks 1o achieve targets [t1s felt that there 1s a very
low nsk of short term decisions driving annual
bonus pay outs and the focus Is very much based
on a long term remuneration model delivenng
value through the Company s vanous share plans

Here are the varous elements of the Directors
remunerauon and the different performance
conditions that applyto them

Fuller Smith & Turner PL C Annual Report 2015 43

AN

|

uoday n8areng

~
z
fad
=
B
=
[a)
n

SHIMEIS [BIOUEUL l




Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Executive Directors ("Executives”)

Purpose — how the element supports the short and

Element long-term strategic objectives of the Company Operahon
Base Salary To recrut, retain and reward high calibre Executives to The Committee sels the base salary and this 1s reviewed taking nto
deliver the Company's strategy  The salory will reflect account inflation, indvidual and corporate performance
each role, the importance of that role to the business From ime to ime, advisors are commissioned to obtain benchmarking
and the experience the indadual bungs 1o i data for companies in the sector ond/or of a similar size, to check
market postioning
Benefits To recruit and retain Execulives by providing competitive The Compony offers Executives @ range of benefils which include
henefits which clso protect Executives ond provide o Car allowance
preveniative care far them »Ponel holidays
* Life ossuiance
* Private medical insurance
* Product allowonce
* A private account which allows the purchase of goads af cost price
plus VAT
* Subscriphions 1o professional bodies or other relevant organisations
* Regular medical check ups
# Parmanent health insurance
Annual Bonus To incentivise Executives 1o deliver performance in line Bonus ‘argels are set onnually n relotion 1o the profis achieved by
with the Group strategy and to align thewr interests with The Fuller’s Beer Compc?. Fuller's Inns and the Group  The performance
those of shareholders measures are weighted dependent on the responsibilines of each
Executve and are designed o be sirstching
The target for the bonus includes the cost of the benus wself
Share Options
Executive To align the interests of Executives with those A tox-advantaged execuive share option scheme ynder which o‘::nons
Share Ophon of shareholders may be granted to Executives penodically up to o meximum lotal value
Scheme (ESOS) set by HM Revenue & Customs ["HMRC™ Once ophons hove vesled
they must be exercised befare the tenth anniversary of grant
Senior Execuhve A non-ax advantaged execulive share ophion scheme under which
Share Ophon ophons were granted Io Executives bul which has now expired

Scheme [SESOS)

Save As You
Earn Share
Opthon Scheme
[SAYE scheme)

All employees of Fuller, Smith & Tutner PLC with at least one year's
service in July in any year are eligible under this tax odvanteged scheme
to receve options to subscribe for 40p ‘A’ ordinary shores at a discount
of 20% on the prevaling markst pnce at the ime of the grant having
entered o ¢ three or f?ve—yecr savings contract for the exercise prce

Share Incentive
Plon (SIP}

All employees of Fuller, Smith & Tuner PLC with of least five manths’
service i November in any year are eligible under this tax-advantaged
scheme 1o receive liee 40p A’ ordinary shares in December of that
year Shoes are held by she SIP Teusiees for o mimmum of three years
and a maximum of five years beltore being avallable io be passed

o parhicipants
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Opportunity

Performance measures
and reason for selechon

Ch d
for malus and dawback (f any)

Annual sclory reviews lake effect from 1 june in any year
The Committee expects lo targe! salanes around the
median to upper quartle of smilar s:zed businesses

Not opplicable

Executive salanes were ncreased
by between 193% and 12 68%
n June 2014

The benefits cffered are those typically offered ot this
level Car dllowances are reviewed every January
Product dllowances are reviewed from time fo ime but
not typically increased every year The cost of praviding
the nsurance producls varnes Yrom year o year

Not applicable

The benefi 1s unchcmged but the
cost of Insurance products varies
from year to year

The maximum pay-out under the bonus scheme 15 75%

of salary No pay-oui woutd be made if the minimum
threshold on the bonus farget schedules 1s not achieved

If prohits have dechined 1o a speciied degree i the yaor
bonuses are due 1o be pad, the Commitiee will assess
the performance of the Group relative to o selected peer
group Payments will only be authonsed if the Group has
performec}/beuel than the average of the peer group and
where the Group's performance represents cutperformance

The actual performance measures for 2015 are linked to
the EPS and profit largets contained in the Group budget
for Fuller's Inns and The Fuller's Beer Company Cunent
ond previous fargets are considered commercially
conhidential and will not be published  These tamgets
have been selected as the Commitiee believes they
reward Execuiives in ine with Company performance
and stiongly align therr interests with those of sharsholders

New bonus largets were agreed
in May 2015 for the financial year
2015/2016 subject to the revised
bonus rules approved the previous
year incduding malus and
clawback provisions

Executives may be 1ssued and hold share options up to
the current maximum value set by HMRC of £30,000
at any ong ime

ESOS ophions vest when growth in EPS ad)usted
principally to exclude exceptional items ["Adjusted EPS”)
exceeds growth in RP by ot least 9% over the three-year
performance penod The Committee 1s authonsed to
make appropnate amendments to Adusted EPS

No change

The maximum benefi granted to Executives under the
SESQOS was 20% of salory per annum

$ESOS options vest at 40% [msmimum) when growth in
Adusled EPS exceeds growth in RPl by at least 9% over
the three-year performance penod Maxmum vesting
(100% of grant) occurs when growth n Adsied EPS
exceeds inilation by 21% over the thieeryear penod

The performance targets and restrichions are considered

to be o realistic test of management performance and

were chasen because they are consisient with corporate
rofit growth abjectives and ensure that aptions only

Eecome exercisable agamnst the background of a

sustained real increase in the hnuncsa?performcnce

of the Group

MNe chonge

Under the SAYE Scheme rules eligible employees may
ogree 1o save up lo £250 per month over a perod of
three or five years and then puichase shares within six
months of the end of the tem

Nene There s no requirement for perlormence targets
in SAYE schemes

The curtent SAYE Scheme expires
in July this year and a resalution
for the adoption of a new SAYE
Scheme will be put forward

at the forthcoming Annual
Genesal Mceting

MIIALIAD)
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Shares are awarded based on length of service and base
safary The moximum volue of the shares allowable under
the Scheme 15 £3,000 in any one yeor

None There is no requirement for performance targets
n SIPs

MNo change
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Element

Purpose — how the element supForls the short and
long-term strategic objectives of the Company

QOperahion

Long-Term
Incentive

Plan (LTIP}

To reward the efferts of Execuhves in ling with the
Company's objective of creating shareholder value
and increasing EPS in the longer tem

The rules of the LTIP cllow for discretionary annual awards of A’ {listed),
and ‘B’ and ‘C’ {unhsted] ordinary shares Granls are calculaled by
reference to the middle market quoToIlon al close the day before In alf
cases shares will vest, subject to performance cniena beng attained,
within 72 doys of the pUbLCOIIOn ol resulis for the last financial year in
the performance peried

The Remuneration Commitiee determines whether the Adjusted EPS
performance condiion has been met using the EPS information which
13 published in the Group's Annual Reports and Accounts BDO LLP
confirms the level of vesting of awards based on EPS calculations
provided by the Group

Pension

To provide Dueclors with long term pension provisions
on a compeliive basis

The Company operates o varnety of pension benelils Execulves

ore either deferred members of the defined benelit Company pension
plan — now closed to future accruals — or the Company's defined
conlribution stakeholder pension plan, or receve o salary supplement
or a mixture of these Further details are availeble on page 52 of

this report

Malus and

Clawback

The malus and clawback provisions act as o disincentive
to overstate the metncs that determire the rewards the
Executive Directors receive

These were mireduced last year to the bonus scheme and 1o [TIP
awards made from last year They will enable the Committee not to
pay bonuses or allow [TIF awards 1o vest where misconduct occurs
duning the relevant financial year or before a bonus 15 paid or an U1P
award vests They will also enable the Commitee to recover bonuses
or awards where 11 1s discovered thet the Company matenally missiaied
tis results for the last whole hinanoial year or a matenal error was made
In ossessing the relevant performance conditions

Non-Executive Directors

Basic and
Additional

Fees

To atiract and retain high calibre Non Executive Directors
by offering market competive fee levels thal recognise
the hme that the Non Execunve Directors commit 1o their
vanous roles

The fees pad to the Charman are determined by the Remuneration
Commities

The fees paid to the other Non Executive Directors are determined
by the Charman and the Executive Committee

Fees may be paid for specific duties such as the fee pad lo
Sir James Fuller for his work in laising waith family shareholders

Non Executive Directors do not participate n bonus schemes, share
ophons or [TIPs None of the Non Executive Direct Drs are members

of ony Group pension scheme with the excephan of Michael Tumer,
who 15 @ pensioner of the Directors section of the defined benefit
Company pension plan

Benefits

To encourage Non Executive Dirsclors to kesp
up to date with the Company’s product range
and 1o remburse expenses

Non Executive Direclors recerve a modest product dllowance and are
entiled 1o buy additional products ot cost plus VAT They are rembursed
for iravel and other business related expenses

The Charman Michael Turner also benehts from life insuronce cover
and prvate medical msurance
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Opportunity

Performance measures
and reason for selechon

Chan d provisions
for mgfulsncﬁaznwbgck (if any}

The maximum volue of shares for which an award may
be made to on Executive i any financial yeor 1s 110%
of salary and will vary depanding on seniony
Actual vesting will depend on haw well the Company
performs against the [TIP's performance conditions

To assess the awards, the averoge growth in Adjusted
EPS 1s compared with the growth i inflation over the
performance penod The performance penod covers
three hncmcu:i)e

Adjusted EPS growth fails 1o exceed the RPI by at least

9% 40% of the award vests if the torget 1s hitond there s

a shding scale above that point For 100% of an award

of shares o vest, growth in Adjusted EPS needs to exceed

the growth 1n RPI by 24% or more over the pencd The
Committee feels that since underlying long term freehold
property growth 15 not being ncluded in ﬁﬂe calculanon,
9% over inflahan 15 G teshing torget ond one thot ments
a 40% vesiing level The Commitiee further believes that
the 40% vesting threshold at 9% in excess of inflahon 1s
inggening vesting at a value that 1s snll below that being
employed by many other companies and that i 1s the
value of the vest that should be cansidered and not the

icentage Please see the graph on poge 56 for
urther defails

ears slaring from the start of the hnancial
year n which the award 1s made No vesting occurs if the

No change

Defined benefit Company pension plan Main section

Unil closure accrued at 1 7% of basic salary less lower
earnings mit {up to o pensions cap) per year of service
Addinenal salary supplement of 17 5% paid over the
earnings cap This applied only to Simeon Emeny

Defined benefit Company pension plan Directors’ sechon

Richard Fuller withdrew from ihis scheme on 31 March
2014 and now recewves a salory supplement of 17 5%
of his salary for use in his renzement planning

Pension coninbutons For the other Executives the
Company will contnbute a total of 17 5% of the
Executive s salary to the defined contnbution Company
pensian plan and/or they nommated pension scheme
or pay a salary supplement for them Io use as part of
therr refirement planning subject 1o the Executive making
a net contribution of 8% themselves

Mot apphcable

The Company's defined benefu
pension plan closed to fulure
accruals from Janwary 2015
Simon Emeny was the only
Execulive sll!Tln this scheme
and was offered a sclary
supplement of 17 5% of salary
in ne with other Execulives

not in that scheme

IS
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The malus and clawback prnciples apply 1o the bonuses
that may be paid from 2015 onwards and ophien grants
made from 2014 onwards

Not applicable

No change

All Non Executive Directors receve a basie fee

The Semor Independen: Duector recaves a fee for
thot role and there are addihonal fees for chamng
ond being a member of the Audit and Remunerction
Committees and other specific wles

Non-Executive Directors’ fees are not usually reviewed

every year but of periods of hwo 1o three years when
market data on the level of fees 15 consulted

There ate no specific measures set bul appraisals
are carried oul as explaned in the Corporate
Governance report on pages 38 to 42

The fees were reviewed 1n Janvary
2015 as they had lasi been
reviewed n Januory 2013

The basic fee increased by 513%
The fee for the chairmanship of the

Audit and Remuneration Committees

increased by 11 1% and 16 67%
respectvely The fee for the
Semor Independent Duector
increased by 12 5%

o
z

SWUALIAEIS [IoURUL) ‘

Product cllowances are reviewed hom time 1o ime
but not typically increased every year

Not apphcable

None
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Consideration of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Company

The Commuttce 1s advised of the proposed anaual pay review for staffin advance of them eonsidening the proposed pay reviews for Directors so that thiscan
be taken IN1o accourt when determining Dizectors remunerauon for the relevant financial year Saldry ncreases will ordinanly be (in percentage terms}in ine
with those of the wider workforce and sigmificant vanances would only be expected where Lhete had been o significam change in an sndmvidual s responsibiliues
or a market review had been conducted which suggested that an individual s salary was no longer compeutne or where the Committee wanled 10 Lake
account of an indwidual s performance or expenence The Committee would 4lso be advised if there were any other key changes 1o the terms and condions
on which stalfl are employed

Consideration of Employee Views

The Commitice does not formally consult directly with employecs on executve pay or in drawing up the Remuneration Policy but docs receve penodie updates
from 1he Personnel Director Share ownership amongst the Companys employees 1s encouraged through the SAYL Scheme and SIP These tax advantaged
schemes allow employees o participdte as sharcholders and abign their interests wich those of the shareholders

Consideration of Sharcholder Views
Shareholder views are sought when there 1s any significant change to Directors remuneration Should shareholders have any concernis about the Remuneration
Folicy the Committee Chairman would endeavour to meetwith them as appropnate to undentand and respond to any nsues they may have

Discretion Employed by the Commuttee

The Commuttee will operate the annual bonus the LTIP the ESOS and SESOS in accordance with their apphicable rules and in accordance with the Lisung
and Disclosute Rules where relevant The Committee refains discretion consistent with market practice in a number of regards to the operacion and adrministration
of these schemes These include but are not imited to routine matters such as who parucipatesin themn the uimimng of awards and vests the size of awards/
pay-outs the determination of vesting and the setung and application of targets Other non-routne matters where the Commiitee may need to use its
discretion include but are not mited to making adjustments 1o targets and/or pay outs when there has been a change in accounung policy, making adjustments
required when dealing with a change of control or restructunng of the Group determination of the treatment of leavers and adjustments required in cercatn
circumstances such as nghts 1ssues and corporate restructuring events Any use of the above discreunms would where relevant be explaned in the annual
Remuneraton Report and may as appropriate be the subject of consultaton with the Companys major shareholders

lllustration of the Application of the Remuneration Policy
Asignuficant proporuion of remuneration s [imked to performance parucularly at maximum performance levels The following charts demonstrate the key
elements of the remuneration package for the Executives under the Remunerauon Policy for the year ended 28 March 2015

Chief Executve Finance Director Corporate Affairs Director
1400 - 1400~ 1400
1,273
1200 1200 1200}
083
1000 b el 1000 944 1000 |-
30% ! P C
8oof . goo} 786 aox! 800
ool SO0 3"% b 6001 543
Lo 455 Caa
2l | 43 faga
400 400 356 15% 200 132% 4%,
229 (7% 24%
200 2001 200 I l '
c o
Minimum In line with Maximum Miumum In [ine with Maxmum Mintmum In ine with Maximum
£000 expeciahon £000 expectalian £000 expectation
Managmng Director - The Fuller's Beer Company ~ Managing Director - Fullers Inns
1 400 - 1400
1200 1200
1000 - 1000 -
BOO|- BOO b~
ode 627
600 [ i H 600 |- T :
23 3a%] s i31%!
400 - 133%! — 200 129%: o Bl Fixed'
265 3! 24% 297 18% [—1Bonus?
2001 I I I 2001 C_ILTP/Opuons’
o o] ' Fived meludes salary bepefiis and pension
Marimym In hne with Maximum AMimmum In ine with Maoximum ! g Tud
£000 expectaion 000 expeciahon nus includes Executne Bonus scheme

bOLTIP/Opuions includes LTIP ESOS and SESOS schemes
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Inllustraung the potenual reward the following assumptions have been made
Minimum perforrmance - fixed remuneration only with no pay-out under the bonus scheme or LTIP/share options

In line with expectation - this 15 based on what Executives could receive if bonuses pay out at 60% of the maximum bonus allowance bie 45% of salary} for
achieving target performance LTIP pay-out at 80% of maximum vesting pay-out under the ESOS at [00% and pay-out under the SESOS at 90%

Maximum - 100% of the bonus {1 e 75% of salary} and 100% of LTIP awards and Executive and Senior are reahsed

Recruitment and Promotion

The Company wishes Lo attract alened indwiduals o Executve positions cither from the sndustry/market or from internal succession ltwould not expect
any new Director Lo receive salary or any other pan of their remuneraiion package that 1s more than 50% higher than current mdaximum paymients which
could be received by the previous role holder The vanous components of the package for a new Executive are those already on offer to exasung Executives as
set out in the table above and they are salary benefits, bonuses share schemes and pension The approach to each component 1s as set out in the tables on
papes 44 10 47 subject o exrsung rule constraints Contracts would be olfered on the basis that on early iermination a payment equal 1o the salary due for
the unexpired period of thetr notice would be made payable in monthly instalments For the period of theur notice the Execunive woulld be expected to seek
aleernative income and if they are successful that income would be notifiable to the Company and would be set off against the remairing instalments The
Company is only likely to offer a cash amount on recrutment payment of which may be staggered to reflect the value of benefits a new recruit may have
recewved from a former employer Relocauon expenses and accommodation might be provided if necessary

In respect of Non Execuuve Directors the Company would not expect any new Director to recewve fees that are more than 50% hagher than the fees which
could be recewved by the previous role-holder

On the appointment of a new Chairman or Non-Executne Director the fees will be set taking inte account the experence and calibre of the individuat and
the fees paid to exising Non bxecutve Directars

Service Contracts/Payments on Loss of Office
Executive Directors have rolling service contracts terminable on no more than one years notice served by the Companyor Director

lan Bray and Jonathon Swaine are entitled on early termination of their contracts to a payment equal to the salary due for the unexpired peniod of their nouce
Thus 1s payable in monthly instalments and for the penod of thewr notice these Executives are expected to seek alternative income and if they are successful
that income must be noufied o the Company and will be set off against the remaining instalments

The contracts of the other Executives (which were all in place before 27 June 2012 and are different frony those that would be offered 10 any new Executives

and are therefore notn line with the approach 10 recruitment remuneration as set out above) state that they are enittled 10 a payment equal 1o salary and the
value of all benefits for the unexpired perod of their notice withoul any reduction for nuugation Benelits in kind would be valued with reference o theirr PIID
value or cost 10 the Company Pension benefits would be valued on a transfer value basis 10 be calculated and confirmed by the Company s pension adwisors

The Committee has considered whether they should attempt to negotiate a change to the contracts of these Executives but do not believe that this
currently appropnate

The rules of the bonus scheme and LTIP and other share option schemes set out what happens to awards if a participant ceases te be employed before the
end of a bonus year or performance period Generally any outstanding share awards will lapse on such cessation except in certain circumstances when a
Director might be deemed a gocd leaver” which could include on redundancy or retrement (these are examples and are not intended to be a definuve hist)
In determiming whether an Executve Director should be treared as a good leaver and the extent to which bonuses awards and share options vest or become
exercisable and/or a pro rated bonus s due the Commuttee will take into account the circumstances of an individual s departure and his pertormance

Service Contracts and Fee Letters
The obliganons contained in the Executives service contracts are described in the secuion entitled  Service Conrracts/Payments on Loss of Office”

MANIIACY
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Executive Directors Cote of confract Nolice penod
Simon Emeny 13 January 199G 12 months
James Douglas 31 July 2007 12 monihs
Richard Fuller 8 December 2009 12 months
tan Bray 12 December 2011 12 months
Jonathon Swaine 20 March 2012 12 months
Date of letter of appoiniment
Non-Executive Directors of Iz-oppoiniment Term expres
Michael Tumner 1)ty 2013 June 2016
John Dunsmore 15 November 2011 Jaruary 2018*
Sir James Fuller 1 June 2010 May 2016
tynn Fordham 15 November 2011 January 2018*
Alasiair Kerr 19 Juby 2071 August 2015

Subyect 1o approval of Lhe i appomtment by the Board of Dircctors during the puniod atthe Annua! General Mecung
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Annual Remuneration Implementation Report
The information on pages 50 o 56 has been audited

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commutiee consists entirely of Independent Nen Executive Directors and the members are currently Alastair Kerr {Chairman), John Dunsmore
and Lynn Fordham The Chairman of the Company Michael Turner and the Chief Executive Simon Emeny, are invited to attend the Commitiee meetings
and 1o advise where appropniate on the remuneration and performance of the Executive Directors and related matters The Committee s advised internally
by the Company Secretdry Severine Garnham who also dcts a5 Secretary to the Commutiee

The Committee s terms of reference state that the Committee 1s responsible for determining the total remuneration package {including pensions service
agreements and termunation payments) of the Execative Directors The Committee also reviews the remuneration of the Company s dwisional directors in
consultaton with the Chief Execuiive Members of the Committee have no personal financial interest in the Company other than as shareholders and Directors

The Committee’s Advisors

Xafiniy Consulung Limited provides the Commuttee and the Company with advice on matters relating to pensions BDO LLP provides the Committee

and the Company with advice in connection with the Companys LTIP and share option schemes and other remuneration matters Both of these consultants
have been providing advice to ihe Company for some years and were not specifically appointed by the Committee Xafinicy Consuling Limited 1s authonsed
and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and its actuaries are also separately required to abide by Actuarial Profession Standards which include the
requirement for it to provide objective and independent advice BDO abides by the Remuneraton Consultants Code of Conduct which requires them to
provide objective and independent advice Other advisors did not charge fees for services provided in respect of Directors remuneration during the year

Statement of Implementation of Remuneration Policy in the Current Financial Year
The Executive Direciors salanies wath effect from 1June 2015 are

Simon Cmeny - £410 000

James Douglas - £286 000

Richard Fuller - £177500

lan Bray -£211000

Jonathon Swaine - £220 000

The Non-Executive Directors fees were reviewed in January 2015 and changes were effecuve from1January 2015

The annual bonus for the financial year 2015/2016 will operate on the same basis as the previous financial year and will be consistent with the policy detatled
in the Directors Remuneration Policy above As explained on page 45 the Company does not publish bonus targets since these are considered commeraially
sensitive However, details of other performance measures which will operate are given on page 45 and details of the relative weighungs of each are given on
page 52

The awards under the LTIP are expecied to be made at 10% of salary for the Chief Executnve and Finance Director and 82 5% for the other Execuuves The LTIP
awards for the financial year 2015/2016 are subject 1o the following performance condition

LF1P Awards
100% —
80% p—
Percenioge
of shares
compnsed in an 0% —
awaid o be
released A% f—
20% p—
0% 1 ' : 1 L t 1 1 ' 1 " 1 1 1
g 2 g g 2 g B g g g g B B g g g 2]
% e = = o o = bl b o = & < &~ & Y &

Extent to which the percentage grawth in Adjusted EPS
exceeds the increase in RPI over the performance period
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Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table
The following table shows a breakdown of the remuncration of individual Directors who served in all or part of the year

Sclary/Fees Taxable benefits' Annuol bonus? NP/Ophons? Pensions* Total

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2005 2014 205 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Michael Tumer® 250 288 25 24 - o1 - 363 - - 275 736
Simen Emeny 383 365 25 22 223 213 512 288 101 89 1,244 Q77
James Douglas 279 270 22 22 163 15¢@ 407 233 49 47 920 73
Richard Fuller 173 170 22 21 81 74 201 122 30 50 507 437
lan Bray 210 206 22 21 97 89 209 - 37 a5 575 351
Jonathon Swaine 196 177 22 21 21 103 238 a7 34 31 611 379
John Dunsmore 58 57 - - - - - - - - 58 57
Sir James Fuller 45 44 1 1 - - - - - - 46 45
Lynn Fordham 59 58 - 1 - - - - - - 59 59
Alostarr Kerr 56 55 I 1 - - - - - - 57 54

! Taxable benefis include car alowances predu Lallowances and health cover

2 Bonus refers W the annual bonus sc herme based on performante in the penod under review and the value ot (ree shares awarded under the SIP (£3000)

b {TIP/Opuions iIncludes the value ransferred to Direciors from the LTIP ESO% SES0%5 and SAYE Sthemes Benefitis cak ulated as Lhe share price atthe year end less the exercise pice multiphed by
the number of vested optiens Optiuns are considered 1o have vested il substantially all of the performance cnteria have been metin the linancal year 1nwhi h case the number of vested uptions s
e.sum ied bascd on purlormance agdinst potformance medsuies The table below scts out how the award is inked o purformanc e of the Group

* Pensmonsancludes benedit tansurre d on deined contribution and delined bencficschemes Referto Total Ponsion Entitlemen sexciion bedow for detail on mdmvidual Directors ponsion
cntlements Banedittransferred on dedined bene it pension cnitleme nt s equivalunt to the, mciease in aceraed pension as at 28 March 2015 fex Joding an merease for mflationtaniluphed by 20

b Michael Turner became Non Executre Charman on §uly 2003 Michael Turmer reached retrement age o112 June 200 and therealic rwas drawing his pension and s0 acerues no lurther benefic

The following table shows how variable pay elements are inked to the performance of the Group in 2015

Target set
Actual Value
Perlormance measure Minumum Maximum Valve of award performance of awerd
% vest of onginal grant! Q6% of
EPS exceeds  EPS exceeds Minimum - 40% maximym
LTip EPS vs RPI RPt by + 9%  RPI by +24% Maximum ~ 100% 23 7% award
% vest of onginal grant? 100% of
Senior Execulve Share EPS exceeds  EPS exceeds Minimum - 40% maximum
Options EPS vs RPI RPiby + 9%  RPIby+21% Maximum - 100% 237% oward

' Maxinum grant equates to [00% of salary
¢ Manmum grani equaies 10 20% of salary

Percentage Change 1in Remuneration of Chief Executive
The table below shows the percentage change i the remuncration of the Chicf Dxcewive compared o that of the average of all of the Groups emiployees
taken as a wholc between the financial years ended 29 March 2014 and 28 March 2015

Chiel Execuive  Emplayees

MIAAIBAQ)

voday DEmeng ‘ l

Change in annual salary 4 9% 2 5%
Change n toxable benetis 13 6% 0%
Change i annual bonus' {0 5)% 19%

! The Change in annual bonus reflevts the mcesase of decrease i the peicentage of annual sslary paid out as bonus ang excudes the value of free shares awarded under the SIP The employee comp sator
group excludes hourly paid pub staff wha recene bonus incentives through ups via a ronc system ds opposed Lo other bonus incentre schemes

Salary

The Committee seis the base salary for each Executive Director by reference to indwidual and corporate performance compeutive market practice and
independent salary survey information Last year base pay was increased by approximately 3% for alt Directors This was broadly in ine with the median of
increases paid to head office staff

External Directorship Fees
The Board may give approval for Executives io have one non executive fole and to retain any related fees paid Simon Emeny 1s the Senior Independent
Non Executive Dhrector of Dunelm Group ple He retains fees of £50 000 per annum in respect of this position
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Bonus
Actual performance against targets 1s shown above Performance measures for the annual bonus were weighted for cach Director gs follows

Fuller s Beer

Grow Company  Fuller s Inns

profit profit profit

Simon Emeny 100% - -
James Douglas 100% - -
Richard Fuller 60% 40% -
len Bray &0% 40% -
Jonathon Swaine &0% - 40%

For the year uncler review Simon Fmeny and James Douglas each edrnecd d bonus of 57% of salary lan Bray and Richard Fuller each carned a bonus of 45% of
salary and Jonathon Swaine earned a bonus of 60'% of salary

Tortal Pension Entitlements
Michael Turner s a pensioner of the defined benefit Company pension plan under the Directors section

Richard T'uller became a deferred member of the defined benefn Company pension plan under the Directors secuion on 31 March 2014 wher he withdrew
from the plan He 151n receipt of a I75% salary supplement in heu of employers pension contribution Richard Fuller has confirmed that he will use his
supplement as part of his retrement planning With effect from | Apnil 2015 he opted to draw his pension benefits early under the defined benefit Company
pension plan

Simon Emeny became a deferred member of the defined benefit Company pension plan under the Main section when the plan closed to future accruals on
Ist January 2015 Prior to closure he received a salary supplement of 17 5% of the excess of his base salary aver the earnings cap for use as part of his retirement
planmung Foltowmng closure of the defined benefit Company pension plan to future accruals from January 2015 Simon Emeny s in receipt of a 7 5% salary
supplement in lieu of contributtons 1o a pension plan which he 1s expected to use as part of hus retrement planning

The details of pensions accrued under the defined benefit scheme as at 28 March 2015 were

Increase 1n accrued pension Total accrued pension Addinenal pension accrued
{oflowing for inflaton) at end of year? upen eaily retirement
Nommal renrement date
Simon Emeny 2,497 26,767 b2 -
Richard Fuller 2,524 26,081 62 -

b Increase in accrued pension (allowing for inflation} = this s the uccrued pension at the year end less the accrued pension ot the star of the year adusted for nfllauon over the vear
! Total accrued pension atend of year of rcurement dage daie 1 carlier - this s what the Director s entithed 1o receve, as an annual pension based en senve to date

James Douglas 1s paid & contribution of [75% of his salary by the Company which he 1s required to use as part of his overall reurement planning He 1s also required
10 contnbute 8% of his net salary ie his pension or another ivestment vehicle

The Company makes a conirbution of [75% of salary to lan Bray and Jonathon Swaine s nominated pension schermes They are also required to make contributions
of 8% themselves

Scheme Interests Awarded During the Finanaal Year
In respect of the 52 week perod ended 28 March 2015 the ollowing LTIPs Share Options and SIP awards were granted

% of award/
foce grant veshng
Numberof  Numberof Exercie pice Exewcsepnce  value ot Ocieof  Pelomance o mnmum
Director Scheme A shares Bshores  pet Ashare  perBshore  grant/award grent/award period ends threshold
Simon Emeny Lme 35,108 87,772 £2 65 FO 965 £423,492 30/06/20014 29/06/2017 40%
SIP 309 - £9 69 - £2004 04/12/2014 n/a n/a

Total 35,417 87,772 £426,486
James Douglas LTIP 25,533 63,834 £9 65 L0965 £307,993 30/06/2014 29/06/2017 A0%
SAYE 1,204 - £7 47 - £8 994 01/09/2014 01/09/2017 100%
SIP 309 - £0 69 - £2,994 04/12/2014 n/a n/a

Total 27,046 63,834 £319,981
Richard Fuller e 11,900 29,751 £Q &5 £0965 £143,545 30/06/2014 29/06/2017 A0%
ESOS 2588 - £Q 65 - £24,074 30/06/2014 30/06/2017 n/o
SAYE 401 - £7 47 - £2905 01/09/2014 01/09/2017 100%
SIP 309 - £Q 69 - £2,004 04/12/2014 n/a n/a

Total 15,198 29,751 £174,508
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% of oward/
Face gront veshing
Numbero!  Number of Exercise pnce  Exercise pnce valve at Date of Performonce ol minimum
Drrector Scheme A shares Bshares  per Ashore  per Bshare  gront/oward grent/oward penod ends threshold
lan Bray LTip 14,431 36,077 £ 65 £0965 £174,073 30/06/2014 29/06/2017 40%
SAYE 722 - £7 47 - £5,393 01/09/2014 01/09/2017 100%
SIP 309 - £9 69 - £2,994 04/12/2014 n/o n/a

Total 15,462 36,077 £182,460
Jonathon Swaine  {TIP 13,678 34,196 £2 65 L0965 £164,992 30/06/2014 29/06/2017 40%
SIP 309 - £2 60 - £2,994 04/12/2004 n/a n/a

Total 13,987 34,196 £167,986

! Face values have been calculaied using the actual grant prces also shown in the table except for SAYE For the SAYEScheme this 1s based on an aversge prive tor the three days before grant
{shown abovelalthough optons are granted ot a 200 disc ount
? Execuives may be awarded up to 20% of thers salary thiough the tax advantaged Executive Share Oplion Scheme and - unul its expiry = the non Lax sdvantaged Senior Executive Share Option
Schome Under the former sehe me only vptions worth £30: 000 may be huld at any tme

Share Scheme Interests Qutstanding at the Year End

Shates

The Company has Share Gwnership Guidelines for Directors which state that kxecutives should hold shares worth at least 100% of their salary Accordingly

Executves are required to retain

a) Allshares they hold in the SIP

b} Allshares they acquire as a result of exercising SAYF options

¢) Alishares that they acquire as a result of exercising options under the rax-advantaged Executive Share Option Scheme net of the cost of those options

d) Atleast 75% of any shares that they acquire as « result of exercising options under the non tax-advantaged Senior Executive Share Option Scheme net of
the cost of those opuions and the costs of seuling related 1ax and Ni thereen

v) Acleast 75% of any post-tax and Nl vested shares under the CTIP unoil their guideline 1 met

All of the Executve Directors shareholdings already meet the guideline with the exception of lan Bray who joined the Company in 2Cil

Directors’ Shareholdings

Benehoal  Non beneficial Benelical  Non-beneficial
Interest at Inlerest Interest o Interast ar
Directors’ Share Interests z A;%rlcg =2 “;ngg i Ag%llcz # %%[lcg
Michael Turner
A ordinary 40p shares 271,378 - 271,378 -
B ordinary 4p shares 2,988,394 - 2,088,304 -
C ordinary 40p shares 624,260 - 624,260 -
2nd Preference £1 shares 71 - 71 -
Simon Emeny
A ordinary 40p shares 28,730 - ©5,421 -
B ordinary 4p shares 738,883 - 677,208 -
James Douglas
A orcinary 40p shares 48,449 - 40,501 -
B odinary 4p shares 178,583 - 132,005 -
Richard Fuller
A ordinary 40p shares 8,106 500,000 6,996 500,000
B ardinary 4p shares 3,253,744 10935015 3,351,606 1093505
C ordinary 40p shares 25,000 - 25000 -
2nd Prefetence £1 shares 303 - 303 -
lan Bray
A ordinary 40p shares 2,266 - 1,957 -
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Beachiciol  Non benchicial Benchoal  Nen beneleol
Interest ot Interest Interest ai Interest at
Drrectors” Share Interests % I\g%rfg oz A;%hl:g % Aggfld-' % N;%TE
Jonathon Swame
A ordinary 40p shares 18,827 - 14,934 -
B ordinary 4p shares 62,688 - 52,461 -
Jchn Dunsmore
A ordinary 40p shares 23,305 - 23,305 -
Sir James Fuller
A ordinary 40p shares 88,042 - 88,942 -
B ordinary dp shares 9,143,952 - @,143,952 -
C ordinary 40p shares 2,702003 ~ 2702003 -
Lynn Fordham
A ordinary 40p shares 13,008 - 3,182 -
Alastarr Kerr
A ordinary 40p shares 3,241 - 3,941 -
There were no changes in the beneficial interests of any director to 27 May 2015
Director's Share Options
As at As at Price at
29 Maich 28 March  Exercuse Oaleof  Exercisoble Expiry exercise
Director Scheme 2014 Exercised lapsed  Gronted 2015 price grant from :fore dote
Simon Emeny SESQOS 2007 2007) - - -  £4 98 1B/07/006 18/07/09 18/07/16 £972
SESOS 4,285 [4,285) - - - €75t 18/07/07 18/07/10 18/07/17 £972
SESOS Q000 {2,990 - - - £405 15/07/08 15/07/11 15/07/18 £972
SESOS eRl6 9216 - - - £4 80 16/07/09 16/07/12 16/07/19 £972
SESOS 5,190 - - - | 5,190 \ £578 12/07/1C 12/07/13 12/07/20
SAYE 2530 - - - 2,530 €464 01/09/10 01/0%/15 01/03/16
SESOS 515 - - - 515 £630 30/11/10 30/11/13 30/11/20
SESOS 9,139 - 2,742 -1 6,397 £700 20/07/11 20/07/14 19/07/2)
SESOS @.446 - - - 9,446 £705 12/07/12 12/07/15 11/07/22
ESOS 3,296 - - - 329 £210 01/07/13 01/07/16 01/07/23
SESCS 4,945 - - - 4945 £910 01/07/13 01/07/16 01/07/23
SAYE 497 - - - 497  £7 24 01/09/13 01/09/18 01/03/19
Total 61,756 {26,198) {2,742) - 32,B16
James Douglas SESOS 2,391 - - - 2,391 £4 05 15/07/08 15/07/11 15/07/18
SESOS 8,625 - - -| 8625| £480 16/07/09 16/07/12 16/07/19
SESOS 4,504 - - -1 4504 €578 12/07/10 12/07/13 12/07/20
SESOS 028 - - - 628 €630 30/11/10 30/11/13 30/11/20
SESOS 7,277 ~  12,183) - 5094\ $£709 20/07/11 20/07/14 19/07/23
SESQS 7,517 - - - 7,517  §£705 12/07/12 12/07/15 11/07/22
SESOS 2,659 - - - 2,659 £910 0V/07/13 C1/07/16 O1/07/23
ESOS 3206 - - - 3296 £210 01/07/13 C1/07/16 30/06/23
SAYE - - - 1,204 1,204 £747 01/09/14 01/09/17 Q1/03/18
Total 36,897 - (2183) 1,204 35918
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As ot As at Price of éo
29 March 28 March  Exercise Date of  Exercisoble E:g)uy exercise P!
Director Scheme 2014 Exeicised lopsed  Granted 2015 price grant from ate dote 2
Richard Fuller SAYE 801 {801} - - - £388 01/09/09 01/09/14 01/03/15 £9 41
SESOS 2,592 - - - 2,592 £578 12/07/10 12/07/13 12/07/20
ESOS 869 - - - 86% 12/07/10 12/07/13 12/07/20
SAYE 665 - - - 665  £464 01/09/10 01/09/15 01/03/16
SESOS 4,612 - {1,384 -] 3228 709 20/07/11 20/07/14 19/07/21
SAYE 563 - - - 563 £547 01/09/11 01/09/16 01/03/17 L
SESOS 4,765 - - - 4,765 £705 12/07/12 12/07/15 11/07/22 g
SESOS 3,747 - - - 3747 £210 01/07/13 Q1/07/16 01/07/23 CE
SAYE 828 - - - 828 £724 01/09/13 01/09/18 01/03/19 g
ESOS - - - 2,588 2,588 £2 65 30/06/14 30/06/17 30/06/24 =
SAYE - - - 401 401 £747 01/09/14 01/09/19 01/03/20
Total 19,442 (801} {1,384) 2989 20,246
lan Bray SESCS 1,503 - - - 1,503 £705 12/07/12 12/07/15 11/07/22
ESOS 4,255 - - - 4,255 £705 12/07/12 12/07/15 12/07/22 —
SESOS 4,549 - - - 4549 £910 01 /07713 01/07/16 Q1/07/23 ?
SAYE 497 - - - 497  £7 24 Q1/09/13 01/09/16 01/03/17 %
SAYE - - - 722 722 £747 01/09/14 01/09/17 01/03/18 -
Total 10,804 - - 722 11,526
Jonathon Swomne SAYE 1,640 {1,649) - - - £547 01/09/11 01/09/14 01/03/15 £9 30
SESOS 709 - - - 709 £705 12/07/12 12/07/15 11/07/22
ESOS 4,255 - - - 4,255 £705 12/07/12 12/07/15 12/07/22
SESQS 3,900 - - - 390t  £910 01/07/13 0V/07/16 01/07/23
Total 10,514 {1,649} - - 8,865
TOTAL 139,413 (28,648) (6,309} 4,215 109,371

Note The Executive Share Option Scheme [ESQS) Savings related share option scheme (SAYE] and Share Incennive Plan (SIP) are all tax advantaged share option scheme The Senior Executive Share
Optien Scheme (SESOS) 1s not a tax advantaged share oprion scheme

‘:l Vested but unexercised oprions

Directors Long Term Incentive Plan Allocations

SIUIWIRIEIG [RIDUEUL ‘

Total at Awarded Vested lopsed  Total held ot Monelary

29Maich  duingthe  dwing he  dunng the 28 March  value of ves:
Direcior 2014 year yeor year 2015 £000* Ea—
Simon Emeny
A ordinary 40p shares 107,312 35,108 23,397}  113,161] 105,862 223
8 ordinary 4p shares 268,28) 87 772 58,493) (32 903) 264,657 56
James Douglas
A ordinary 40p shares 83,005 25,533 {18,631)  {10,4B0) 79,427 177
B orcinary 4p shares 207,515 63,834 {46,578) {26,200 198,571 45
Richard Fuller
A ordinary 40p shares 39,374 11,900 |8,855) 14,981} 37,438 85
B ardinary 4p shares 98,438 29,751 [22,138) [12,452) 93,599 22
lan Bray
A ordinary 40p shares 30924 14431 - - 45,355 -
B odinary 4p shares 773N 36077 - - 113,388 -
Jonathon Swaine
A ordinary 40p shares 32 988 13,678 {4,091) {2,301} 40,274 39
B ordinary 4p shares 82,472 34,106 {10,227 {57531 100,488 10

The market price of A ordinary shares on 30 July 2014 for the LTIP aw ards that vested and were refeased e parncipants was £9 50 the pnee of B ordinary shares 15 assumed to be £0 95
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The performance condittons for the LTIP are sel out in the tables on pages 52 and 53 of this report

Payments to Past Directors

Anthony Fuller former Chairman and now President receives an annual royalty of £15 000 which is paid in recognition of the fact that Mr Fuller has given the
Company ongoing exclusive pernussion o use his name and signature on any Company product

Nigel Atkinson former Non Executive Director recerves annual fees of £7500 which are pard because Mr Atkinson continues 1o act for the Company as our
ambassador in the Hampshire area attending vanous events as the Companys representative

Payments for Loss of Office
There were no payments to Directors or former Directors for loss of office

Performance Graph and Table
The graph below shows a companson of the Total Shareholder Return { TSR} for the Companys Iisted A ordinary shares for the last 10 financial years agamst
the TSR for the companies in the FTSE Travel & Lerure Index The Company 1sa comtituent of this Index and therefore it1s an appropnate chesce for this report

1200 — — Fuller, Sruth & Turner PLC
— FTSE All-Share Travel & Leswe (rebased)

Q } | 1 | | I | | | | I 1 | ] |
Mar 10 Juk10 Naw 10 Marl ] Juk1 Now 11 Mar 12 Juk12 Nov12 Mar 13 Juk13 Now13 Mar1d Juk14 Now 14 Mar-15

Source Thomson Datosiream

The table below shows the total remuneratien figure for the Chicf Cxecuttve over the last five finencial years and the annual bonus and LTIP pay out for cach
yLaras 4 pereentage of the maximum available

2017 2012 2013 20142 2015
Single figure total remunerchion 1,518 Q44 1,088 Q77 1,244
Annual bonys' 70% 56% 41% 77% 76%
mp 85% 92% 56% 64% 96%

' Annuel bonus as o percentage of the maxsmum avanlable

7 The single Wial remuneration ligure includes an ncrease n the accrued benefitunder the detned benetit Company pension plun to the value of £44 000 equating o a benefit ot §880:000
Machoel Tuener did not receve such an increase i the, other years declosed Excluding this pension benefit reduces the single total igute to 638 000 for the year

b Simon Emeny was apponted as Group Chief Execuuve in July 2013 The single Lotal figure comprises of the remuneration receved by Simon Emeny in the financial year hence e ludes
remunetation Tor the three months poor Lo this promotion
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Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The Lable below shows the Lotal remunerauon for the Groups emplayees compared (o other key financial indicators
140 —
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Toxes Ramuneration  Capilal Dividends? Share
payable o Expendiure & buybacks
HMRC! Business
Combinations?

! Taxes payable to HMRC 1s based upon tanincurted i the year and includes corperanion tax VAT PAYE NI duty stamp duty non domestic rates property heences emvironmental lesies and machine
game duty |t has ncreased due to increased VAT and duty payments resulting from the continued grewth of the Group This measure has been selected as it reflects a significant eutflow for the Group

* Capnal enpenditure {including business combinauons) represents cash paid 1s consistent with the numbers disclosed in the financial statements and has increased due to the conversion of The
Lamb & Flag from leasehold to freehold inthe year This measure has been selected as it reflects a sigmificant outflow for the Group

' Dradends represents the ntentm deidend for 2014 poud 1n the ye w and the final diidend tor 2014 th i has been proposed but not paid in the year

Statement of Voung at the Last Annual General Meeting
At the Annual General Meetung held on 24 July 2014 votes cast by proxy in respect of the approval of the Directors Remuneration Reporr were as follows

Number of votes ~ Percenlage of voles  Number of voles  Percentage ol votes Number of
Resolulicn text cast for cast for cast agoinst cast against Total vates cast votes withheld
Approval of
Remuneration Report 21,441,071 @8 70% 1,207,896 13C% 92,648,967 4,423,373

The Directors Remuneration Report encompassing pages 43 to 57 was approved by the Board and signed on 1ts behalf

s 8. T

Alastair Kerr
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

4 June 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Fuller, Smith & Turner PLC

Our opinien on the financial statements 15 unmodified
In our opinion

e the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Groups and of the Parent Company s affairs as at 28 March 2015 and of the Groups profit
for the 52 week penod then ended

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporuing Standards { IFRSs™} as adopted by the
European Union

* the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with IFRSs as adopied by the Furopean Umion and as apphed in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

* Lhe financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group financial stalements
Aracle 4 of the International Accounting Standards {1AS | Regulation

Who we are reporung to

This report 15 made solely to the Company s members as a body m accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has
heen undertaken so that we might state to the Company s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors report and tor no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company s members
d> a body for our audit work for this repart or for the apinions we have formed

What we have audited

Fuller Sruth & Turner PLC s financial statements for the 52 week penod ended 28 March 2015 compnse the Group Income Statement the Group and Company
Statements of Comprehensive Income the Group and Company Balance Sheets the Group and Company Statements of Changes in Equity the Group and
Company Cash Flow Statements and the related notes 1 to 3l

The financial reporung framework that has been applied in the preparauon of the financial statements 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and, as regards the Parent Company financial statements as applied In accordance with the provisions of the Comparnes Act 2006

Our assessment of risk

In arnving al our epinions set out In this report we hughlight the following nsks that are 1n our judgement, likely to be most important 1o users understanding
of eur audit

Assessment of impairment of property. plant and equipment and goodwill

The nisk As more fully explaned in note 11 the Directors are required to make an impairment assessment for property plant and equipment when there is
anindication that an asset may be impatred and for goodwill annually The process for measunng and recogmising impairment under 1AS 36 Impairment of
Assets 1s complex and highly judgemental parucularly as each indvidual rading outlet is treated a5 4 separate cash-generating unit for impairment purposes
We therefore identified the valuation of property plant and equipment and goodwill s a significant risk requinng special audit consideration

Qur response Qur audit work included but was not restncied to using our valuation specialst to evaluate the methodology and avsumptions used by the
Direetors 1 purform the iImpattment assessment 0 particular those relating o the forecasted growth and discount rates for cach cash generaung unit and
the allocation of goodwill Lo groups of cash-gencrating umits We compared the methadologies applied and the assumptions used 1o our expectations and
emerging markel activity We also used our valuations specialists o challenge the key assumpuons used by management

The Groups accounuing policy on impairment is ncluded in note | with further disclosure gnenin respect of property plant and equipment in note 1land
goodwillin note 10 The Audit Commuttee alse dentfied impairment testing of property assets as a significant sssue in 1ts report on page 41 where the
Commuttee alo describes how it addressed this issue
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The nisk of fraud i revenue recogmition

The nisk Under Intemational Standards on Audiung ( 15A57) (UK and Ireland) there is a presumed nsk of fraud in revenue recogmiion As the Group records
a substanttal proporuon of sales in cash and through point of sale transactions we wlenufied raud in revenue recogmition a3 a significant nsk requiring special
audht consideration

Our response Our audit work included but was not restricted to an evaluation of the revenue recogrition policies for each of the Groups three operating
segments in accardance with the Groups stated accounung pohaies and I1AS 18 Revenue Foreach segment we tested o sample of revenue transacuons @ proof of
dehvery documentation to assess whether the Groups revenue recoghition policy was being apphied consistently in cach case: This was supporied by further
substanuve 1ests of detail in respect of trade recevables thraugh @ combination of third party confirmauens wesung of subsequent receipts or proof of delivery

The Croups accounting policy on revenue recognition 1s included in note | with disclosure of revenues in note 3

Management overnide of controls
The nisk Under ISAs (UK and lreland) for all of our audits we are required o consider the nsk of management overnide of controls Due to the unpredicrable
nature of this nsk we have assessed It as a significans nsk requinng special audit consideration

Our response Ourauditwork included but was not restricted to specific procedures relaung to this nsk that are requred by ISA (UK and lreland) 240
The Auditors Responsibitiies Relating 1o Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements This included tests of journal entries using computer assisked analyucal
techniques and in particular an assessment of bath unusual transactions and an analysis of the Imuators of journal entnes Our work also included the
evaluation of judgements and assumptions In managements csiimates assessing the extent of esumation uncertainty using sensitivity analysis and tests
of significant transactions outside the normal course of business

In parucular we assessed each of the cnucal judgements and estimates as set out 1n the Groups accounting policies in note | with a parucular focus on the
assessment of Impairment of property plant and equipment and goodwill, as set out above

Fair value measurement of The Stable entities acquisition

The nisk As a significant business combination in the period there 15 a requirement to recognise the acquisiiion in ine with IFRS 3 Business Combinations
The risk s that inappropriate valuation and accounting treatment may be applied due to the complex nature of the acquisiion and specihically the terms ot the
put and call aption We therefore considered the fair value measurement of The Stable entiies acquired as a wigruficant nsk requinng »pecial audit consideration

Our response Our audit work included bur was not restricted to an evaluation of the acquisition accounting paper provided by management in conjunction
wath IFRS 3 Business Combinations and a review of the Share Purchase Agreement and other relevant signed documentauion relaung to the acquistiion In
addition we have assessed the recognition and valuation of the conungent consideration including the put and call opuons inline with IFRS 3 Business Combinations

Business Combination disclosure given in respect of the acquisition s detailed in note 17 The Audit Commuttee also identified the acguisiion of a majonty
interest in The Stable as a significant 1ssue in 1ts report on page 41 where the Commuittee also descnbes how it addressed this issue
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Independent Auditor's Report continued
to the Members of Fuller, Smicth & Turner PLC

Our application of mateniality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Matenahty

We define matenality as the magnitude of misstaterment in the financial statements that makes it probable that the econonuc decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person would be changed or mfluenced We determined marenality for the auditof the Group financial statements as a whole 1o be £17 millon
which 1s 5% of a forecast of the penod s profit before taxation As the profic before raxation tor the penod 15 not substantially different from the forecast we
have not revised our assessment of matenality This benchmark s considered the most appropnate because it s one of the mastimportant key performance
indicators for the Board and its shareholders as well as being a crucial compenent of the carmings per share calculation and the value of Dircctors bonuses

We usc a different level of matenahty performance matenality 10 drive the extent of our testing and this was set at 75% of inancial statement matenaliy for the
audut of the Group financial statements We also deterrmune a lower leve] of specific matenahty for certain areas such as Directors remunertation and retaled
pdrty (ransactions

We determined the thresheld at which we will commuricate misstatements in respect of the Croup financial statements to the Audic Committee to be £86 000
In addition we will communcate misstatements below that threshold that in our view warrant reposting on qualitative grounds

Overview of the scope of our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Our responsibilines under those standards are further described
m the Responsibiliuies for the financial statements and the audsit section of our report We beheve that the audi evidence we have obtained ss sufficient and
approprate to provide a basis for our opinion

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethicat Standards for Auditors and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsitilities in accordance with those Ethical Standards

The Group 1s organised innto three principal operating divisions Managed Pubs and Hotels Tenanted Inns and The Fullers Beer Company Although the
Curoup financial staiements are a consohdation of three trading subsidiaries, over 99% of the Groups revenue and profit belore Laxation arose in the Parent
Company The subsidianes are subject 1o analyucal procedures Our audi approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Groups business and s
nsh-based consisting of substantve tesung on significant transactions balances and disclosures the extent of which was based on various factors such as our
overall assessment of the cantrol environment the design effectuiveness of contrels over individual systems and the management of specific nisks

Other reporting required by regulations

Our opinion on other marters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 1s unmodified
In our opimion

* the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance wath the Companies Act 2006 and

« Lhe information given in Lthe Strategic Report and Directors Report for the financial period for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consisient with
the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the 15As (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if in our opinien nformatien in the Annual Reporris
s materially mconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements or

 apparently matenally mcorrect based on or matenally tnconsistent with our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of performing our audu or

® otherwise musleading
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In particular we are required to report to you if
# we have identified any inconsisiencies between our knowledge acquired during the audit and the Drrectors statement that they consider the Annual Report
s fair balanced and understandable or

* the Annual Repont does not appropriatety disciose those matters that were communicated o the Audn Commuitiee which we consider should have been disclosed

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if in our opimon
* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us or

* the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are notin agreement with the accounung
records and returns or

= certain disclosures of Direciors remuneration specified by law are not made or
& wi have not reccived dll the infermation and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Lising Rules we are required (o review
» the Dhrectors statement set out on page 20 1n relauion to gomng concern and

« the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Companys complhance with the 10 provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audt

Whar an audit of inancial statements involves
Adescnption of the scope of an audst of financial statements is provided on the Finanaial Reporiing Council s website at www frc org uk /auditscopeukprivate

What the directors are responsible for
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out en page 37 the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for betng satisfied that they give a true and fair view

What we are responsible for
Our responsibility 18 1o audit and express an optmon on the financial statements i accordance with applicable law and Internanionai Standards on Auditng
(UK and treland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Charles Hutton-Potts

Senior Staturory Auditor

for and on behalt of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutery Auditor Chariered Accountants
London

4 June 2015
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Group Income Statement
for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015

52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 52 weeks ended 29 March 2014
Before Before
excephional  Excephonal exceptional  Exceptional
Wems ttems Total items flems Tola|
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 3 3215 - 3215 2880 - 2880
Operating costs 4.5 {279 2} (15) (280 7) {248 1) 19 12500Q)
Operating profit 423 1 5) 408 399 {1 % 380
Profit on disposal of properties - o8 08 - 1@ 19
Pension fund curtalment gain - 12 12 - - -
Finance costs 56 59} {08) 167) {5 8] {04 16 4)
Profit before tax 364 {03} 361 341 [0 6} 335
Taxanon 57 79 o1 {7 8) 7 9 35 {4 4]
Profit for the year 285 102} 283 262 29 261
Attnbutable to
Equity shareholders of the Parent Company 284 02} 284 2672 29 291
Non-contiolling interests on - (01} - - -
Eamnings per share per 40p ‘A’ and ‘C’ ordinary share Pence Pence Pence Pence
Basic 8 5115 5214
Drluted 8 50 42 5139
Adjusted 8 515 4594
Diluted adjusted 8 5078 46 27
Earnings per share per 4p ‘B’ ordinary share
Basic 8 512 521
Diluted 8 504 514
Adjusted 8 515 4 49
Diluted adusled 8 s08 463
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Group and Compan?/ Statements of Comprehensive Income
for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015

52weeks 52 weeks @
ended ended 3
28 March 26 March 3
Group MNote 2%]: ZOS.!r:
Profit for the year 283 291
Hams that moy be reclassified to profit or loss
Net (lossesl/gons on valuahon of financial assets and habilines 26 (30) 24
Tax reloted 1o tems that may be reclassihed 1o profit or loss 06 {0 4]
lems that will net be reclassified to prefit or loss —
Net octuanal losses on pension schemes 23 (83} 41 5‘
Tax related to irems thot will not be reclassihed lo profit or loss 17 04 u%
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (90) 9 'g
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of fax, atinbutable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company 193 272 )
Total comprehensive income atinbutable 1o
Equity shareholders of the Parent Compeny 19 4 27 2
Non-controllng interest 1) -
Company o
Profit for the year 270 264 2
ltems that may be reclasaibied lo proht or loss %
Net {lossesi/gains on valuahion of financial assets and hakhihes 26 30 24 *
Tox related to items that may be reclassified fo profit or loss 06 [0 &}
hems ihot will not be reclossified to profit or loss
Net actuarol losses on pension schemes 23 8 3] {41}
Tox reloted to tems that will nat be reclassified to profit or toss 17 04
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax 9 0) {19
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of fax 180 245

=
=
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Group and Company Balance Sheets

28 March 2015

Group Growp Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Note £m £m €m Em
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 1G 387 344 85 7@
Property, plont and equipment 11 4719 434 8 4667 4331
Investment properhes 12 44 47 46 47
Dernvative financiol assets 13 03 08 03 C8
Other non-curient assets 14 03 o4 03 G4
Investmenis in subsidianes 15 - - 248 94 8
Defered tox assets 25 84 62 82 61
Total non-current assets 5242 4813 5834 547 8
Current assets
Inventonies 18 106 106 106 106
Trode and other recervables 19 177 183 26 4 183
Cash and short term deposits 22 51 41 48 41
Total current assets 334 330 418 330
Assets dassified as held for sale 20 - 12 - 12
Current habiites
Trade and cther poyobles 21 492 461 1459 140 4
Current tax payable 3¢ 39 39 39
Provisions 25 04 12 04 12
Borowings 22 200 - 200 -
Total current liabiihes 735 512 1702 1455
Non-current hiabilthes
Borrowings 22 147 7 1439 147 5 1437
Denvative financial habilities 13 61 08 31 08
Retirement benefit obligations 23 24 4 172 24 4 17 2
Deferred 1ax habilihes 25 213 226 213 226
Provisions 25 25 22 25 22
Other non-current poyobles 21 04 04 - -
Total non-current liobiihes 7202 4 1871 1988 1865
Net assets 2817 2772 2562 2500
Caprtal and reserves
Share capital 27 228 228 228 228
Share premium account 27 48 48 48 48
Capital redemphion reserve 27 31 31 31 31
Own shares 27 135} [? 7} (13 5) 19 7]
Hedging reserve 27 (2 4) - (2 4) -
Retained earnings 2700 25612 2414 2290
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 2848 2772 2562 2500
Non-controlling inferest 31 - - -
Total equity 2817 277 2 256 2 2500

Approved by the Board and signed on 4 June 2015

/
Wy chael Tomss
/
et FA
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Group and Compan?; Statements of Changes in Equity

for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 20

Non- ?
Share Share Capital Own controlling 3
capital premwm  redemphon shares Hedging Retained interest Total &
[note 27} account reserve {note 27) reserve eamings Total [note 16) equiy
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Ai 30 March 2013 228 48 31 18 7 (1 8] 2392 259 4 - 259 4
Profit for the year - - - = - 291 291 - 261
Other comprehensive
income/loss) for the year - - - - 18 137) 19 - {19
Total comprehensive
income/{loss} for the year - - - - 18 254 27 2 - 272 —
Shares purchased to be held g
in ESOT or as reasury - - - 153) - - 15 3] - 153 o
Shares released from ESOT —';‘:
and freasury - - - 43 - 129 14 - 14 g
Dwidends {note 9} - - - - - 79 79 - 79
Share-based payment charges - - - - - 18 18 - 18
Tox credited direclly 1o equity
nate /) - - - - - 06 06 - 06
Total transachons with owners - - - (10} - (8 4) (¥ 4) - (? 4} —
At 29 March 2014 228 48 31 ¢7 - 256 2 277 2 - 277 2 SE:
Prolit for the year - - - - - 28 4 28 4 01) 28 3 5
E
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (2 4) (6 6} 20} - {0 N
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - (2 4} 218 194 on 193
Shores purchased 1o be held
in ESOT or as ireosury - - - 71 - - 71 - 71
Shares released from ESCT
and treasury - - - 33 - (2 3) 10 - 10
Dividends [note 9} - - - - - {871 87 - (87)
Share-based payment charges - - - - - 26 26 - 26

Tax credited directly 1o equity
{note 7} - - - - - 04 04 - 04

Adsiments ansing from
change n non controffing

E
o
7

interest [note 16) - - - - - - - 30 (30)
Total fransachons with owners - - - (38) - {80) (8 (30) (148)
At 28 March 2015 228 48 31 (13 5) (24) 2700 2848 (3 1) 2817
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Company Statements of Changes in Equity

for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015

Shore Share Capttal Own
capital premium  redemphion shares Hedging Retained

{note 27) account reserve [note 27) reserve earnings Total
Company £m £m £m £m £m
At 30 March 2013 228 48 31 8 7) 118 2147 234 ¢
Profit for the year - - - - - 264 264
Other comprehensive incame/lloss) for the year - - - - 18 137) {19
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - - - - 18 227 245
Shares purchased to be held in ESOT or as treasury - - - {53 - - 53]
Shares released from ESQOT and treasury - - - 43 - (29 14
Dvidends [note &) - - - - - (79 7 9
Share—based payment charges - - - - - 18 18
Tax credited directly 1o equity - - - - - 06 06b
Total transactions with owners - - - (10} - (8 4) (9 4)
At 29 March 2014 228 48 31 {27 - 2290 2500
Picfit tor the year - - - - - 270 270
Other comprehensive {loss)/income for the year - - - - 2 4) 16 4) 120
Total comprehensive income for the yeor - - - - {2 4) 204 180
Shares purchased lo be held in ESCT or as treasury - - - 71 - - 7 1)
Shares released from ESOT and treasury - - - 33 - 123) 10
Dundends {note 9} - = - - - 871 87
Share based payment charges - - - - - 26 26
Tox credited directly to equity - - - - - 04 04
Total transachons with owners - - - (38 - (8 0) (11 8)
At 28 March 2015 228 48 31 {13 5) (2 4) 241 4 2562
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Group and Compan?; Cash Flow Statements

for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 20

Group Group Company Company ‘19
52weeks  S2wecks  52wooks 52 weeks g
ended ended ended ended 3
28 March 29 March 28 March 20 March
015 2014 2015 2014
Note £m £m £m £m
Profit before tax 361 335 342 300
Net finance costs before exceptional lems 59 58 88 90
Excephonal llems 03 06 03 06
Depreciation and amorhsation 16 4 147 158 14 5
Gan on disposal of property, plont and equipment - o1 - o1 g:
587 545 591 540 é
Difference between pension charge and cash paid {07} {0 5) 107} {0 5§ %’
Share-bused payment charges 26 18 26 18 e
Change in kade ond other ecewvables {0 6) 10 {0 4) 10
Change in nventories - [(ol)] - on
Change i frade and other payables 17 28 09 28
Cash impact of operating exceptonal tems 5 {17} (21} 7 210 .
Cash generated from operations 600 574 598 569 —g__
Tax pad (8 3) (80 {8 3} (80 3
Cash generated from operating activities 57 49 4 515 489 2
Cash flow from investing actrvihes
Business combinations i7 125 2} 12 &) (21 4) @4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {31 1) (28 5) 128 2) (28 1)
Overdralt acquired on acquisiion {01) {01) - -
Sale of property plant and equipment 33 26 33 26 El
Net cash outflow from investing achvihes {53 1) 135 &) (46 5) (35 1) E_
Cash flow from finanting activihes %
Purchase of own shares 27 71 (53 71 153) 4
Receipts an release of own shares io option schemes 10 14 10 14
Interest paid {52) {5 2) (52) 152
Preference dmidends paid Q {01 o on on
Equity dividends paid (87) {79 (87) (7 %)
Drawdown of bank leans 245 34 245 34
Repaymen of other loans {0 5) G 3) - {03)
Loans to subsidiary companies - - (7 2) -
Cost of refinancing 1) - (1 -
Cost of new denvative mstruments (0 4) - (04) -
Net cash outflow from financing activihes 24 (14 0) {43) |14 0}
Net movement in cash and cash equrvalents 10 {02) 07 02
Cash and cash equwalents ol the start of the year 22 41 43 41 43
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 51 41 48 41
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Notes to the Financial Statements

| Authonisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies

Authonsation of Financial Statements and Statement of Comphance with IFRSs

The financtal statements of Fuller Smuth & Turner PLC and its subsichanes {the Group’) for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 were authonised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 5 June 2015 and the Balance Sheet was signed on the Board s behalfby M| Turner Fuller Smith & Turner PLC 15 a public kmied
company incorporated and domiciied in Cngland and Wales The Companys ordinary A shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange

The Groups and Companys financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standaeds ( [FRSs'} as adopted for
use in the European Union and applied to the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 1n accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and by the Company are set out in the accounung policies below

Profit attributable 10 members of the Parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 a separate Income Statement for the Parent Campany has not been prepared The profitattnbutable
to ordinary shareholders and included in the financial statements of the Parent Company was £270 million (2014 £26 4 mullion) There was no dividend from
subsidiary companies during the current year (2014 £ml)

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The accounnting policies which follow set out those policses which apply in preparing the financial statemenits for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015

The Group and Company financsal staiements are presented tn Sterling and all values are shown in nulhons of pounds {tm} reunded Lo the nearest hundred
thousand except when othorwise indicated

The Directors have considered a number of cash flow scenarios and have determined that the Group has adequate resources an appropniate financial
structure and suitable management arrangements in place to continue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future

Adoption of New Standards and Interpretanons
The following new and amended iFRS and IFRIC interpretations are effective for the Groups period commenaing 30 March 2014

= |A% 39 {June 2013) Novauon of Dervatives and Conunuation of Hedge Accounting | Jarnsary 2014
* [AS 36 (May 2013) Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non Financial Assets 1 January 2014
® [FRIC 21 Levies [7June 2014
* [FRS 10 IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (October 2012) Investment Entities 1 January 2014
& |AS 32 {(December 20} Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabikues 1 January 2014
o [FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1January 2014
s [FRS L Jomnt Arrangements | January 2014
* [FRS 10 Consoldated Financial Statements I January 2014
= |AS 28 {revised May 201} Investmenis in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2014
» [AS 27 {revised May 2011) Separate Financial Statements | January 2014

Basis of Consolidauon
The Croup financtal statements consalidate the financial stalements of Tuller Srmith & Turner PLC and the enuties 1 controls {iLs subsidianies) drawn up for
the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 (2014 52 weeks ended 29 March 20i4)

Subsidiaries are consoldated from the date of their acquisition being the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated unul

the date thar such control ceases Control compnses the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the nvestee so as to obtain benefit from its
aclivities and 1s achieved through direct or indirect ownership of voung nghts currently exercisable or converuble potenual voung nghis or by way of contraciual
agreement The hnanaal statements ol subsidianies are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company using consistent accounting policies
Allintercompany balances and transactions including unrealised profits ansing from them are elminated

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets ate carrned at cost ess accumulated amorusation and impairment losses Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are catried
initially at cost Anintangible asset acguired s part of a business combinduion is recognised outside goodwallif the assetis separable or anses from contractual
or other legal nghts and 1ts fair value can be measured reliably Payments made to acquire operaung leases from third parties are classified as intangible assets
and amorused over the expected life of the lease and recognised in the Income Statement

Goodwill

Business combinations arc accounted for ender ITRS 3 using the purchase method Any excess of the conaiderauon of the business combination over the
Groups Interestin the net tair value of the idenufiable assers labilines and contingent kabiicies is recognised in the Balance Sheet as goodwill and 15 not
amortsed To the extent that the net fair value of the acquired enocy's identifiable assets liabshities and contingent hiabilties is greater than the cost of the
nvestment a gain is recognised immediately in the Income Statement

Afier inual recogniion goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses with the carrying value being reviewed for impairment at least
annually and whenever events or changes in arcumistances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired Any impairment of goodwill made cannot be
reversed If circumstances subsequently change

Any contingent considerations recognised on business combinations are measured at fair value using Level 3 valuation techmgues
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1 Authornisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies contnued

Tor the purpose of impairment testing goodwill 1s aflocated o the related cash-gencraung units for group of cash-generaung units) monitored by management
Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit 1s less than its carrying amount inciuding goodwill an imparment loss 1s recognised in the
Income Staternent

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit 1s taken into account when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the unit or of an
opetation within it

Property Plant and Equipment
Property plant and equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value Depreciation s calculated on
a straight-ine basts down to the estmated residual value over the expected useful life of the asset as follows

freehold buildings - Hotel accommedation and offices Up to 50 years

Freehold buildings - Licensed retall property unlicensed property and brewery 50 10100 years

Leasehold imiprovernents The term of the lease

Roofs From 10 to 50 years

Plant machinery and vehicles containers fistures and fittings From three years up to 25 years

Ao reguired under IAS 16 Property Plant and Cquipment, expected useful ives and residual values are reviewed every year Land 1s not depreaiaied

Government Grants
Government grants are not recognised untl there 1s reasonable assurance that the Group will compty with the condinons attaching to them and that the
grants will be recewved

Covernment granis are recoegrised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Croup recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate Specifically government grants whose primary condinien 1s that the Group should purchase construct or
otherwise acquire non current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the Balance Sheet and transferred to the Income Statement on a systematic
basis over the useful economic Ife of the related assets

Investment Property

The Croup owns properties that are not used for the production of goods or services but are held for capital appreciaton or rental purposes These properues
are classified as investment properties and therr carrying values are based on cost Depreciauen is cateulated on a straight-ine basis down to the esumated
residual value over the expected useful life of the asset which jor investment properues 1s 50 1o 100 years

Impairment

Carrying values are reviewed for impairment if events indicate that the carrying value of the asset may nol be recoverable Il such an indicator exists and where
the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount the assets or cash-generauing units are written down to their recoverable amounts An assets
recoverable amount is the greater of the larr value less costs to sell and the value 1n use In assessing value inuse, the esumated future cash flows are discounted
to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the ume value of money and nisks specific to the asset Foran
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows the recoverable amount is deternuned for the smallest cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs [mparrment losses and any reversal of such losses are recognised 1n the Income Statement

Leases

Group as a lessee
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and benefis of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases and rentals payable are
charged in the Income Statement on a straight ine basis over the lease erm

Group as a lessor
Assets leased under operanng leases are included in propetty plant and equipment and depreciated over their estimated useful ives Rentaf income
including the effect of lease incentives 15 recognised on a stiaight-ine basis over the lease term

Assets Held for Sale

Assels are classihed as held for sale when the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaciton rather than continuing use To be
classified as such management need to have Inmiated a sales plan as at the Balance Sheet date and must expect the sale to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year Assets held for sale are valued at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs 1o sell No depreciation 1s charged whilst assets
are classified as held for sale

Inventories

lnventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Costis calculated using the First In First Out method The cost of own beer consists of
matenals with the addition of relevant overhead expenses Net realisable value 1s the esumated selling price in the ardinary course of business less esumated
costs of complenon and the costs to be incurred in marketing seling and distibution
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Notes ro the Financial Statements continued

1 Authonisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies contnued
Financial Instruments
Financial assets

Trade and other recevables

Trade recewables and loans to customers do not carry any interest and are recogrsed 4t their onginal invericed amounts, less an allowance lor any amounts
that are not considered 1o be collecuble Increases to the allowance account are recogrused in the Income Statement within operaung costs Al the point

a trade recevable 15 written off the ledger as uncollectible the cost 1s charged against the allowance account and any subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously wniten off are credited o the Income Statement

Cash and short term deposits
Cash and shori term deposits compnse cash at bank and in hand and short term depostis with an orginal maturiy of three months of less

Derecognition
A financial asset (or where applicable a part of a inancial asset or part of a group of sivular financial assetshis derecognised where the nights to recerve cash
flows trom the asset have expired

Financal habilities

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables do not bear interest and are carned at eriginal cost

Bank loans overdrafts and debentures

Interest-beanng bank loans overdrafis and debentures are intially reconded at the fair value of proceeds receved net of directissue costs and thereafter at amortised
cost Finance charges nchiding premiums payable on settement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an effective nterest rate basis in the
Income Staiement Finance charges are added 1o the carrying amount of the instrument 10 the extent that they are not setiled in the penod mwhich they arse

Derecognition

A financial iability 1s derecognised when the obligation under the hability is discharged or cancelled or expires Where an exisung financial hability 1s replaced
by another trom the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing hability are substantially modified such an exchange or madification
s treated as a dorccognivion of the onginal hability and the recognition of a new hability such that the difference in Lhe respective carrying amounts together
with any costs or fees incurred are recogrused in profit or loss

Denvauve financial inscruments and hedging

In order to hedge 1ts exposure (o certain foreign exchange transaction risks the Group enters into forward foreign exchange contracts In order to hedge its
exposure to mrerest rate nsks the Group enters inio interest rate denvative contracts The Group uses these cortracts 1n order to hedge known barrowings
The Group does not use any dervanve financial instruments for speculative purposes

Denvative fimancial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a denvative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value Denvatves are carried as assets when the fair value 1s positive and as liabrlivies when the fair value 1s negauve The fair value of forward currency
contracts 15 calculated by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts wath similar maturity profiles The fair value of interest rate swap and cap
contracts are determmned by reference to market vatues for similar instruments This represents a Level 2 fair value under the hierarchy im IFRS 7

For those denvatives designated as hedges and for which hedge accounnng is desired the hedging relationship is documented at ics mcepuon This documentation
identifies the hedging nstrument the hedged item o transaction the nature of the nisk being hedged and how effectiveness will be measured throughout its
duration Such hedges are expected at incepuon to be highly effective For the purpose of hedge accounung hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when
hedging exposure to vanability tn cash flows that 1s either attnbutable to a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or lability or a highly probable
forecast transaction

Interest rate swaps are classified as cash flow hedges If they are effecuve hedges then any changes in fair value are deferred in equity unul the hedged
transaction occurs when any changes in fair value will be recycled through the Income Statement together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
item If the hedges are not effective hedges then any changes in fair value are recognised in the Income Statement immediately

If a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected (o occur amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred w profit or loss Ithe hedging instrument
expires or1s sold terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover or if its designation as a hedge 1s revoked amounts previously recogruised i equity
remain in equity until the forecast transaction occurs and are transferred to the Income Statement

Any gains o losses ansing from changes in the fair value of detvatives that do not qually for hedge dccounung arc Laken (o the Income Statement

The put and call opuien for the remaining 49% of The Stable Pizzaand Cider | imited is recognised as a denvative financiat instrument measured using a Level 3 fair value
valuation techmique

Classtficauon of Shares as Debt or Equity

When shares are issued any component that creates a financial iability of the Company or Group 15 presented as a iabiliy in the Balance Sheet, measured
imually at fair value net of transaction costs and thereafter at amorused cost unul exunguished on conversion or redemptian The corresponding dividends
relaning to the liability component are charged as interest expense i the Income Statement The imuial fair value of the liabihry component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent hability without a conversion feature

The remainder of the proceeds on issue 1s allocated to the equity component and included i shareholders equuy netof transaction costs The carrying
amount of the equity component 1s not remeasured 10 subsequent years
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{ Authonisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

The Groups ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments For the purposes of the disclosures gvenin note 26 the Group considers its capital Lo
compnse 1S orcinary share capital share premium capital redemption reserve hedging reserve and accumulated retained earmings plus is preference shares
which are classified as d inancial labibity in the Balance Sheet There have been ne changes 1o what the Group considers to be capital since the prior year

Upon innal recagnition the fair value of the purand call opuion is recogrised directly in equity within non-controlling interest Subsequent remeasurement
ofthe option 1s taken to the Income stalement

Preference Shares
The Groups preference shares are reported under non-current habilities The corresponding dwidends on preference shares are charged as interestin the
Income Statement Preference shares carry interest at fixed rates

Revenue
Revenue 1s recogmised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits wall fliow 1o the Group and revenue can be rehably measured Itis measured
ai the fair value of considerauon receved or recewvable net of discounts and VAT

Sales of goods are recogmsed when the goods are delivered and title has passed Rental ncome 1s recogmised on a straight ine basis over the term of the lease
Revenue for bedroom accommexdauon 1s recognised at the point the services are rendered Amusement machine revenue is recognised in the accounting
penod to which the income relates

Operating Profit
Operaung profitis revenue luss operaing costs Revenue is as detailed above and as shownoin note 3 Operaung costs are all costs excluding inance costs
costs assoclated with the disposal of properties and the tax charge

Finance Revenue
Finance revenue ts recognised as interest accrues using the effecuve interest method

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are generally recognised as an expense when meurred Interest expenses directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asser
that takes a substanta! penod of ume to get ready for use are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets being created This s applied to development projects
where the development is expected te last In excess of six months at the commencement of the project

Taxation

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year using UK tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income Statement because it excludes items of income

or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years or are never taxable or deducuble

Tax s charged or credited directly 10 equity if it relates to tems that are credited or charged 10 equity Otherwise tax s recogrised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income or the Income Statement as applicable

Diterred tax s provided on gl temponary ditferences at the Balance Sheet ddte between the tax bases of assets and abilities and their carrying amounts tor
financial reporung purposes Deferred tax babhues are recognised for all laxable temporary differences except where the lianhty anses from the inwal recogmition
of goadwiil or an asset or hability in a transaction that 18 not 4 business combination and at the time of the transacuion dflects neither the accounung profit nor
Laxable profit or loss

Deferred tax 15 not recogrised n respect of taxable temporary ditferences associated with investments 1n substdharies where the tuming of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and ic1s probable that the temporary ditferences will not reverse in the toreseeable future

Deferred tax assers are recognised for all deducuble temporary differences carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses to the extent that itis
probable that taxable profit will be avarlable agamnst which they can be utilised except where the deferred tax asset arsses from the ininal recognition of goodwill
or an asset or hability in a transaction that s not a business combinaton and at the time of the cransaction affects nerther the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or Ioss The carrying amount of deferred ax assets 1s reviewed at cach Balance Sheex date

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to applyin the periods when the asset 1s realised
or the labihty is settled based on taxrates and laws enacted or substanuvely enacted at the Balance Sheet date

Foreign Currencies
Transacuons denominated in foreign currencies are recarded at the rates of exchange ruling at the dates of the transactions

Maonetary assets and hahilities are translated at the year end exchange rates and the resulting exchange differences are taken to the Income Statement except
where hedge accounung s applied

Pensions and Other PostEmployment Benefits

Defined contnbution schemes
Paymenis fo defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are charged to the Income Statement as they fall due
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

1 Authonisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Defined bencfit schemes
The Group operated a defined benefit pension plan for ehgible employees where cantnbutions are made into a separate fund administered by trustees

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan 1s determined using the projected unit credit method calcutared by qualified actuanes This
attnbuies entitlement 1o benefits 1o the current period {to determine current service costhand to the current and prior peniods (to determine the present vaiue
of defined benefit obligaton) and 1s based on actuanal advice Past service costs are recognised n the Income Statement on a strarght hne basis over the
vesting penod or immediately if the benefits have vested

When a settlement {eliminating all obligations for benefits already accrued) or a curtallment {reducing future obhiganons as a result of a matenal reduction in
the scheme membership or a reduction in future entilement) occurs the obligauon and refated plan assets are remeasured using current actuanal assumprons
and the resultant ga:n or loss 1s recogrised it the Income Statement dunng the penod in which the settlement or curtalment occurs

The Group determines the net interest charge on the net defined benelt hability/lasset} for the period by applying the discount rate used (o measure the
defined benelt obligation at the beginning of the penod 1o the net pension liabibiy/asset}at the beginring of the penod The netinterest charge 1s recogmised
immediately as an excepuional fnance cost/lincome)in the Income Statement Actuanial gains and losses are recogmised in full in the Statement of Comprehensive
income 1n the penod 1n which they oceur

The defined benefit pension asset or ibility in the Balance Sheet compnses the total of the present value of the defined benefic obligation using a discount
raie based on hugh quality corporate honds) less any past service cost nos yet recogmsed and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are
1o be settled directly Fair value 1s based on market price tnformducn and in the case of quoted securuies s the published bid price The value of 4 net pension
benelit asset 15 restricted to the sum of any unrecognised past service costs and the present value of any amount the Group expects Lo recover by way of
refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contnbunons

Exceptional ltems

The Group presents as exceptional items on the face of the Income Statement those material tems of ncome and expense which because of the nature
or expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them merit separate presentation (o allow shareholders wo understand better the elements of financial
performance n the year o as to facilitate comparison with prior penods and to better assess trends in financial performance

Share-Based Payments

The Group has an employee Share Incentve Plan that awards shares to employees based on the reported profits of the Group for the year and a Long Term
Incentive Plan which awards shares to Directors and Senior Executives subject to specific performance critena The Group alsoissues equity-settled
share-based payments te certain employees under approved and unapproved share option schemes and a Savings Related Share Opuion Scheme

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted and is recognised as an
expense over the vesting period which ends on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award Farr value i1s determined using
an appropriate pricing model In valuing equity-settled transactions no account is taken of any vesting condiions The Group has no equity-settled fransactions
that are inked to the price of the shares of the Company {market conditions}

No expense 1s recognised for awards that do net ulimately vest At each Balance Sheet date before vesting the cumulative expense s calculated representng
the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and managements best esumate of the achievement or otherwise of non-market conditions and of the number
of equity instruments that will ulumately vest The movement in cumulative expense since the previous Balance Sheet date 1s recognised in the Income
Statement with a corresponding entry in equity

Where the terns of an equiy-setiled award are modified or a new award 1s designated as replacing o cancelled or setiled award the cost based on the onginl
award terms conuinues to be recognised over the onginal vesting period In addition an expense s recognised over the remainder of the new vesting penod
for the incremiental fair value of any modification based on the difference between the fair value of the onginal award and the fair value of the modified award
both as measured on the date of the modificauion No reducuon 15 recogmsed if this difference 15 negatinve

Whete an equity-settled award 1s cancelled including when a non vesting condition within the control of the entity or employee 1s not met} 115 treated as il
had vested on the date of cancellauion and any cost not yet recognised in the Income Statemient for the award 15 expensed immediately Any compensation
paidd up 10 1he fair value of the award at the cancellation or setlement date 1s deducted from equity with any excess over farr value being treated as an expense
in the Income Statement

Own Shares
Shares to be awarded under employee iIncentive plans and those that have been awarded but have yet to vest unconditionally are held at cost by an employee
share ownership trust and shown as a deduction from equity in the Balance Sheet

In addition to the purchase of shares by the vanous employee share ownership trusts for specific awards the Group also from ume to ume acquires own
shares to be held as treasury shares These shares are occasionally but not exclusively used to satisfy awards under vanious share option schemes Treasury
shares are held at cost and shown as a deduction from total equity in the Balance Sheet

Consideraton received for the sale of such shares s also recogmsed in equity with any difference between the proceeds from sale and the ongmal cost bemg
taken to revenue reserves No gain or loss s recogmised in the performance statements on the purchase sale 1ssue or cancellanon of treasury shares

Dmidends
Duwvidends recommended by the Beard but unpaid at the year end are not recognised 1n the financial statements unul they are paid (in the case of the intenm
dividend)or approved by shareholders al the Annual General Meetng {in the case of the final dividend}
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1 Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies contmued Q
(i

Financial Guarantee Contracts E

Where the Company enters into contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within the Group the Company considers these to be 2

tnsurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect the Campany treats the guarantee contracts as a contingent hability unul such tme as it

becomes probable that the Company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

The Companys Investments in Subsidiaries

The Company recognises its investments in subsidianes at cost Income 1s recognised from these imvestments only in relation to distrsbutions receved from

post-acquisition profits Distributions received in excess of post-acquisition profits are deducted from the cost of the imvestment

New Standards and Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Applied

The IASB and IFRIC have 1ssued the following standards and ingerpretations with an effective date for periods startng on or after the date on which these m:

financial statements start The Directors do not anticipate that the adopuoen of any of these standards and interpretations wherever relevant to the Group g

will have a significant impact on the Groups results or assets and liabihties in the period of inwial application and are not expected to require significant f%

additional disclosure =
z
=2

* Amendments 1o |1AS | Presentation of Financial Statements regarding disciosure mitiative

» Amendments to IAS 16 Propurty Plant and Equipment and 1AS 38 Intangible Assets regarding danficauon of acceptable methods of deprediaucn
and amorusation

* Amendments to 1AS 16 Property Plant and Equipment and [AS 4l Agriculture regarding bearer plants
* Amendments o |AS 19 Employee Benefits regarding defined benefit plans
* Amendments 1o [AS 27 Sepadrate Financial Statements regarding the equity method

& Annual improvements to 1FRS 2010 2012 cycle

ADUBLIIADN | |

¢ Annual improvements to IFRS 2011-2013 cycle
» Annual improvements to IFRS 2C12-2014 cycle
 [TRS 9 lnancial Instruments

* Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Fimancial Staterments and 1AS 28 Investrnents i Associates and Jomt Ventures regarding sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and I1s associate of JOINT venture

* Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests 1n Other Entines and {AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures regarding investment entities applying the consolidation exception

* Amendment to IFRS H Joint Arrangements on acquisition of an interest in a joint operation

IR 14 Regulaiory Deferrval Accounts

=
£
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[
=
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® IFRS I5 Revenye from Contracts with Customers

Significant Accounting Esumates and Judgements
The judgements estimates and assumpuons which are considered to be significant are as follows

The Group determines whether goodwill 1s impasred on an annual basts and this requires an estimation of the value in use of the, cash-gencrating units o
which the goodwillis allocated This involves esumation of future cash flows and cheasing 4 sutable discount rate Full details are supplied in note [G together
with an analysis of the key assumptions

The Group reviews for impairment all property plant and equipment at cash generating unut level where there 1s any indication of impairment This requires
an estimation of the value in use and involves estimaticen of future cash flows and choosing a suitable discount rate See note [l which describes the assumptions
used together with an analysis of the key assumpuions

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations requires estimation of future changes in salares and inflation as well as mortality rates the expected
return on assets and the selection of a suitable discount rate These have been determined on advice from the Croups qualified actuary The estimates used
and the key assumptions are provided in note 23

Judgement s required when determuning the provision for taxes as the tax treatment of some transactions cannot be finally determined unul a formal
resolution has been reached with the tax authonities Tax benefits are not recognised unless it 1s probable that the benefit will be obtained Tax provisions are
made if (15 possible that a hability will anse The Group reviews each sigmhcant tax lkability or benefit to assess the appropnate accounung treatment See
notes 7 and 25

The assessment of fair values for the assets and labilives recogmised in the financial statlements on the acquisition of a business and addional consideration
and the date that control 1s obtained require significant judgement Management assesses fair values parucularly for property plant and equipment with
reference 1o current market prices See note 17 for business combinations made in the year
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Segmental Analysis

Operating Segments
For management purposes the Groups operating segments are

* Managed Pubs and Hotels which comprises managed pubs and managed hotels
* Tenanted Inns which comprises pubs operated by third parties under tenancy or lease agreementis and

» The Fullers Beer Company which comprises the brewing and distnbution of beer wines and spirits

The Groups business i1s vertcally ntegrated The most important measure used to evaluate the performance of the business 1s adjusted profit which s the
profit before tax adjusted for exceptional tems The operating segments are organised and managed separately according to the nature of the products and
services provided with each segment representing a strategic operanng unit More details of these segments are given in the Strategic Review on pages 8 (o 31
of this report Segment performance 15 evaluated based on operating profit before excepuional siems and 1s measured consistently with the operating profit

hefore exceptional items in the consolidated hnancial statements

‘Transfer prices between operating segments are set on an arms length basis ma manner siilar to transactions with third parties Segment revenue segment
expense and segmeni result include transfers between operating segments Those transfers are ehmunated on consolidation Croup financing including

finance costs and revenue and taxation are managed on a Group basis

As segment assets and habihtes are not regularly provided 1o the Chief Operaung Decision Maker the Group has efected as provided under IFRS 8

Operating Segments (amended) not to disclose a measure of segment assets and liabilines

Managed The Fuller's
Pubs ond Tenanted Beer

Hotels Inns Compony  Unallocated' Total
52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Segment revenue 2138 314 1229 - 3681
Inter segment sales - - (46 &) - (46 &)
Revenue from tird parhes 2138 314 763 - 3215
Segment result 250 124 87 (40} 423
Operaling exceplional items {15)
Operating profit 408
Prefit on disposal of properties 08
Pension fund curiailment gain 12
Net hinance costs (67)
Profit before tax 361
Other segment information
Capital expendiure Property, plant and equipment 246 21 44 - 3
Business combinations [note 17} 27 25 - - 252
Ceprecianon and amarhsation 115 16 33 - 16 4
Impairment of property 04 03 - - o7
Reversal of impairment on property {0 6) {01) - - {07)

' Unallocated expenses represent prunarily the salary and costs of central management
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2 Segmental Analysis conunued B
Managed The Fuller s 2
Pubs and Tenonted Beer 3
Hotels Inns Company  Unallocored! Toral
52 weeks ended 29 March 2014 Em £m £m tm £m
Revenwe
Segment revenue 1860 313 1158 - 3331
Inter segment sales - - {451 - {45 1)
Revenue from third parhes 1860 313 707 - 2880
Segment result 225 123 85 (3 4) 399 m:
Operaling excephional tems 9 0%
Operahng profit 380 ;u
Profit on disposal of properties 19 .g
Nef finance cosls (64
Profit before tax 335
Other segment information
Coptto! expenditure Property, plant and equipment 254 16 15 - 285 L
Business combinations [nole 17} 49 22 472 - 113 —
Depreciation and omortisation 160 17 30 - 147 g
Imparment of property co 09 - - 18 g
Reversal of impairment on property [0 3) (o - - (13}
! Unallocated expenses represent primansty the salary and costs of central management
Geographical Information
The magory of the Groups business s within the UK and the Group idenufies two disunct geographic markets
Rest of the
UK World Total
52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 £m £m £m
Revenue 2
Sales to extenal customers 3134 81 3215 5:
Rest of the %
52 weeks ended 29 March 2014 i o
Revenue
Sales io extemal cusiomers 2802 78 2880

Sales to external customers disclosed in geographical information are based on the geographical location of the customer All of the Groups assets liabiles
and capital expenditure relate to the UK only

3 Revenue

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
€m Em

Revenue disclosed in the Income Statement 1s analysed as follows
Sale of goods and serices mne 2784
Renlal income ?6 Q6

3215 2880
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4 Operating Costs

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 March 29 March
2005 2014
£m £m
Praduction cosis and cost of goods used n retaiing 1057 975
Change in stocks of finished goods end beer in progress - 0s
Stalf costs 830 729
Repars and maintenance 2?8 92
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 155 141
Amorhisation of ntangibles 09 Q6
Operaling lease rentals — mimmum lease payments! 78 75
- conlingent rents? 27 18
Exceptional iems (note 5] 15 19
Othey 538 440
2807 2500
' Included within mimimum iease payments are sublease payments of E0 6 million (2014 £0 6 million)
¢ Conungent rents are dependent on turnover levels
Details of ncome and direct expenses relating ta rental income from mvestment properties are shown in note 12
52 weeks 52 weels
ended ended
28 March 29 March
a) Auditors’ Remunerahon 22‘1:151 20;:
Fees payable o Company's auditors
- Statutory audtt fees of Group financial statements 01 01
01 01
Other aud related services comprnising of a half year review and IXBRL tagging of £19 600 were incurred in the year
b} Staff Costs' £m £m
Wages ond salanes? 756 66 2
Social secunty costs 54 49
Pension benefits 20 18
830 729
'Includes Directors
"Includes share based payment expense
<} Average Number of Employees® Number Number
The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group {including part ime siaff was os follows
Fuller's Inns 3,717 3249
The Fuller's Beer Company 328 328
Cenlral Services 13 13
4,058 3,610

¥ Includes Cirectors

d) Directors’ Emoluments
Full details are provided in the Directors Remuneration Report and tables on pages 43 w0 57

76 Fuller Sruth & Turner PLC Annual Repart 2015




5 Exceptional ltems

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
28 March 29 Morch
2005 2014
£m €m
Amounts included in operatng profit
Acquisiion cosls 13 {1y
Impairment of properties 07 {18
Reversal of imparment on property 07 13
Onetous lease provision (chargel/frelease {nole 25) {0 3) 0¢
Reorgamsahion costs - (12
Total excephonal tems included in operating profit {15 (19
Profit on disposal of properhes 08 19
Pension fund curtadment gain 12 -
Exceptional finance costs
Finance charge on net pension hobilines {08) {0 6)
Total excephonal finance costs {08) {0 6)
Total excephonal items before tax 03) {0 6)
Exceptional tax
Change in corporation tax rate {see nole 7} - 34
Prohit on disposal of properties 02 03]
Pension fund curtalment gain (02) -
Other items 05 Q4
Total excephonal tax 01 35
Total excephanal items {0 2} 29

Acquisiion £osts of £1 2 million dunng the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015{2014 £11 million) related to transaction costs on pub and business acquisiions
which quahfy as business combmations {see note 17}

The property impairment charge of £07 miflion duning the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 (2014 £18 million) relates io the wnite down of licensed properties
to their recoverable value The reversal of impairment credit of €07 mullion duning the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015{2014 £1 3 mullion) relates to the write
back of previously impaired licensed properties to therr recoverable value

The onerous lease provision charge of £0 3 miflion durning the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015{2014 £09 mulkon release)selates to the change in circumstances
of three previously onerous leasehold properties

I'he reorganisauon costs of £l 2 mullion for the 52 weeks ended 29 March 2014 were principally incurred within The Fullers Beer Company and relate to stall
and the propased closure of the defned benefit pension scheme ro future accrual

The prohton dispusal of properties of £0 8 miflion dunng the 52 weeks ended 23 March 2015 (2014 £19 rllion) relates to the disposal of four hcensed
properues (2014 five licensed and unlicensed propertics)

The pension fund curtailment gain of 1 2 millhion for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 relates to the closure in January 2015 of the defined benefit pension
scheme to future accrual '

The cash impact of operating exceptional items before tax for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 was a £1 7 mullon cash outflow (2064 £2 1 milhen outflow}
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

6 Finance Costs

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 Morch 29 March
2015 2014
£m £m
Interest expense arising on
Financial licbikhes ot amortised cost ~ loans and debentuies 56 54
Financial habilities at amortised cost — preference shares o1 o
Total interest expense for financial lables 57 55
Unwinding of discounts on provisions 02 C3
Total hinance costs before exceptional tems 59 58
Finance charge on net pension labilites [nole 5) 08 06
Total interest expense 67 64
7 Taxauon
a) Tax on Profit on Ordmary Activities
52 weeks 52 weels
ended ended
28 March 2% March
2015 2014
Group £m £m
Tax charged in the Income Statement
Currenl income tax
Corporotion tax 86 88
Amounts over provided in previous years - 03]
Total current income tax 8é 85
Deferred tax
Onginchion and reversal of temporary differences {0 8) [0 8)
Change in corporation tax rale {note 3) - (3 4)
Amounis underprovided 1n previous years - 01
Total deferred tax (0 8} 41
Total tax charged i the income Statement 78 44
52 weeks 52 weeks
encled ended
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
£m £m
Tax relating to fems charged/(credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Delerred tax
Change in corporation lax rate - (o4 <}
MNet gains/|losses) on valuation of financiol assets and habilines 06 04
Net actuanal gains/[losses) on pension scheme 17 {0 8)
Tax charge included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 23 Q2
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7 Taxation contnued

52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
£m £m
Tax relahing to tems charged/credited directly to equity
Delerred tax
Reduction in deferred tax hiability due 1o indexation 93} {03
Share based payments 01 0
Current lax
Share-based payments (02) [0 4)
Tax credit ncluded in the Statement of Changes in Equity {0 4) Q&
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 March 29 March
015 2014
£m £m
Deferred tax i the Income Statement
Decelerated 1ux depreciation (08} 29
Rolled aver capital gamns - 10l
Retrement beneht obliganons 01 ol |
Tax losses camed forword - -
Employee share schemes {on o1
Others - 02
{08) 41

ML) |

uodoy daieng | ‘
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The rate of UK corporation tax reduced from 21% to 20% from | Apnl 2015 To the extent that this rate change will affect the amount of future cash tax
payments to be made by the Group this will reduce the size of both the Groups Balance Sheet deferred tax hability and deferred tax asset Inthe 52 weeks
10 29 March 2014, 1he reduction in the rate from 23% 10 21% resulted in an exeepuional eredit to the Income Statement of £3 4 mullion, and a charge o the

Statement of Comprehensive Income of £0 6 nulhon

b) Reconciliation of the Total Tax Charge

The tax expense in the Income Statement for the year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation taxin UK of 21% (2014 23%) The differences are

reconciled below

52 weeks 52 weels

ended ended

28 March 29 March

205 2014

£m £m

Profit from continuing operations before taxation 361 335
Accounting pioht muliphed by the UK siandard rate of corporation tax of 21% (2014 23%) 76 77
lrems not deductible for tax purposes 01 o}

Current and deferred tax overprovided in previous years - 102)

Change in corporation tax rale - [34)
Other 01 02
Total tax charged in the Income Stotement 78 44
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

8 Earnings Per Share

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
£m £m
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 284 291
Excephonal items net of tax 02 {29
Adjusted earnings atinbutable to equity shareholders 286 2672
Number Nymber
Weighted average share capital 55,521,000 55,815,000
Dilutive outstanding options and share awards 804,000 812,000
Diluted weighted average share capital 56,325,000 56,627,000
40p ‘A’ and ‘C’ ordinary share Pence Pence
Bosic eanimgs per share 5115 5214
Diluted earnings per shore 50 42 5139
Adjusted earnings per shore 51 51 4694
Diluted ad|usted earnings per share 5078 46 27
4p ‘B’ ordinary share Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 512 521
Diluted earnings per share 504 514
Adusted earnings per share 515 469
Diluted adusted earnings per share 508 463

For the purposes of calculating the number of shares 0 be used above B shares have been trealed as one tenth ofan A or C share The earnings per share
calculation 1s based on earnings from conuinuing operations and on the weighted average ordinary share capital which excludes shares held by trusts relaung
to employee share options and shares held in treasury of 14637612014 1170 610}

Diluted earmngs per share amounts are calculated using the same carnings figure as for basic carnings per share dvided by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ardinary shares that would be 1ssued on the conversion of all the diluuve
potental ordinary shares into ordinary shdres Adjusted earnings per share are calculated on profit before tax excluding exceplional items and on the same
welghted average ordinary share capital as for the basic and dilated earnings per share An adjusted earnings per share measure has been included as the
Directors consider Lhat this measure better reflects the underying earnings of the Group

9 Dvidends
52 weeks 52 weeks
ended ended
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
£m £m
Declared and paid during the year
Equity dvidends on ordinary shares
Final dvidend for 2014 9 30p (2013 8 35p) 52 47
intenm dividend for 2015 6 40p (2014 5 80p| 35 32
Equity dividends pard 87 79
Dridends on cumulative preference shares (note 6} 01 o1
Proposed for approval ot the Annual General Meehng
Final dividend for 2015 10 20p (2014 9 30p] 56 52

The pence figures above are for the 40p A ordinary sharesand 40p C ordinary shares The 4p B shares carry dividend nights of one tenth of those applicable
to the 40p A ordinary shares Own shares held in the employee share trusts do not quahfy for dvidends as the trustees have waived their nights Dividends are
also not paid on own shares held as treasury shares
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10 Intangible Assets g
Gioup and %
Compony
lease
Group assignmen Distbunhion Group Company
Goodwill premums nghis Torat Torcl
£m £m om £m £m
Cost
At 30 March 2013 245 70 - 315 70
Acguisions {note 17) 26 11 12 4G 23
At 29 March 2014 271 81 12 364 Q3 (sn
Acquishons [note 17} 37 15 - 52 15 cg
At 28 March 2015 308 96 12 a6 108 7
X
Amorhsahon and impairment
At 30 March 2013 Q6 a8 - 14 08
Provided dunng the year - 06 - 06 06
At 29 March 2014 06 14 - 20 14
Provided dunng the year - 06 03 0@ 09 o
At 28 March 2015 06 20 03 29 23 %
a
e
Net book value at 28 March 2015 302 76 09 87 85
Net book value al 29 March 2014 265 &7 12 34 4 7
Net book value at 30 March 2013 239 62 - 301 62
Lease Assignment Premiums
Amounts pad to acquire leasehald property [ lease assignment prermiums’}are amortised on a straight-hne basis over the remaining useful hte of the lease

The amorusaton is charged m the Income Statement in the line tem Operating costs {note 4)
There are five pubs on which we carry lease assignment prermiums at 28 March 2015{2014 four}

Distribution Right
Amounts paid to acquire the exclusive import and distributions nghts (o Sierra Nevada products within the UK Details of the amounts paid are included in
note 17 The amortisation 1s charged in the Income Statementin the line tem Operaung costs” {note 4}

=2
o
i
3

Goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units as follows 20521r§ 2021:
Gales estate 227 227
Jocomb Guinness eslate 12 12
Cormish Orchards 26 26
The Stable Pizzo ond Cider Limited 37 -
302 265

Ofthe £227 million of goodwill relating to the Gales estate £914 million relates to the Managed Pubs and Hotels division and £13 6 millien relates to the Tenanted
nns division All of the Jacomb Guinness goodwill relates to the Managed Pubs and | lotels division All of the Cormish Orchards goodwall relates to The Fullers
Beer Company All of the Stable Pizza and Cader Limited goadwall relates o the Managed Pubs and Hotels dnvasion

Key assumphons used in value in use calculohons

Long tem growth rate - Managed 10% 2 0%
long term growth rate — Tenanted 10% 1.5%
tong term growth rate -~ Cormsh Orchords 20% 2 0%
Long ferm growth rate — Siable Pizza and Cider Limited 20% -
Prertax discount rote - Freehold 6 0% 7 0%
Pre tax discount rate — leasehold B1% @ 6%
Pre tox discount rate ~ Corish Orchards 10 3% 10 3%
Pretax discount rate — Stable Pizza and Cider Limited 17 4% -
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

10 Intangible Assets continued

Goodwill acquired through business combinauions has been allocated for imparment westeng on an estaie and divisional cash generaung urit level This
represents the lowest leve) within the Group at which goodwillis monitored for internal management purposes Recoverable amount 1s based on a calculation
of value in use based upon the budget for the forthcoming finenclal year approved by sentor management For the Gales and Jacomb Gumness Estate cash flows
beyond the budget penod are extrapolated i perpetuity on the assumption that the growth rate does nol exceed the average long Lerm growth rate for the
relevant markets For Cornish Orchards the cash flows beyond the budger period are based on a five-year plan that was approved by sentor management and
reflect the long term growth of the business following the significant imvestment and expansion strategy currently in place for the business The pre-tax discount
rate applied to cash flow projections 1s based on the Directors assessment of the Groups weighted average cost of capial and current market condiions

The calculation of value in use 1s most sensilive Lo the assumptions in respect of achievement ol budgeted cash flows growth rate and discount rate The
calculation of value in use Is also dependent upon the following assumptions sales volume gross margin i managed prenitses barrelage and rent projecuions
In wenanted premises wage cost in managed premises and capital expansion in Cormsh Crehards Gross margins are based on histonical performance levels
All of the key assumptions above have their asstgned values based on management knowledge and historical informaton

Sensuvity to Changes m Assumptions
Management have considered reasonable changes in key assumptions used in their calculations of value in use They have concluded that such changes will
not result In an iImpairment to the Jacomb Guinness Gales Cornish Crehards or the Stable Pizza and Cider Limited cash generating units at 28 March 2015

Il Property. Plant and Equipment

Plant,  Containers
lond &  machinery fiures &

buldings & vehicles fitings Total
Group £m £m £m tm
Cost
Al 30 March 2013 3208 335 1134 5377
Addinons 155 15 129 299
Acquisiiions [note 17) 59 11 - 70
Disposals A {0 3) {56) (7 6)
Transfer 1o assets held for sale (14 - 10 2) 116
At 29 March 2014 4091 358 1205 5654
Additions 112 27 186 325
Acquisiions (note 17) 197 - 18 215
Disposals 12 07 122 {14 1}
Al 28 March 2015 438 8 378 1287 6053
Depreciahon and imparment
At 30 March 2013 247 209 77 3 1229
Provided dunng the year 25 20 Qo 141
Impairment loss net of reversols 05 - - 05
Transfer to assels held for sale 03 - 010 04
Disposals {10 03] 152) 16 5]
A1 29 March 2014 264 226 816 1306
Provided duning the year 28 20 07 155
Disposals [0 3) [0 6) 111 8} {12 7}
At 28 March 2015 289 240 805 1334
Net book value at 28 March 2015 409 9 128 48 2 471 9
Net bock value at 29 March 2014 3827 132 3809 434 8
Net bock value at 30 March 2013 366 1 126 361 414 8
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Il Property. Plant and Equipment conunued g_
Plart,  Ceontoners %
lond & machinery fixtures &
buldings & vehicles itings Toll
Company £m £m £m £m
Cost
Al 30 March 2013 3907 334 1119 5360
Additions 155 11 129 295
Acquistions {note 17) 55 - - 35 |
Disposals 7 (C 3) {5 6] (7 &) %n_
Transter o assets held for sale 14 - {02} & &
Al 29 March 2014 408 & 342 1i90 561 8 :;u
Addimons 108 21 167 2946 g
Acqguishons (note 17) 197 - 04 201
Disposals {32 [0 6) 122 (140
At 28 March 2015 437 ¢ 357 1239 3975
Depreciahon and imparment o
At 30 March 2013 246 2009 757 121 2 é
2
Provided dunng the year 24 19 96 139 a
Impairment loss net of reversal 035 - - 05
Transfer to ossets held for sale [0 3) - 01} 10 4
Disposals 1K) 03] {52 6 5)
At 29 March 2014 262 225 800 1287
Provided during the year 26 18 105 149
Disposals {0 3) C 6} AR {128 §_
At 28 March 2015 285 237 786 1308 2
-
Net book value at 28 March 2015 409 4 120 453 4667 E
Net book value at 29 March 2014 3824 i17 390 4331 ’
Net book value at 30 March 2013 3661 125 362 4148

Group and Company

Interest capitahsed
The amount of nterest capitalised to date 1s £194 000 (2014 £164 000} The amount of interest capitalised in the year was £30 000 {2014 £64000)at a rate
of 2%

Assets under canstruction
Included m the cost of property plant and equipment at 28 March 2015 are amounts of £t0 4 nullion (2014 £17 mullion) relating to one {2014 three) propernty
development in the course of construction

Impairment

The Group considers cach trading outlet to be a cash-generanng urt { CGU Jand each CCU 1s reviewed annually torindicators of impairmicnt In asscssing
whcther an asseUhas been impaired the carrying amount of the CGU 1s compared 1o 1ts ieeoverable amount The recoverable amount s the bigher of s fair
value less costs to sell and s value in use Inthe absence of any Information about the fair value of a CGU the recoverable ameunt 1s deemed to be s value
Inuse

Durning the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 the Group recogmised an impairment loss of 07 milhon (2014 £1 8 mullion) in respect of the write down of
licemsed properties purchased in recent years where their asset values exceeded either fair value less costy to sell or their value in use The impairment losses
were drven prinupally by changes in the focal competitve environment in which the pubs arc siuated Following an improvemnt in trading performanc
and an Increase in the amounts of esumated future cash flows of certam previously impared sites reversals of £H0 7 milhon were recogmsed during the

52 weeks ended 25 March 2015 (2014 €13 muflion)

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are those detailed in note 10
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Notes to the Financial Scatements continued

Ii Property, Plant and Equipment contnued

Sensiovity to Changes in Assumptions
The value in use calculatons are sensitive (o the assumptions used The Directors consider a movement of I% n the discount rate and O 5% (n the growth rate
1o be reasonable with reference to current market yield curves and the current econommc conditans “The iImpact 1s set out as follows

2015 2014
Impact on imparmen of assel al nsk — increase/[decrecse) £m £m
Increose discount rate by 1% 14 15
Decrease discount rate by 1% (0 6) 108)
Increase growth rare by O 5% {1 5) 06
Decrease growth rate by 0 5% 06 04
12 Investment Properties
Gioup and
Company
Freehold
and leasehold
P
Cost
At 30 March 2013 50
Acquisshons [note 17) 05
At 29 March 2014 55
At 28 Morch 2015 55
Depreciahon and impairment
At 30 March 2013 08
At 29 March 2014 08
Provided durning the year 01
At 28 March 2015 09
Net book value at 28 March 2015 44
Net book value at 29 March 2014 47
Net book value at 30 March 2013 42
Fair value at 28 March 2015 109
Farr value at 29 March 2014 107
Farr value ar 30 March 2013 82

The fair value of Investment properues has been estmated by the Directors based on the rental ncome earned on the properises during the year and average

yields earned on comparable properttes from publicly available information which is a Level 3 farr value valuation techrique An independent valuation of the

propertes hes not been performed
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12 Investment Properties contmued

Impairment

The Group considers each tradimg outlet to be a CGU and each CGU 1s reviewed annually for indicators of mpairment In assessing whether an asset has
heen imparred the carrying amount of the CGU 1s compared ta its recon erable amount The recoverable amountis the higher of its fair value less costs o sell
and 1ts value in use

During the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 the Group did notimpar any imvestment properties (2014 £nl)

Investment Propercy Income
The properties are let on both landlord and tenant repainng leases Amounts recognised i the profit for the financial year relating o rental income from
investment propertes are as follows

2015 2014
Group and Company £m £m
Rental Income C5 05
Direct operating expenses 02 103
All direct operating expenses relate to properties that generate rental income
13 Denvaove Financial Instruments
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Group and Company £m £m £m £m
Interest rate swaps 03 08 03 08
Total financial assets within non-current assets 03 o8 03 08
Siable share purchase option 30) - - -
Interest rate swaps 29 10 8) (29} {08
Fareign cutrency contracts 02) - [02) -
Total finanaial habilities within non-current Labulthes {61} 10 8) 3n {©8)
Detatls of the interest rate swap and cap are provided in note 26 C{)
14 Other Non-Current Assets
2015 2014
Group and Company £m Em
Loans to custemers due after one year 03 o4
15 Investments in Subsidianes
MNet bogk
Cost Provision volue
£m £m £m
Company
At 30 March 2013 Q20 {02 218
Additions 30 - 30
At 29 March 2014 and at 28 March 2015 950 02 048
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

15 Investments in Subsicharies conunued

Principal subsidiary undertakings

Holding

Proportion held

Natura of business

Gnffin Catenng Services Limited

£1 aidinary shares

100% {indirect)

Managed houses service company

Stoble Pizza and Cider Limted

£0 01 ordinary shares

54%

Holding company

£3 50 B’ ordinary shares

100%

Stable Bar and Restaurant Lirmited

£1 ordinary shares

51% {indrect)

Restaurant ownership and management

Cornish Orchards Limited

£1 ordinary shores

100%

Praduction of exder and soft drnks

George Gale & Co Limited

£1 ordinary shares

100%

Non trading subsichary

25p ‘A’ ordinary shares

100%

£10 preference shares

100%

Jocomb Guinness Limited

£1 ordinary shores

100%

MNon rading subsidiary

45 Woodiield Limited

£1 ordinary shares

100% (indwect)

MNon rading subsidiary

Grand Canal Trading Limited

£1 ordinary shares

100% (indirect)

MNon trading subsidiary

The above companies are regstered and operate n England and Wales

16 Non-Controlling Interest

Set out below are the movements in the minonty interest for the Stable Pizza and Cider Limited group inthe year

£m
At 2@ March 2014 -
Share of loss 01]
Adustments ansing from change in non controlling nterest 130
At 28 March 2015 (31

The adjustment relates o the initial recognition of The Stable Pizza and Cider Limited put and call option which fully vests in two ta five years

17 Business Combinations

During the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 the Company has individually acquired seven new pubs for a combined considerauon of £21 6 miikon all of which
have been treated as business combinations as they were operauing as a business at the peint the Company acquired them

On 9 June 2014 the Company purchased a 51% holding i the Stable Pizza and Cider Limited which 1s & casual dinning restaurant specialising in pizzas and
Gdur The business was purchascd as i complements the Group's curent business whilst diversifying the business and imcreasing the geographic footpring

M5 2014
Sierra
Stable Pizza Nevada
and Cider Comish  disibution
Limited Pulos Onchards nghis Pubs
MNumber of pubs purchased 7 3
Provistonal fair value £m £m £ £m £m
Property plant and equipment 14 201 15 - 55
Investment properties - - - - 05
Intangible assets - 15 - 12 11
Current gssels 03 - o7 - -
Net debt (0 6} - {0 5} - -
Deferred revenue, trade and other payables (12 - {13 - -
Goodwill 37 - 26 - -
Consideration 36 216 30 12 71
Sanstied by
Cash 36 216 21 04 71
Contingent consideration - - 09 08 -
Total 36 216 30 12 71
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17 Business Combinations contnued
Goodwill recognised on acquisiion of Stable Pizza and Cider Limited reflects the future growth of the company

Costs associated with the acquisitions of £1 2 millon have been charged 1o operating exceptionalitems in the Consolidated Income Statement for the 52 weeks
ended 28 March 2015 These comprised pnimarily stamp duty legal and other property fees {note 5}

The acquisitions have contnibuted the following operating profit to the Group in the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 from the date of acquisition

2015 2014
Sierra
Stable Pizza MNevada
and Cider Cornish dismbution
Lirmited Pubs Orchards nghts Pubs
Em £m £€m tm tm
Cperoting lloss]/profit (0 4) o8 01 - 01

[t 15 not pracuical to idenufy the related cash fiows revenue and profit on an annualised basis as the months for which the businesses have been owned are not
representatve of the annuallised figures The pre-acquisimion trading resules are not indicatve of the trading expected going forwards following the signihicant
redevelopment of the pubs and capital investment in Stable Piz7a and Cider Limited by the Group therefore pro forma trading results have not been included

I8 Inventories

Group and Company 2%]n51 205::
Raw matenals, beer and cider in progress 17 15
Beer wines and spints 57 64
Stack at etal outlets 3z 27
106 106

The difference between purchase price or production cost and their replacement cost 15 not material

19 Trade and Other Receivables

Growp Group Company Company
Group and Compony -
Trade recewables 126 126 125 126
Arnounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - g0 -
Other recevables 16 13 16 13
Prepayments and accrued income 35 44 33 44
177 183 264 183

Company amounts awed by subsidiary undertakings of £8 8 mullion (2014 £nil mullion} have no fixed repayment date Interest is payable on the balance at the
higher of the Bank of England base rate plus 4% or 8%

The trade recewables bdlance above (s shown net of the provision for bad debts As a general rule the Group provides fully apainst all trade recevables which
are over six months overdue In addition te this there are indvidual specific provisions against balances which are considered by management to be at sk
of default

The movements on this bad debt provision dunng the year are summansed below

Group and Company 22‘.13 20{1:
Trade recevables provision at 26 March 2014 15 14
Increase i provision recognmised in profit and loss 01 01
Amaunts wrtten off dunng the year {02 -
Trade recervables provision at 28 March 2015 14 15
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

19 Trade and Other Receivables conunued
The provision for trade recevables 1s recorded in the accounis separately from the gross recevable The cantractual ageing of the trade receivables balance
15 as follows

Group Group Company Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m Em £m £m

Current 134 132 133 132
Overdue up to 30 days 02 02 02 02
Overdue between 30 and 60 days 01 01 01 01
Qverdue more thor 60 days 03 0é 03 o6&
Trade recervables before provision 140 141 139 141

Less provision v 4} {13 (14} {1 3]
Trade receivables net of pravision 126 126 125 126

Included in the Groups trade receivables balance are trade recewables with a carrying value of £0 3 mullion {2014 £0 3 mulion) which are overdue at the
Balance Sheet date for which the Croup has not provided as the Group considers these amounts to be recoverable

In addition there are loans to customers included in other recevables of £0 3 million (2014 £0 3 milkon}due within one year and £0 4 mullion (2014 £0 6 millon)
due 1n more than one year against which there 1s a provision of £0 3 milon {2014 £0 3 mitlion}

20 Assets Classified as Held For Sale

Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Investment property - - - -
Property, plant and equipment - 12 - 12
- 12 - 12

The movements in assets classified as held for sale dunng the year are summarnised below
Group Group Company Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m Em £m
Assets held for sale at the start of the year 12 06 12 06
Assets disposed during the year n2 08¢ {12 06
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 12 - 12
Assets held for sale ot the end of the year - 12 - 12
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21 Trade and Other Payables

Group Gioup Company Company

Due withm one year 20&‘]: 20;:1 2(;:]5 20{1::1
Trade payables 194 180 189 180
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 97 6 945
Chher 1ax and social secunty ¢1 84 91 84
Other payables 92 82 91 82
Accruals 5 115 112 113
49 2 461 1459 1404

Company amounts due (o subsidiary undertakings of £975 million (2014 £94 5 mullion) have no fixed repayment date Inkerest 1s payable on the balance at3%
above the Bank of England base rate All other significant trade and other recevables and trade and other payables balances are due within one year and are at
nit rate of interest

Group Group Company Company

2015 2014 2005 2014

Dve in more than one year £m £m £m £m
Deferred revenue 04 C4 - -

Deferred revenue relates to government grants received for the purchase and construcuon of plant property and equpment by Cornish Orchards Limited
There are no unfulfilled condiions and conungencties attached to these amounts

22 Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt
Cash and Short Term Deposits

Group Growp Company Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m

Cash ot bonk and n hand 51 41 48 41

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand as above Cash ar bank earns interest
at floating rates

Group Gioup Compony Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Borrowings £m £m £m £m
Bank loans 1400 1162 1400 1162
Other loans 02 02 - -
Debenture stock 259 259 259 259
Preference shares 16 16 16 16
Total borrowings 1677 1439 167 5 1437
Analysed os
Borrowings within current labiiies 200 - 200 -
Borrowings within non-current labihies 147 7 1439 147 5 1437
1677 1439 167 5 1437

Allborrowings at both year ends are denominaied i Sterling and where appropriate are stated net of 1ssue costs Further information on borrowings 1s given
In note 26
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

22 Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt conunued
Bank Loans

Group and Company

On 19 August 2014 the Company entered into £160 O millien of new bank facilives to replace its existing facihues The new faciliies were drawn down and
the existing faciliies repaid in August 2014 The new facilities have a five year fixed term expinng n August 2019 and have no amortisation requirements
Ar28 March 2015 £36 0 milhon (2014 £33 5 million}of the total of £160 O mullion (2014 £150 O million) commutted bank loan fachty was available and undrawn

On 18 August the Company entered into a £20 0 mulbon facility with a one-year fixed term expinng in August 2015 Ar 28 March 2015 the facility was fully drawn

The bank loans at 28 March 2015 arc unsecured and dre repayable as shown in the table blow Interest is payable at LIBOR plus a margin which vares
dependent on the rate of net debi to EBITDA The vanable rate interest payments under the leans have been parualty swapped for fixed interest payments
and a proporuon of the remaining vanable interest payments have also been capped Details of the swap and cap arrangements are given in note 26

The bank loans are repayable as follows 22& 2021::
On demand or within one year 200 -
Current habilihes 20 -
In the first o second years inclusive - 1165
In the third to hith year inclusve 1210 -
less bank loan arrangement fees no 103}
Non-current liabilhes 1200 1162

Debenture Stock

Group and Company

The debenture stocks are secured on specified fixed and {loaung assets of the Company and are redeemable on maturity
Debenture stock repayable after hive years 2(;31: 20&.3:1
10 70% 1st Morlgage Debenture Stock 2023 40 60
6 875% Debenture Stack 2028 (15t floating chargel 200 200
less discount on 1ssus {01) 01
Non-current habiltes 259 259

Preference Shares
The Companys preference shares are classified as debt The shares are not redeemable and are included in borrowings within nen current labtliies
See nate 24 for further detalls of the preference shares

Analysis of Net Debt
At 29 March At 28 March
Gmup 20;! ,: Cash Hﬁ MNon c;:t\' 2(;:] :‘
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short term deposits 41 10 - 51
4] 10 - 51
Debt
Bark loans 1116 2) {23 4) (0 4) {140 0}
Other loans {02 05 (@ 5) (0 2)
Debenture stock 259 - - (25 9)
Preference shares (ol - - {16)
1143 9} (22 9 {09 (167 7}
Net debt 139 8} {21 9) [09) (162 &)

' Non cash movements rclate 1o the amortisauion of arrangument fues arrangement fees acerued and the acquisition of The Stable Przed and Cider Linned duning the year
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22 Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt continued

At 30 March A 28 March
Group 2021: Cosh f|og: Non-cogi':‘ 20;::1

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short ferm deposits 43 {02 - 41
43 {0 2] - 41

Debt

Bank loans {112 5) 13 4} {03 {116 2)
Chher loans - 03 [0 5) 02
Debenture stock (25 8) - 01 (259
Preference shares {16} - - 14
(1392 9) 31 CQ (143 9|
Net debt (E35 6) {3 3} 09 (139 8}

' Non eash mevements relate to the amortisation nf arrangement fecs arrangement fees acerued and the acquistuon of Cormish Orehards Linired

The Company net debt is as above excluding Other Loans and cash of £0 3 mullion (2014 £rullwhich are held by subsidiary companies Company net debras at
3 March 2015 was £162 7 mulhion (2014 £1396 millon)

23 Pensions

a) Retirement Benefit Plans — Group and Company

The Group operates one funded defined benefit pension scheme the Fuller Sruth & Turner Pension Plan {the Scheme ) The plan 1s defined benefitin nature
with assets held in separate professionally managed trustee-adminsstered funds The Scheme ts an HM Revenue & Customs registered pension plan and subject
to standard United Kingdem pension and tax law On | January 2015 the plan was closed to future accrual resultuing in a curtalment gain of £1 2 million

The Group also operales three defined contnbution stekeholder pension plans for its employees The Fullers Stakehelder Pension Plan was set up for new
employees of the Parent Company afiier the closure of the Fuller Smith & Turner Penston Plan 1o new entrants on 1 August 2005 The Cniffin Stakehelder
Pension Plan operates for those employees of a Group subsidiary The Cales 2001 scheme was set up following the closure of the Gales defined benefic
scheme in 2001 The Group offers workplace pensions to all employees who are not members of the three defined contnbuton stakeholder pension plans
The Group offers these pensions through the National Employment Savings Trust { NEST’)

The Group also pays benefits Lo o number of former employees which are unfunded The Directors consider these benefits 1o be defined benefit in nature
and the full defined benefi liability 1s recognised on the Balance Sheet

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
28 March 29 March
Group and Company 202112 ZOE]::
Total amounts charged in respect of pensions m the penod
Charged 1o income statement
Defined benefit scheme — opercting profi 12 15
Defined benefit scheme - exceptional items 11 2) -
Defined benefit scheme — net hnonce charge 08 06
Defined conmbutan schemes — tatal operating charge 08 03
16 24
Charge/lcredit] 1o equity
Dehned benehit schemes — net actuandal losses 83 41
Total pension charge 99 &5
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

23 Pensions continued

b) Defined Contribution Stakeholder Pension Plans - Group and Company
The total cost charged to Income in respect of the defined contnibution stakeholder schemes 15 shown above

c) Defined Benefic Plans — Group and Company
The Scheme provides pensions and lump sums to members on retirement and to their dependants upon death

Trustees are appointed by both the Comipany and the Schemes membership and act in the interest of the Scheme and all relevant stakeholders, including the
members and the Company The Trustees are also responsible for the investment of the Schemes assets

The Company pays Lhe costs as determined by regular actuanal valuaiions The Trustees are required to use prudent assumplions 1o valuc the habibiies end
costs of the Scheme whereas the accounuing assumptions must be best esumates

Responsibility for making good any deficit on the Scheme lies with the Company and this introduces a number of nisks for the Company The major nisks are

* [nterest and investment nsk — The value of the Schemes assets are subject to volatility in equity pnces The Scheme has diversified its investments to reduce
the impact of volaudity and vanable interest return rates

* Inflauon nsk - The defined benefit abligation is kinked to inflauon so tigher rates would result n o higher defined benefit obligation
* Longevily nsk - An increase over the assumptions applied will increase the defined beneficobligauon

The Company and Trustees are aware of these nsks and manage them through appropniate investment and funding strategies The Trustees manage governance
and operational risks through a number of internal controls policies

The Scheme 1s subject to regular actuanal valuations which are usually carned out every three years The next actuarial valuation 1s due to be carned out on 30 July
2016 These actuanal valuations are carned out 1n accordance with the requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and so inciude deliberate margins for prudence

A formal aciuanal valuauon was carried out as at 30 July 2013 The results of that valuation have been projected o 28 March 2015 by a qualified independent
actuary The figures in the following disclosures were measured using the Projected Unit Method

The Scheme has not invested in any of the Croups own financial instruments nor i properties er other assets in usc by Lhe Group

Key assumptions
The key assumptions used 1n the 2015 valuation of the Scheme are set out below

Mortality assumphons \%?c:rss 3222
Current pensioners {at 65} — males 222 221
Current pensioners {at 65) — females 244 243
Future pensioners (ot 5) — moles 235 235
Future pensioners ot 65) — females 259 258

The Scheme 1s now closed to future accrual The average ago of members who were active at closure 1s 54 for males and 49 for females The average age of all
noRn pensioners 1555

Key financia] assumptions used in the valuahion of the Scheme 2015 2014
Raote of increase n salanies 2 50% 310%
Rate of increase in pensions in paymeni 300% 3 30%
Discount rate 325% 4 A5%
Inflation assumphon = RP) 300% 3 30%
Inflaton ossumphon — CP 2 00% 2 60%

The present value of the Scheme liabilities 1s sensitive to the assumpuions used as follows

Impact on Scheme liabilines - increase/(decrease) 2(2915 205:];
Increase rate of salanes by O 5% n/a' 16
Increase rate of pensions in payment by O 5% 64 52
Increase discount rale by 1 0% {20 0} (16 5)
Increase inflation assumphon by O 5% e 15
Increase lfe expectancies by 1 year 53 3o

! Due to the Scheme closing to future pecrual on 1 January 2005 there are no longer 1nvactine members in the Scheme As the members who were active atclosure did not mamtain a salary ink on
their past service benefits the future salary increase assumptions no longer has an impact on the Schemes labiues

1 For members who were active at closure their pensions now increase in deferment in line with CPl inflation This has had en impact on the inflanion sensivicy incressing it significantly compared 1o
the sensivity quoted for the 26 March 2014 higures as 1t now atlects more members
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23 Pensions continued g_
28 March 26 March %
Assels in the Schemes Z%i 2021:
Corporate bonds 207 17 8
UK eguies 370 34 3
Oversens equities 132 111
Absolute return fund 295 279
Property o9 07 —
Cash 09 06 5
Annuihies 13 12 %
Total market value of assets 1035 936 E
2015 2014
£m £m
far value of Scheme assets 1035 G346
Present value of Scheme labilies 279 (1108
Dehat in the Scheme {24 4) 1172) =
Included within the total present value of Group and Company Scheme habilines of £1279 milhon {2044 £il0 8 mullion) are habiliies of £3 1 mullion g
{2014 £29 million) which are ennrely unfunded 3
Defined beneft obligation Far Scheme of plon assels ~ Net defined benefit [defici]
2015 2014 2005 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at beginning of the year (110 8) 1019 936 88 @ {17 2 (130}
Included in profit ond loss -
Current service cost {11} 15} - - (11 (15) %
Curtallment gain 12 - - - 12 - f?
Net interest cost 49 47) 41 41 (C8) (0 6] z
(48) 62 41 40 ©7) 21} 2
Incdluded in Other Comprehensve Income
Actuanal gains/{losses) relating 1o
Actual return less expecied retun on Scheme assets - - 80 19 B8O 19
Expenence gains ansing on Scheme kabines (16 3} 05 - - (16 3) 05
Losses ansing on changes in demogrophic assumphons - {6 5 - - - {45
(16 3) (6 Q) 80 19 83) 41y
Other
Emplover contributions - - 10 13 10 13
Employer special contnbuions - - 08 07 08 07
Employee coninbutions 03) {0 4) 03 04 - -
Benefits paid 43 37 (4 3) 137) - -
40 33 22 (13 18 20
Balance at end of the year (127 9) (110 8} 1035 @36 {24 4) (172

The weighted average durauion of the Schemes habihiues at the end of the pernod 1s 20 years (204 20 years)

The total contributions © the Scheme in the nexe finanoal year are expected t be £ Trllion tor the Group and the Company These payments are to be
made as part of g deficit recovery plan in place unul March 2021 15 agreed between the Trustees and the Group
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Notes to the Finanaial Statements continued

24 Preference Share Capital

First 4%  Second 8%
cumulative  cumulative
preference  preference

Group and Company of £1 e:;: of £1 eccr; Total
Authonised, 1ssved and fully paid share capital Nugt‘)b(;: Nu(')nokg.': Nu;ob&:
Number authonsed and in 1ssue

At 30 March 2013, 29 March 2014 ond 28 March 2015 400 1,200 1,600
Maonetary amount £m €m £m
At 30 March 2013, 29 Morch 2014 and 28 March 2015 04 12 146

The first 6% cumulanve preference shares of £ each are enttled to hrst payment of a fixed cumulative dividend and on winding up to a return of paid capital
plus arrears of dvidends The second 8% cumulative preference shares of £1 each are entitled 10 second payment of a fixed cumulative dividend and on
winding up 4 return of capital paid up {plus ¢ premium calculated by reference w an average guoted prive on the Stock Dichange for the previous six months)
plus arrears of dividends

Preference shareholders may only vote 1n imited circumstances principally on winding up alteration of class nghts or on unpaid preference dividends
Preference shares cannot be redeemed by the holders other than on winding up

25 Provisions

a) Onerous Lease and Contngent Consideration

Onerous lease cgrz?cg:gﬁgﬂ Totol

Group and Company Z(an QOEI:: 22:]3 2021: 2%':. 20£Ii
A1 29 March 2014 17 28 17 - 34 28
Ansing duning the year 03 - - 17 03 V7
Released duning the year - 02 - - - 09
Unhsed (10) [0 4] - - (10 04
Unwinding of discount 01 02 01 - 02 02
At 28 March 2015 11 17 18 17 29 34
Analysed as £m £m £m Em £m tm
Due within one year 02 0oe 02 03 04 12
Due in more then one year o9 08 16 14 25 272

11 17 18 17 29 34

The onerous lease provision 1s recognised 1n respect of leasehold properties where the lease contracts are deemed to be onerous Provision 1s made for the
discounted value of the lower of the unavoidable lease costs and the losses expected to be incurred by the Group

The conungens consideration 1s recognised m respect of the fau vatue of additional amounts which are only payable on completion of certain performance
targeis for business combinations
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25 Provisions conunucd

b) Deferred Tax Provision
The deferred tax included in the Balance Sheet is as follows

MAWIAAD) |

uoday J3neng ‘ ’

2IUBLIAAOT) | |

Asset Lishility Net Asset Liability Net
o A AL mp MR W .
Deferred tax
Retirement benefit obligations 49 - 49 34 - 34
Tax losses camed forward 04 - 04 co - Q6
Employee share schemes 10 - 10 08 - 08
Financial {habiltes)/assets 04 - 06 0) 02 1)
Accelerated tax depreciotion - {12 4) (12 4) - 113 2) {12 2)
Rolled over capital gains ~ (8 9} 89 - @ 2] @2
Others 15 - 15 13 - 13
84 {21 3} nze} 62 {22 &) {16 4)
The deferred tax included in the Company Balance Sheet 1s the same as the Group with the following exceptions
Asset Liabihity Net Assef Labiliry Net
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Company £m £m £m £m £m £m
Deferred tax
Tax losses camed forward 02 - 02 Q5 - C5
Total deferred tax asset/{lability} 82 {21 3) (131 &1 22 6 {16 5)
26 Financial Instruments
Details of the Groups Treasury function are included in the Financial Review s discussion of financial nisks and treasury policies on page 20
The accounung ireatment of the Groups financial instruments s detalled in note 1
a) Capital Management - Group and Company
As described in note 1 the Group considers its capital to compnse the following
Group Group Company Company
Capel R A
Ordinary share capital 228 228 228 228
Share premium 48 48 48 48
Capital redemphon reserve 31 31 31 37
Hedging reserve (2 4} - 24) -
Retained earnings 2700 2562 241 4 2290
Freference shares 16 16 16 16
2999 288 5 2697 2697

In managing its capital the primary objective 15 to ensure that the Group 1s able to contnue w operate as a going concern and to maxirmise return to shareholders
through a combination of capital growth distributions and the payment of preference dividends to its preference shareholders The Group seeks to matntain
a ratio of debrt and equity that balances risks and returns at an acceptable level and maintams sufficient funds to meetworking capital targets investment
requirernents and comply with lending covenants The Group bought back £71 million of shares in the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015{2014 £5 3 million)
ofwhich £09 million related to purchases made by or on behalf of employee share ownership trusts (2014 811 milion) As a mimmum the Board reviews
the Groups dividend policy twice yearly and reviews the treasury position at every Board meeting
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

26 Financial Instruments cononued

b} Categonies of Financial Assets and Liabiliies
The Groups financial assets and liabiliues as recognised at the Balance Sheet date mayalso be categonised as follows

Group Group Company Company
2005 2014 2005 2014
E£m £m £m £m
Non-current assets
Denvative inanciol assets hedge accounted 03 o8 03 08
loans and other recenables in scope of 1AS 39 03 04 03 04
Total non-current assets 06 12 06 12
Current assets
Loans and other recevables
Trade and other recevables in scope of 1AS 39 128 128 215 128
Cash and short term deposits 51 41 48 41
Tolal current assets 179 169 253 6o
Totol finanaial assets 185 181 269 181
Current habilihes
Trade and other payables in scope of IAS 39 N3 307 1280 1250
Tolal carned at amorhised cost 313 307 1280 1250
Tolal curens kabilines 33 307 1280 1250
Non-current labilihes
Denvative inanciol labilines hedge accounted 31 08 31 08
Put and call option 30 - - -
Carired at amoriised cost
Other payables in scope of I1AS 39 09 08 09 08
Loans and debenture stock 1461 1423 1459 1421
Preference shares V6 16 14 16
Total carned al amortised cost 148 6 1447 148 4 144 5
Total noncurent labibnes 1547 145 5 1515 145 3
Tota! financial liabilites 1860 1762 2795 2703

There 1s no sex ofl of financial assets and habiliues as shown above

¢) Financial Risks — Group And Company
The main nsks associated with the Group s financial assets and habilines are set out below as are the Groups policies for their management Dernvatve
Instruments are used o change the cconomic chdractersuics of inancial mstruments 1 accordance with Group policy

(1) Interest Rate Risk

The Croup manages its cost of borrowings using a mixture of fixed rates vanable rates and interest rate caps The current Group policy is that a minimum of
50% of total nutstanding borrowings should be at a fixed or capped rate of mterest This 1s achieved by both taking our interest rate swaps and caps with third
parties and by loan instruments that require the Group to pay a fixed rate Fixed rates do not expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk butdo not enjoya
reducton in borrowing costs in markets where rates are faling Interest rate eaps limit the maximum rare payable but require payment of a lump sum
premium The fair value nsk snherent in hxed rate bormowangs means that the Group 1 exposed to uaplanned costs if debtis paid off earier than anticipated Floating
rate borrowings although not exposed o changes in fair value expose the Group to cash flow nsk following nises in interest rates and cost

The debentures totaling £259 million {2014 £259 mullion)are at fixed rates The bank loans sotaling £141 0 milion {2014 £l16 2 million) net of arrangement
fees are at floaung rates Althe vear end after taking account of interest rate swaps and caps 75% (2014 73%} of the Groups bank loans and 79% {2014 78%)
of gross borrowings were at hxed or capped rates

Interest rate swaps

The Group has entered into interest rate swap agreements where the Group pays a fixed rate and receives | menth or 3 month LIBOR in order to hedge the
risk of vanation in interest cash flows on its borrowings At the Balance Sheet date £650 million of the Group and Companys borrowings (2014 £650 million)
were hedged by interest rate swaps at a blended fixed rate of 175% (2014 175%) Of the swaps active at 28 March 2015 £40 0 milhon expire in 2015 and
£25 0 million expire in 2017 Addionally the Group has entered into interest rate swap arrangements with forward start dates In December 2012 the Group
entered Into an interest raie swap agreement to hedge the nsk of interest rate variauon on £20 0 mullion of the Group's borrowings at a rate of 2 25%
commencing m 2015 and expiring In 2022 In July 2013 the Group also entered into an interest rate swap agreement (o hedge the nsh of interest rate vanation
on a further £200 milion of the Groups borrowings at a rate of 2 55% commencing in 2015 and expinng in 2020
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26 Financial [nstruments continued

Interest rate cap

The Group has entered into interest rate cap agreements in order 1o hedge the nsk of vanation i interest cash flows an its borrowmngs Atthe Balance Sheet
date £20 0 milkon (2044 £20 0 million) of the Group and Company s borrowings were hedged by an interest rate cap ata fixed rate of 400%{2014 4 00%}

The cap expires in 2015 A further £20 0 million of the Group and Company s borrowing were hedged by an interest cap at a fixed rate of 2 I% commencing
in 2015 and expinng in 2020

The interest rate swaps and cap are expected [o impact the Income Statement in ine with the iquidity nisk table shown in section {iv) below The interest rate
swap cash flow hedges were assessed as being highly effective at 28 March 2015 and a net unrealised gain of £3 G mullion (2044 £2 4 mullien loss) has been
recorded in Other Comprehensive Income The interest rate cap cash flow hedge 1s not designated as a cash flow hedge for hedge accounting purposes and
neo net unrealised gain/loss (2014 £rulkwas recorded in the Income Statement

Sensiavity - Group and Company

The Group borrows in Sterling at market rates 3 month Sterling LIBOR rare during the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 ranged between 0 53% and 0 57% The
Direciors consider | 0% to be a reasonable possible increase in rates and O 5% to be a reasonable possible decrease in rates wath reference to market yield
curves and the current economic condmons

The annuahsed effect of these changes 1o interest rates on the floating rate debt at the Balance Sheet date all other variables being constant are as follows

Group Group Company®  Company*

2015 2014 2015 2014

impact on post-tax profit and net equity — increase/[decrease) £m £m £m £m
Decrease interest rate by 0 5% 03 02 07 06
Increase interest rate by 1 0% (0 68) Ic 4 {14 nn

The Company has substantial nterest bearing payables due w subsidiary companies (note 21)

{n) Foreign Currency Risk
The Group buys and sells goods and services denominated in nen-Sterling currencies principally US dollar Euro and Australian dollar As aresult movements
in exchange rates can affect the value of the Groups revenues and purchases

The Group policy on covering foreign currency exposure 1s included in the Financial Review s discussion of financial risks and treasury policies on page 20

As a mimimum 1t buys or sells forward the net known value of all committed purchase or sales orders In addiion the Group will usually buy or seli a proportion
of the estimated sale or buy orders for the remaiming part of the year to minimise its transactional currency exposures in nen-Sterling currencies Forward currency
contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged items The Group does not trade in forward currency hedges

AL 28 March 2015 the Croup and Company had open forward contracts to buy €49 nullion {2014 buy €37 milllon} These have a Sterling equivalent of

£38 mullion (2014 £31 mullion}and a net gain of £0 2 nullion (2014 ml)when companng the contractual rates with the year end exchange rates At 28 March
2015 the Group and Company had open forward contracts to pay $1 0 mullion (2014 $nil) These have a Sterling equivalentof £07 mulhion (2014 £nil)and a ner
gan of Eml (2014 £nil) when companng the contractual rates with year end exchange rates

Al 28 March 2015 the only significant foreign currency assets or iabiliiies were the following

Cash deposis Trode recevables Trade payables
Group and Company A -SSR
Euro assets/{abilines) 11 02 - - {07) 04
US dollar assets/{iabilihes} 02 04 04 05 02 101

{m) Credit Risk
The nsk of financial loss due to a counter party s failure to honour its obligations anses principally in relation (o transactions where the Group provides goods
and services on deferred payment terms deposits surplus cash and enters into derivative contracts

Group policies are aimed at minimising losses and deferved terms are only granted 1o customers who demonstrate an appropriate psyment history and satsfy
credi worlhiness procedures Indwidual customers are subject to credit imis to control debt exposure Credit insurance ts taken out where appropnate for
wholesale customers and goods may also be sold on a cash with order basis

Cash deposits with financial nstitutions for short penods and derivative transactions are only permitted with financial institutions approved by the Board
There are no significant concentrauons of credi nsk withim the Group The maximurm credit nisk exposure relaung 10 financial assets is represented by their
carrying value as &t Lhe Balance Sheet date

Trade and other receivables
The Group records imparment losses on its trade recervables separately from gross recevables Further detailis included n note 19

{v) Liquichty Rusk

The Group minimises hiquidity risk by managing cash generation applying debror collection targeis monitoning daily cash receipts and payments and setung
rolling cash forecasts Investments have cash payback periods applied as part of a tightly controlled investment appraisa! process The Groups raung with
credit agencies 1s excellent

The Group has a mixture of long and short term borrowings and overdraft faciliies 16% (2014 19%) of the Groups borrowings are repayable after more than
five years nil (20t4 81%)within the second to third years and 84% (2014 nilkwichin the third to fifth years
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

26 Financial Instruments conanued
The Lables below summianise the matunity profile of the Groups inanctal habiliues at 28 March 2015 based on undiscounted contractual cash flows including
interest payable Floaung rate mierest s esumated using the prevailing interest rate at the Balance Sheet dale

On Less than 3o 12 Ttod More than
demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
Group at 28 March 2015 £m £m £m £m €m £m
Interest beanng loans and borrowings' - 12 36 1332 427 1807
Preference shores? - - 01 05 34 40
Trade and other payables 109 18 4 01 05 07 306

! Bank loans ale included altet taking account of the following cash fows m relaton o the mierest sate swap and cap held in respect of these borrowings

interest rate swaps and cap - 02 06 24 17 49
Group at 29 March 2014

Interest beanng loans and borowings' - 13 37 128 4 427 1761
Preference shares? - - 01 G5 34 40
Trade and other payables 126 180 01 05 08 320

! Bank loans are ncluded after taking account of the following cash fows in refanon ro the Interest rate swap and cap held in respect of these borrowings
2 The preference shares have ne contractual repayment date For the purposes of the table above interest payments have been shown for 20 years from the Balance Sheet date but no further

Interest rafe swaps and cap - o2 06 13 18 5@

The Company figures are as tor the Group except as follows

More

On less than 3012 lic5 thon 5
demand 3 months months years years Total
Company at 28 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings® Q75 - - - - 7 5
Trade and other payables 102 18 4 01 05 07 209

Company at 29 March 2014

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings® Q4 5 - - - - 945

'V Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings have no fixed 1epayment date Interests paysble on the balance ot 3% above the Bank of England base rate

Security - Group and Company
The 107% debentures 2023 are secured on property plant and equipment with a net book value of £12 5 million (2014 £12 5 mullion) The 6 875% debentures
2028 are secured by a floaung charge over the assets of the Company

Covenants — Group and Company

The Group and Company are subject to a number of covenants in refation te their borrowing faciliues which if contravened would resultin s loans becoming
immediately repayable These covenants inter ala specify maximum net debt to earnings before interest tax depreciaton and amortsation and minimum
earnings before interest tax depreciation and amorusation [o Interest
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26 Financial Instruments conanved
d) Fair Value

Fair values of financial assets and habihnies
Set our below 1s a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all the inancial instruments that are carned 1n the financial staternents

Book value Book valye Fair value Fair value Far
2015 2014 2005 2014 value
Group £m £m £m £m Level
Finanaal assets
Cash 52 41 52 41 1
Trade and ather recevables due within one year in scope of [AS 39 127 128 127 128 3
leans and other recevables due in more than one year in scope of 145 3¢ 03 04 03 04 3
Interest rate swaps - o8 - 08 2
Interest rate cap 03 - 03 - 2
Financial hiabilihes
Trade and other payobles n scope of 145 39 (32 4) 131 5) {32 4) {31 5] 3
Fixed rete borrowings (261} 126 1) (310 310 3
Floating rate borrowings [(1209Q) 1116 2) 1162} M1&62) 3
Preference shares [16&} 1o (18) (18} 3
Interest rale swaps 29) {0 8) 29} [0 8) 2
Put and call option (30} - {30) - 3
Forward currency contiacl [02) - 02 - 2
The Company figures are as for the Group above except as follows
Book valve Book value Farr valve Far value Farr
2015 2014 2015 2014 value
Company £m £m £m £m Level
Fnanaal habidifies
Trade and other payables in scope of 1AS 39 (129 4) 1125 8) {129 4) {125 8) 3

Level | fair values are valuation techniques where inputs are quoted prices in active markers for identical assets or habilinies that the entity can access at
measure data

Level 2 fair values are valuation techmques where all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable enher directly orindirectly
but are not derved directly from quoted prices in active markets The Group bases its valuations on information provided by financial institutions whe use
a variety of esumation techniques based on market conditions such as interest rate expectations existing at each balance sheet date

Level 3 fair values are valuauon techmgues for which all nputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are not observable Denvative fair
values are obtained from guoted market prices In active markets The fair values of borrowings have been caleulated by discounung the expected future cash
flows at prevailing interest rates The fair values of preference shares have been calculated using the market interest rates The fair values of cash trade and
other receivables loans and other recevables and trade and other payables are equivalent to therr carrying value The fair value of the put and call opuion has
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows of The Stable Pizza and Cider Lirited
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

27 Share Capital and Reserves

a)Share Capital

Aadnoyy  C ordmnary ‘B ordinary

shares of shares of shares of
Authonised, 1ssued and fully paid 40peach  40peach 4p each Toral
Number in issue NL(F)%%EL NUO%%ES: NL(})%‘{E)Q’; NLE)%%G.;
At 30 March 2013 33,424 14,657 89,052 137,133
Share conversions o4 (64) - -
At 29 March 2014 33,488 14 593 89052 137,133
Share conversions 31 131 - -
At 28 March 2015 33,519 14,562 89,052 137,133
Proporhion of total equity shares at 28 March 2015 24 5% 10 6% 64 9% 100%
Monetary amount £m £m £m £m
At 30 March 2013 133 59 36 228
Share conversions (ol 101 - -
At 29 March 2014 i34 58 36 228
Share conversions - - - -
At 28 March 2015 134 58 36 228

Share capital represents the nominal value proceeds recened on the issue of the Companys equity share capral comprising 40p and 4p ordmary shares
The Campanys preference shares are classificd as non-curtent labikties in accordance with MRS see note 24)

The ordinary shareholders are entitled to be paid a drvidend out of any surplus profits and to participate in surplus assets on winding up (n proportion o the
nominal value of each class of share [ B shares have one tenth of the nominal value of A and C shares)

All equity shares in the Company carry one vote per share save that shares held in treasury have their voting nghts suspended The A and C shares have a
40p nominal value and the B shares have & 4p nominal value so thata B share dvidend will be paid at [0% of the rate applying to A and C shares The A
shares are isted on the London Stock Exchange The C shares carrya night for the holder to convert them to A shares by wntten notice in the 30 day penod
following the half year and preliminary announcements The B shares are not listed and have ne conversion nights [n most circumstances the value ofa B
share 1s deemed to be 0% of the value of the listed A shares The Trustee holding shares for partcipants of the 1 TIP currently waves dwvidends for shares held
duning the initial three year penod Dividends are not paid on shares held in treasury

The Articles include provisions relating to the Companys B and C shares which provide that shareholders who wish to rransfer their shares may enly do so f
the transfer 1s to another B or C shareholder or i the transfer is to certan of that shareholders family members or their executors ar administratars or where
shares are held by trustees to new trusices or 1o the trustees of any employee share scheme or if the Company s unable to idenufy another shareholder of
that class willing te purchase the shares within the specified peniod to any person
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27 Share Capital and Reserves contnued

b} Own Shares

Qwn shares relate (o shares held by ndependently managed employee share ownership trusts { ESGTs }rogether wath the Company s holding of treasury
shares Shares are purchased by the FSOTs In order to sausfy potential awards under the Lang Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP7) and Share Incenuve Scheme { SIP )
Treasury shares are used interalia o satsty oprions under the Companyss share options schemes The | TIP ESOT has waived its nghts to dividends on
the shadres it holds Treasury shares have voting and dmidend nghts suspended All own shares held as below are excluded from earmings and net assets
pershare walculatons

Treosury shares LTIP ESOT SIPESOT Total

A oidinary  'B'odinary A ordinary B ordinory Codinery A ardinary A ordinory . B ordinary  C ordinoty
40p shares dpshares  40p shares 4pshores  40p Shaes  40pshores  40p shares 4p shares  40p shares

PEREYS) l

Joday 2i9a1eng | |

AIUBUIIAATY | |

Number 000 0005 000's 000's 000 000 0005 000 000s
At 30 March 2013 1206 - - 693 5 2 i,208 693 5
Shares purchased 446 - - 415 5 69 515 215 5
Shares transferred {167} - 167 - - - - - -
Shares released {314) - [167) {417 - 71} 1552 1417) -
At 29 March 2014 1,171 - - 621 10 - 1,171 621 10
Shares purchased 292 3,558 - 248 - 73 365 3,806 -
Shares transferred (110} - 110 - - - - - -
Shares released 1160} - {11Q] [266] - 72} [372) 12646] -
At 28 March 2015 1,163 3,558 - 673 10 | 1,164 4,231 10
Monetary amount £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
A 30 March 2013 82 - - 05 - - 82 05 -
Shares purchased 472 - - 04 01 06 48 04 01
Shares tansferred {1 -~ 11 - - - - - -
Shares released (22 - {11} 04 - 106) (39 {04 -
Al 29 March 2014 Q1 - - Qs 01 - Q1 05 01
Shares purchased Z8 34 - 02 - 07 35 36 -
Shares transferred 0® - 09 - - - - - -
Shares released 11 35) - 09 {02 - {07 131 02 -
Al 28 March 2015 95 34 - g5 01 - ?5 39 01
Market value ot 28 March

2015 119 36 - o7 01 - ne 43 01

c) Other Caputal Reserves

Share Premium Account
The balance in the share premium account represents the proceeds recerved above the nonundl value on the wsue of the Company s equity share capital

Capital Redempuien Reserve
The capral redemption reserve hatance anses from the buy-back of the Company s own equity share capital

Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserve contains the effectve partion of the cash flow hedge relationships incurred at the Balance Sheet date net of rax
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Notes to the Financaial Statements continued

28 Share Options and Share Schemes

The key points of cach of the Groups share schemes for grants up 1o 28 March 2015 are summansed below All schemes are equity seuled All disclosure
relates 10 both Group and Company For the purposes of nption and LTIP schemes “Adjusted EPS” will normally be consistent with the post tax earnings
per share excluding exceptional items as presenied i the financial statements However, the Remuneration Comnnttee s authonsed 1o make appropriate
adjustments o Adjusted EPS as applied to these schemes

Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE")

This scheme grants options over shares at a discount of 20% on the average market price over the three days immediately prior to the date of ofter Employees
must save 4 regular amount cach month Savings are made over three of five years atthe pariupants choice The nght te buy shares at the discounted price
lasts for s1x months after the end of the savings contract There are no performance condiuons other than conunued employmenn

Semior Executive Share Option Scheme

This 15 an unapproved Fxecutive Share Oprion Scheme If growth in Adjusted EPS exceeds growth in the Retail Price Index { RPI )by 9% over the performance
period of the option then 40% of the award will vest Vesung levels are then on a sliding scale with 100% vesting occurring if growth in Adpusted EPS exceeds
growth In RPl by mare than 2% The performance penod for grants under this scheme 15 three years Opuions must be exercised within seven years of the end
ot the performance penod

Executive Share Option Scheme
Thes 1s an approved Executive Share Option Scheme The options vestif growth in Adjusted EPS exceeds the growth in RP1 by 9% or more over the three year
performance perod of the option The options must then be exercised wichin seven years after the end of the performance period

LTIP

This plan awards free shares Vesting 1s condiional on growth in Adjusted EPS exceeding growth in RPI by 9% or more over the three-year iniual performance
period of the award Vesung levels are on a shiding scale from 40% up to 100% (f growth in Adjusted EPS exceeds growth in RP! by 24% or more An independent
firm of advisors verify the vesting level each year The iniial vesting period is three years After this ime the shares may be passed to the plan participants

as fong as vesung conditions are met

SIP

This plan awards free shares The number of shares awarded up to a maximum value of £3 000 per person per year 1s based on length of service and salary
The life of each plan 1s fve years after which shares are released to parucipants There are no performance conditions as in almost all cireumstances participants
can retain the shares awarded (although there may be tax consequences if within five years of the award)

Share-Based Payment Expense Recognised in the Year
The expense recognised for share based payments in respect of employee services received duning the 52 weeks ended 28 March 20151512 6 million
{2014 &1 8 mullion} The whole of that expense anises from equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Movements in the Year
The following tables illustrate the number and weighted average exercive prices ( WAEP Jof and movements in each category of share instrument dunng
the year

Market Value
The market value of the shares at 28 March 2015 was £10 2012014 £910}
A) SAYE
2015 2014
Number 2015 MNumber 2014
000's WAEP 0005 WAEP
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 394 £563 501 £4 69
Granted 110 £7 47 102 £7 24
lopsed 29 £603 (48) £524
Exercised {127} £4 89 {163} £3 97
Ovtstanding at the end of the year 348 £6 43 394 £563
Exercisable ot the end of the year - n/a - n/a
Weighted average share price for ophions exercised in the year £9 52 £046
Weighted average eontractual life remaining for share options eutstanding ct the year end 402 years 2 34 years
Weighted average share price for opticns granted in the year £9 32 £Q 43
Waeighted average far value of optiens gramed dunng the year £201 £197
Range of exercise prices for options outstanding ot the year end
- from £4 64 £388
—to 7 47 £7 24
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28 Share Options and Share Schemes convaved

Outstanding share options granted 1o employees under the Saving Related Share Opuion Scheme are as lollows

Number of ‘A’ Number of 'A'

ordinary ordinary

e

Exercise price ophon option

40p shares 2015 2014

Exareisable at £ 000's 000

September 2014 J 88 - 418

September 2014 547 - 78

Sepiember 2015 464 52 38

September 2015 563 58 63

Seplember 2016 547 25 27

Seplember 2016 724 59 66

September 2017 563 20 22

Seplember 2017 747 80 32

Seplember 2018 7 24 28 -

Seplember 2019 747 26 -

348 304

B) Share Option Schemes
Senior Executive Share Opuon Scheme

2015 2014

Number 2015 MNumber 2014

000's WAEP 0005 VWAEP

Outstanding at the beginaing of the year 115 £6 56 202 £5 67

Granled - £910 20 £910

lopsed ] £6 46 {29 £6 46

Exercised [26) £4 92 78] £4 92

Outstanding at the end of the year 83 £914 115 £6 56

Exercisable at the end of the year 39 £597 51 £512
Weighted average shore price for ophons exercised in the year £9 80 £917
Weighted average contractua! hfe remaining for share eptions oulsianding at the year end 6 61 years 6 71 years
Weighled average share price for options granied in the year n/a £808
Weighled average lorr value of ophions granted dunng the year n/a £107

Range of exercise prices for oplions outstanding at the yeor end

— from £405 £405
-0 £2 10 £0 10
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

28 Share Options and Share Schemes conunued

Executive Share Oprion Scheme

2015 2014
Numbar N5 Number 2014
000’ WAEP 000s WAEP
Quistanding at the beginning of the year 162 £7 39 185 £558
Granied 54 £9 10 44 £910
Lopsed (12) £9 10 - -
Exercised (35) £o 88 (67) £4 08
Outstanding at the end of the year 169 £673 162 £7 39
Exercisable at the end of the year 45 £6 23 37 £602
Weighted average share price for ophions exereised i the year £9 52 £218
Weighted average contractual life remaining for share options outstanding at the year end 7 45 years 7 50 years
Weighted averoge share pnce for optians granted in the year £0 65 £898
Weighted overoge farr value of ophons grented dunng the year £115 £0 92
Range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the year end
— from £4 05 £4 05
-to £910 £910

Oustanding opuons which ere capable of being exercised between three and ten years from date ofissue and their exercise pnces are shown inthe table below

Senior Executive Shoie Opiion Scheme

Execuiive Share Ophion Scheme

Number of Number of Number of Number of

‘A ordnery A ordinary ‘A ordinary A ordinory

ares shores shares shares

under under under under

Exercise price aphion ophion Exercise piice ophon aphon

40p shares 2015 20i4 40p shares 2005 2014

Exercisable in/between £ 000's C00s ¢ 000's 0005
2009 and 2016 498 - 2 408 3 3
2010 and 2017 7 51 - 4 7 51 7 12
2011 and 2018 405 12 405 4 4
2012 ond 2019 480 9 19 4 80 3 3
2013 and 2020 578 12 12 578 12 15
2013 and 2020 6 30 1 i - - -
2014 and 202! 709 15 21 709 15 39
2015 and 2022 705 24 24 705 38 42
2016 and 2023 Q10 20 20 Q130 33 44
2017 and 2024 - - - Q65 54 -
Total 83 115 169 162
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28 Share Options and Share Schemes continued

C}LTIP
2015 2015 2014 2014
‘A shores ‘B’ shares  'A'shores ‘B shares
Number  Number Number MNymber
Shares 000's 000 Q00's 000s
Quisianding ot the beginning of the year 478 1,195 694 1,733
Granted 147 367 155 388
Lopsed (80} (199} (204) (509
Vested (110} (275} {167} {417)
Outstanding at the end of the year 435 1,088 478 1,195
Weighted average share price for shares vested in the year £9 53 £0 95 £ 23 £0092
For shares outstanding at the yeor end, the weighted average conlractual lfe remaining s 122years 122years | 2Bvyears 1 28 years
Weighted average share pnce for shares granted in the yeor £9 25 £0 92 £8 98 £0%0
Weighted average foir volue of shares gionted during the year £8 74 £0 87 £8 38 £0 84
AllLTIPs have a vesting pnice of knil LTIP shares do notreceive dividends untl vested
D) SIP
Nomber  Numbor
000" 000s
Cutstanding ot the beginning of the year 322 369
Granted 74 71
Lapsed (2) i)
Released (97} (117
Ovutstanding at the end of the year 297 322
Weighted average share puce for shares released in the year £936 £9 31
Far shares outstanding af the year end, the weighted average contiactual lfe remaining 1s 286 years 2 85 vyears
Weighted average share price for shares granted dunng the year £9 50 £9 60
Weighted average farr volue of shares granted dunng the year £9 59 £917

Qutstanding SIP shares represent shares allocated and hetd by the SIP Trustees on behalf of employees which remam inthe trust for between three and five

years All SIPs have a vesting price of £l SIP shares receive dividends once allocated
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

28 Share Opuons and Share Schemes continued
E) Fair Value of Grants

{1) Equity-settled options and LTIPs

The fair vatue of equity settled share opuons granted 1s estimated as at the daie of grant taking into account the terms and condiuons upon which the awards
were granted The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 and 52 weeks ended 29 March 2014 except exercise
price and for the weighted average share price for grants in the year which are disclosed in secuons ajto e) above

Executive and Semior Executive

TP scheme Save as you eam scheme option schemes
Fair value inputs 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Drvidend vield (%) 1 7% 16% 17% 1 6% V7% 1 6%
Expected share price volatlity (%) n/a n/a 19% 17% 19% 17%
14t 0@to 1l
Risk free interest rate (%} 1 4% 07% 20% 1 6% 17% 1 4%
Jto Jto 410
Expected Ife of opon/award lyears) 3 years 3 years 5 years 3 years 3 years 5 years
Black Black Black Black Black Block
Model used Scholes Scholes Scholes Scholes Scholes Scholes

(u) SIPs Granted
The fair value of SIPs 1s the share pnce at the date of allocaton The value of SIPs awarded 1s a fixed rate based on the Groups performance in the preceding
financial year The number of shares awarded 1s therefore dependent on the share price at the date of the award

29 Guarantees and Commitments
a) Operating Lease Commitments

Operating leases where the Group 1s the lessee
Future minsmum rentals payable under non-cancellable operaung leases are due as follows

Group Group Company Company

2005 2014 2015 2014

£m £m £m £m

Within one year 112 80 169 80
Between one year and five years 269 262 257 262
Aher five years 596 398 540 398
977 740 06 740

Commercial operatng leases are typecally for 20 1o 25 years although centain leases have lease periods extending up to 40 years

Operating leases where the Group 1s the lessor

The Group earns rental mcome from iwo sources Licensed property included within property plant and equipment 1s rented under agreements where
lessees must also purchase goods from the Group Addionally there are a smaller number of agreements in respect of investment properues where there
15 no requirement for the lessee to purchase goods

Investment properties are et 1o third parties on leases that have remaining terms of between one and ten years

At 28 March 2015 future mimmum rentals receivable by the Group are as follows

Other property,
Invesiment properties plant & equipment

205 2014 2015 2014

Group Em £m £m £m
Within one year 03 c4 75 77
Between one year and five yeors 07 o7 151 167
Alter five years 3 04 109 88
13 15 335 332
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29 Guarantees and Commitments continued

Orher property,
Invesiment properties plont & equipment

205 2014 2015 2014

Company £m £m £m £m
Wiihin one year 03 04 76 77
Between one year and five years 07 07 154 167
Aher fve years 03 04 114 88
13 15 344 332

The Group and Companys commercizl leases on property are principally for licensed outlets The terms of the leases are normally for either three, five or ten
years with the maximum bemng 30 years The agreerments allow for annual inflationary increases and full rental reviews occur on renewal of the lease or every
five years for a ten-year lease

At 28 March 2015 future minimunm renzals recevable under non-cancellable sub leases included in the figures above were £71 milhon {2014 €5 2 milion}

b) Other Commutments

2015 2014
Group and Company £m Em
Capal commitments — authonsed, contracted but not provided for 23 39

The Company has ace.epied vanous duty deferment bonds in connection with HM Revenue & Customs The tonal outstanding commitment gt 28 March 2015
was £720000(2014 £720:000) for the Group and Company

30 Related Party Transactions

Group and Company

Dunng the current and pror years the Company provided vanous admimisirative services to the Fuller Smith & Turner Pension Plan free of charge Inaddinon
the Company settled costs totalling E200 000 (204 £170 000) relating to the provision of actuanal consulung and administrative services by third parties to
the Fuller Smith & Turner Pension Plan

52 weeks 52 weeks

ended ended
28 March 2¢ Maich
2015 2014
Compensation of key management personnel {including Directors) £m Em
Short term employee benelis 49 49
Post-employment benefis 04 05
Share-based poyments 24 15
77 69
Company Only
Durning the year the Company entered into the following related party transactions
Purchases Inferest Amounis Amounts
Scles to rom due from  Interest poid owed to
related related rolated to related related reloted
parties partes parties porhes partigs parkes
52 weeks ended 28 March 2015 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Subsidicnes - 44 8 03 32 97 5} 20
Puichases Amounis
Sales o rom  Interest paid owed to
related ielated 1o related reloied
parhes parhes parhes parties
52 weeks ended 29 March 2014 £m £m £m £m
Subsidiaries - 429 32 o4 5)

Interest 1s payable on the magoniy of the amounts due to subsidianes at 3% above the Bank of England base rate All amounts outstanding are unsecured and
repayable on demand
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

30 Related Party Transactions continued

Subsidianes of parent companies established within the Curepean Economic Arca are exempt from an auditf a guarantee s provided by the parent for the
subsidiary labihties and the shareholders are in unammous agreement The Group wall be exempung the following companies from an auditin 2015 for the
penod ending 28 March 2015 under section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006, all of which are fully consolidated in these financial statements

Gniftin Catenng Services Lid 01577632
Jacomb Guinness Ltd (02934979
Guorge Gale & Co Lud 00026330
45 Woodfield Lid 04279254
Cormsh Orchards Lid 04871687

The Group will be exempting the following companies from the preparation and delivering of accounts to Companies House under section 3944 of the
Companies Act 2006 all of which are tully conselidated in these financial statements

Grffin Inns Lid 00495934
Ringwoods Ltd 00178536
FST Trustee Lid 03163480
Fuller Srruth & Turner Estate Ltd 01831674

31 Post Balance Sheet Event
Since 28 March 2015 the Group has exchanged on the purchase of one hicensed property
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Directors and Advisors
as at 4 June 2015

Directors

Michael Turner, FCA Charman®
Simon Emeny Chiel Executive
James Douglas ACA

Richard Fuller

{an Bray

Jonathon Swaine

John Dunsmore*

Sir James Fuller”

Lynn Fordham CA*

Adastarr Kerr™

Non Executne

President

Anthony Fuller CBE

Chatrman {rom 1982-2007 Anthony Fuller retired from the Board in 2010
after a long careerwith Fullers and continues as President

Secretary and Registered Office
Sévenne Garnham

Grffin Brewery

Chuswick Lane South

London W4 20QB

Tel 0208996 2105

Registered Number 241882

Auditors

Crant Thornwon UKLLP
Grant Thorrwon | louse
Melton Streel

London NWI2EP

Stockbrokers

Nurmus Secunties Limited
10 Paternoster Square
[ondon ECAM 71T

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC

The Pavitions Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 627

Tel 0870 889 4096

Please note you can now advise
Computershare of changes 1o your address
or set up a dividend mandate online at
wwweomputershare com/investor/fuk
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Shareholder Information

2015 Diary

Friday. 26 June
Record Date

Wednesday, I July
Preference dividends paid

Thursday, 23 July
Annual General Meeting
Hock Cellar Criffin Brewery

Monday, 27 July
Final dvidend paid

Friday, 20 November

Half year results announcement

2016 Diary

January
Prefetence dividends paid
Intenim dividend paid

June
Preliminary results announcement

Shareholder Privileges

Individual shareholders with at least 500 A or C ordinary shares or 5000 B ordinary shares are eligible to recene ashareholder indulgence card entitling
them o 4 I5% discount on tood and drinks m Fuller s Managed Pubs and | lotels and when visiing the Brewery Store in Chiswick as well as a 0% discount on
the best available rate in Fullers hoiels Information is available [rom the Company Secrctattat on (0208996 2105 or companysecretanai@lullers couk

Redesignation of ‘'C’ Shares

C ordinary shares can be redesignated as A ordinary shares within 30 days of the preliminary and half year announcements by sending in your ceruficates
and a written instruction to redesignate prior or during the period to the Company s Registrars

Computershare Investor Services PLC

The Pavilions Bndgwater Road

Bristol BS99 627

ShareGift
The Orr Mackintosh Foundauon operates a chanty share donation scheme for shareholders with smati parcels of shares whose value makes it uneconomic

to selt them If you have a small number of shares and would Iike to donate them to chanty detalls of the scheme can be found on the ShareGift website
www sharegift org or by contacting the Company Secretanat on 020 8996 2105
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Glossary

= Adjusted earrings per share {"EPS) - this is earnings per share adjusted for excephional tems The Directors believe that this measure provides useful
informauon for shareholders as to the internal measures of ihe performance of the Group

+ Adjusted profits - this s profit before 1ax, adjusted for exceptional items

# Beer and cider volumes - this s the volume of beer and eider sold 1n number of barrels a brewing term represenung 288 pints

» EBITDA - this 15 the earnings before interest tax depreciation loss on disposal of plant and equipment and amortisanon adjusted for exceptional itens
* Foreign Beer - this 15 sales made by the Company of beer produced by other brewers the majonity of which 1 lager

¢ Like for like barrels sold - this 1s measured on the same basis as “Tenanted like for ke profit growth

» LTIP - Long Term Incentive Plan

* Managed Pubs and Hotels invested like for like sales growth - this 1s the sales growth caleutated 1o exclude those pubs which have not been trading
throughoun the two years for the cerresponding peniod in both years The principel exclusions from this measure are pubs purchased or sold in the last
12 months sites which are closed and pubs which are transferred to tenancy

* Market capitalisation - only the Companys 40p A ordinary shares g Isted The Company cak ulates its market apitahisauon as the sum total of all
classes of ordinary shares 1e sted 40p A ordinary shares unlisted 4p B ordinary shares and unhsied 40p C ordinary shares plus all potentially ewardable
share options and LTIP awards less any shares held in treasury For the purposes of the calculation of market capualisaiion a 4p B ordinary share 15 treated as
having 0% of the markel value of a quated 40p A ordinary share and a 40p C ordinary share is treated as having an equivalent value (0 4 40p A ordinary share

» Net debt - this comprises cash bank leans other loans debenture stock and preference shares
® Own beer and cider - thus 15 sales of own brand beer and cider brewed by the Company in Chiswick and Cornwall
* SIP - Share Incentie Plan

» Tenanted like for like profit growth - this1s the profits growth of Tenanted Inns calculated o exclude from both years those pubs which have not been
trading throughout the two years The principal exclusions from this measure are pubs purchased or sold, pubs which have clased, and pubs transferred o
or from our Managed business Bad debi expense 1s included but head office cosis are excluded

* Total annual dividend - the total annual dvidend for & inancial year comprises interim dmidends paid during the financial year and the final dvidend
proposed for approval by shareholders at the Annual Generat Meeting dfter the completion of the financial year

* Wet food and accommodation like for like sales growth - this 1s measured on the same basis as Managed Pubs and Hotels invested Iike for hke sales growth”
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Five Years’ Progress

Restated* Restated* Reslated ™
2015 2014 2013 2012 201
Income Statement £m &m £m £m £m
Revenue 3215 2880 2715 2530 241 ¢
Operating proht belfore exceptional ilems 423 fc[ole) 370 349 341
Net finance costs* {59 {5 8) {59 {49 {47)
Adjusted profit® 364 341 311 300 294
Exceptional tems* 0 3) {0 &) 206 {19 10
Profit before tox* 341 335 337 281 304
Taxation* {7 8) {4 4) 15 6) 4 9) 160l
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company® 283 291 281 232 24 4
EBITDA 587 545 512 47 8 466
Comparatives have been restated for changes w IAS19
Assets employed
Non-current assels 5242 4813 4556 444 1 3827
Inveniones 106 106 101 05 88
Trade and other recevables 177 183 183 183 188
Assets classified as held for sale - 12 06 53 02
Cash and short lerm deposits 51 4 43 39 37
557 6 5155 488 9 4821 4142
Currenl borrowings (z00) - - - -
Other curient labhnes {53 5) 51 2) {45 7) (51 6 {43 6)
484 1 464 3 443 2 430 5 3706
Non-current borrowings {147 7} 1143 9) {130 9 (142 1 @272
Other nan current kabilies {54 7} 143 2 {43 9) {53 1) {42 2)
Net assets 2817 277 2 2594 2353 2362
Per 40p *A’ ordinary share 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Adiusted eamings 51 51p 46 94p 42 18p 39 47p 37 54p
Basic eamings 51 15p 52 14p 50 43p 41 24p 43 41p
Dividends {intenm and proposed final) 16 60p 1510p 13 70p 12 65p 11 80p
Net assels £509 £4 98 £4 65 £4 22 £4 19
Net debt (£ million) (162 6) 1139 8} (1359) {138 2} (88 5)
Net debt/EBITDA' 27 25 26 27 19
Gross capital expenditure (£ million) 563 381 311 763 120
Average number of employees 4,058 3,610 3,477 3,392 3363

' Net debt/EBITDA 15 adjusted as appropriate for the pubs acquired in the pennd

Design, consultancy and production by Luminous
www luminous co uk
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